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Management report

Executive summary

In the financial year 200372004 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG ("Carl Zeiss Meditec”, the "Company”) fulfilled further
important prerequisites for a future acceleration in growth. Alongside an extensive improvement in the net
worth, financial position and earnings in the period under review, considerable progress was made in the
further optimisation of the organisational structure and the internal process flows.

Compared to the previous year sales improved by 5.9%, up from € 102.9 million to € 109.0 million. In terms
of the products invalved, clear sales impetus came from the refractive and ophthalmic laser systems. Sales
with diagnostic systems also developed positively. Viewed regionally, the Company was successful to an
above-average degree in Asia above all. Here it was possible to raise sales by 28.6% over the previous year,
to € 29.9 miltion. In Europe {excluding Germany) an upturn on 4.3% in sales was also possible compared
to the financial year 2002/2003.

The result from ordinary activities in the financial year 2003/2004 stood at € 13.8 million (previous year:
€ 4.3 million). Accordingly, the net income for the reporting period amounted to € 13.2 million (previous
year: net loss € -0.2 million).

Cash and cash equivatents increased by € 13.8 million, to € 40.0 million as of 30 September 2004 from
€ 26.2 million in the previous year. Added to this are accounts receivable of € 11.5 million from group
treasury of Carl Zeiss AG (previous year: € 4.9 million). Significant growth in the operative cash flow was
the main reason for this development. In the reporting period cash flow from operating activities amount-
ed to € 25.8 million (previous year: € 9.6 million). This figure was positively impacted by the increase in
the net income for the year to € 13.2 million over the previous year. Major contributions to this were made
by the improved operating performance of the Company as well as a dividend payment by the American
subsidiary Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc. to the amount of € 8.7 million. Moreover, the further optimisation of the
management of accounts receivable and inventories increased the cash flow from operating activities by

€ 9.3 million in the period under review.



Business report
1. Underlying conditions for economic development’

The powerful upturn that fasted until the spring of 2004 has since slowed down. Growth in the USA and
China, in particular, has dropped off considerably. In both countries the reins have been pulled in on the
expansive monetary policy that had been prevailing. In the USA financial policy moves to stimulate the
economy have now run their course, and in China administrative measures have been taken to rein in the
exuberant economy.’

The economic recovery in the euro-zone stabilised in the financial year 2003/2004. Thus, the gross domestic
product in real terms rose to a-greater degree in the first six months of 2004 than it had in the last six
months of 2003. Although there were considerable differences between the individual EU member states
with respect to the ‘strenglh of growth and also its causes, on the whole it may be stated that the economic
recovery in this region was fuelled to a greater degree by exports than by an increase in domestic demand.?

The recovery in the German economy ~ analogous to developments throughout the euro-zone — was reinforced
in the period under review. Thus economic research institutes such as Deutsche Institut fir Wirtschafts-
forschung ("DIW") regard “the ongoing stagnation which set in with the economic collapse in the year
2000™, as having been overcome, The motor for growth is once again exports, however. Domestic demand
— and here above all private and state spending — continue to stagnate. The reasons for this stagnating
demand lie in risihg energy prices and consumer uncertainty arising from the diverse reform plans, the
majority of which are yet to be implemented.

Business activities in the regions are being dampened by the major rise in oil prices. Moreover, exports from

the euro-zone have been burdened by a considerable rise in the value of the euro over the US dollar.

1 Deutsches tnstitut fir Wirtschoftsforschung (Germon institute for Econcmic Resegrehl, Berlin (Publ.;: Weekly Report
No. 4372004 “lhe Situation ¢f e Globol and Germuon toanomies m Autumn 20047, 21.16.2004, Berlin

Cf. ibid., p. 625-637

¢t ivid., p. 638ff

Ibid., p. 645
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2. Sales trends

In the financial year 2003/2004 Carf Zeiss Meditec AG posted sales totalling € 109.0 million. This corre-
sponds to an increase of 5.9% over the previous year (€ 102.9 million). With this comparison it is to be
noted that in the previous year sales are still included from the two business units Aesthetic and Dental,
which were sold as of 1 May 2003, for the period from 1 October 2002 to 30 April 2003, if these sales had
been adjusted in the previous year, the growth in sales in the core business of the Company, ophthalmo!-
ogy, would have been even greater.

Sales in the Laser business unit rose considerably. In the reporting period sales of € 42.0 million were
attained. This corresponds to an increase of 20.1% over the previous year (€ 34.9 million). Above all the
positive sales development in the field of refractive lasers, i.e. in the field of lasers for the correction of
vision defects, made a major contribution to this increase. The main focus of sales, in this respect, was on
Europe and Asian growth regions such as China. Furthermore, business with the other laser systems also
developed dynamically. The VISULAS™ 5325 and the VISULAS™ 5325 Combi for the treatment of retinal dis-
eases and glaucoma were successiul in Eurape, above all. Maoreover, sales with the VISULAS™ 690s sys-
tem, which is used within the framework of a so-called photodynamic therapy in conjunction with the
Novartis drug Visudyne® for the treatment of age-related macular degeneration (AMD), rose in Japan in the
period under review. The foundations for this were laid by the granting of product approval by the Japanese
Ministry of Health in December 2003 and the publication in June 2004 of the decision by this ministry to
reimburse the costs for AMD treatments with the VISULAS™ 690s and Visudyne®.

In the Diagnostic business unit it was also possible 1o increase sales. Here sales amounted to € 58.7 mil-
lion in the financial year 2003/2004. This corresponds to an increase of 4.9% over the previous year (€ 55.9
million). The mainstays of sales in this segment were the systems [OLMaster®, STRATUSocT™, fundus cam-
eras as well as the Humphrey® Field Analyzer. The most significant sales markets for the I0LMaster®, with
which the eye can be measured contact-free and precisely prior to an operation for cataracts, were Europe
and the USA. The development of European sales of the STRATUSoT™ diagnostic system was likewise
encouraging. The unigue technology - optical coherence tomography — upon which this system is based
enables the rendering of real-time, cross-section views of the neurofibral layers of the eye. In this way seri-
ous eye diseases like glaucoma and several retinal disorders can be diagnosed earlier than hitherto. Other
important sales mainstays were the FF 450 and VISUCAM™ lite fundus cameras for precise examination of

the fundus of the eye.
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With an upturn of 7.6% over the previous year, sales at the Service business unit also developed positively.
Sales of € 8.3 million (previous year: € 7.7 million) were posted for the period under review.* Sales by the
Service division accounted for 7.6% (previous year: 7.5%) of the Company's total revenues. On the whole
the development of sales in this division also followed the general positive trend.

Sales by business segment in the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 developed as summarised in Table 1.

Business unit Finangial year 200312004 Financial year 2002/2003 Change over previous year 0 fadle 1

Sales by business segment in

Sales Percentage the firanaiai years 2003/2004
) of sales and 200212003
Laser 9 33.5% 34,940 34.0% 20.1%
Diagnostics 53.9% 55,940 54.4% 4.9% (€ '000)
Other 4243 a1% i na.
Service 7737 7.5% 7.6%
168,953 100.0% 102,860 100.0% 5.9%

* These gre the Ae

ond Demtaf business units which were scidf to ELEN S.PA, and Quanta Sysiem SEA with effect from 1 May 2603.

The distribution of sales by region in the period under review reflects the macro-economic trends shown in
the section "1. Underlying conditions for economic development”. The greatest impetus for sales came from the
Asian region. In this region, sales rose by almost a third, to € 29.9 million (previous year: € 23.3 million).
Moderate sales growth was attained in Europe, where the sales revenues increased by 4.3%, 1o € 43.3 million
{previous year: € 41.5 million). Sales in the Americas region, which encompasses the USA above all,
decreased by 7.0%, from € 19.6 million in the previous year to € 18.2 million. The main reason for this lies
in the increase in the value of the euro over the US dollar. With a downturn of 5.2% over the previous year,
sales in Germany have also fallen. in the reporting period these amounted to € 17.5 million (previous year:
€ 18.5 million).

I Inthic respec! o 13 {o be noied Hhot soles revenues originglly received iost yedr in connedtion with the Aesthetic

and Lienial diviy

G whith were sold as of T Mey 2003, are ncw alt

> the budiness division "0
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Saies by region in the

Table 2

financial years 2003/2004

and

200212003

(€ °000)

A comparison of the sales by region for the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 is to be found in Table 2.

Region Finandial year 200372004 Financiai year 2002/2003 Change over previous year

© Sales Percentage Sales Percentage
of sale of sale

Germany 18,508 18.0% 5.2%
Europe (wio Germany) 41510 40.4% a3%
Americas 19,565 19.0% 7.0%
Asia® 26,925 21.5% B 22.6% 28.6%
Tot 108,953 100.0% 102,860 100.0% 5.9%

*incluging Afico

3. Orders on hand

Orders on hand increased by 21.4%, from € 7.0 million as of 30 September 2003 to € 8.5 million as of
30 September 2004. As in the previous year, the Company believes there is a continuing trend towards cus-
tomers placing orders at short notice.

4. Production planning and production

Product manufacture at Carl Zeiss Meditec is focused on the assembly of system components. Mare than
two thirds of the parts or components are purchased from external suppliers. The remaining third is divided
equally between other members of the Carl Zeiss AG and the Company’s own component manufacturing
facilities.

The Company’s core competencies embrace the development of new technologies, products and applications
(see Research and Development Report) and the manufacture and assembly of key components.

In the financial year 2003/2004 the company further extended and optimised its production processes.
Thus production lines for new products were established, and some of the production flows were reorganised.
Furthermore, just-in-time assembly was established for the device platform of the majority of Carl Zeiss
Meditec diagnostic systems, the so-called instrument cross stages. Moreover, the production processes
were further optimised for those systems produced in large numbers.



Production planning is based on the rolling forecast method used by the sales partners. This method
requires the tatter to prepare a rolling sales forecast as a basis for ordering individua! items and manufac-
turing components. For the purposes of restricting stock-keeping to a minimum, final assembly is usually
performed to customer orders.

5. Development of manufacturing capacities

Carl Zeiss Meditec éompensates for fluctuations in demand by flexible deployment of producticn personnel.
A prerequisite for this is the appropriate training system, by which the employees are qualified for work on
the different production lines. Furthermore, working-hour accounts allow for the flexible deployment of
personnel in accordance with the rolling forecasts.

6. Procurement

As described under "4. Production planning and production”, products are assembled almost exclusively to
customer orders submitted. The purpose of this is to keep stocks as low as possible. Accordingly, the respective
components are called up from suppliers shortly before the production date. Moreover, the Company made
further progress in the optimisation of its inventories in the financial year 2003/2004. Thus, so-called consign-
ment warehouses were established with other main suppliers. These are stock warehouses which are owned
by the respective supplier and are integrated into the production process of the Company. The necessary
components are called up as required and invoiced. Furthermore, the arganisation of restocking for these
warehouses is entirely in the hands of the suppliers. At the same time, this form of cooperation is testimony
to the fact that Carl Zeiss Meditec has placed its confidence in long-term partnerships with its suppliers,
Suppliers will be subject to reqular qualification audits in order to ensure consistently high quality levels, and
also with purchased components and parts.

7. Quality management

Official registrations and approvals are demanded by the majority of markets as a prerequisite for the mar-
keting of medical products.

Accordingly Carl Zeiss Meditec had had its individual sites registered with the responsible national agencies.



In order to successfully attain approvals the quality management system of Carl Zeiss Meditec is regularly
audited and certified by DQS GmbH Deutsche Geselischaft zur Zertifizierung von Managementsystemen in
accordance with 1SO 9001 & 13485, Appendix 1t & V of the Directive 93/42/EEC and the Canadian Medicat
Device Regulation (CMDRY).

The quality management system of Carl Zeiss Meditec also conforms with the requirements of the U.S. feg-
islation 21 C.F.R. part 820, Quality Systems Regulation.

Thus Carl Zeiss Meditec has fulfilled the fundamental prerequisites for marketing its CE products in the
European Economic Area, North America, and those countries which have agreements with the European
Union in the field of medical products.

8. Registrations and approvals

The Company’s praducts are always designed with global marketing in mind. For this reason, the design
features, materials and components employed, as well as the interfaces of all devices and systems, are all
chosen at the outset 5o that they can be used anywhere in the world.

With the exception of the refractive laser MEL 80™, for which the approval procedure in the USA and Japan
is still pending, the complete range of products of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG has been approved in all the major
countries of the world.

9. Personnel

Carl Zeiss Meditec's workforce as of 30 September 2004 amounted to 282. In addition there were 21
trainees. The corresponding figures for the previous year were 284 employees, plus 24 trainees. Neither of
the above figures takes account of partially retired employees.

On an annual average a total of 283 employees were employed by the Company in the financial year
2003/2004 {previous year: 325 employees). In addition, there were 22 trainees on average in the report-
ing period (previous year: 25 trainees). The decline in the average workforce was to a large extent attrib-
utable to the disposal of the Aesthetic and Dental business units as of 1 May 2003 and the related transfer
of personnel who have been included proportionately in the calculation of average workforce for 2002/2003.



Figure 1 provides an overview of the personnel structure at Carl Zeiss Meditec as of 30 September 2004.

Personnet stn%ctufe at Cad Zeiss Meditec AG

1% B Production

9.9% 3 Research and development
(3 safes and marketing
[3 Service

23.8% 14.9% 1 Commerciat sector

- — and administration

: /,._/ O Product management
4.3% et 12.8% B Quality management

10. Environmental protection

Within the scope of its business activities, the Company complies with all the refevant environmental pro-
tection standards. The Company’s products or production methods cause no direct or indirect risk to the
environment.

11. Events of particular significance

On 17 December 2003 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG announced that the Company had acquired a 100% interest
in its long-standing alliance partner hiko medical communication GmbH in Pirmasens. hiko medical com-
munication GmbH has been trading as Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH since 29 June 2004.

Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH specialises in the development of medical software solutions, and under
the name VISUPAC™ it markets a successiul product that enatles central filing and management of diagnostic
and treatment data by eye specialists and clinics.

With the acquisition of this company, Carl Zeiss Meditec has taken a further major step in the implementation
of its strategy. The Company secured the necessary resources and know-how, in order to be able to offer
customers cross-platform software solutions for ophthalmic applications.

Figure 1:

Personnel stiucture at

Cari Zeiss Meditet AG, Jena,
as of 30 Sepember 2004



12. Net worth

a) Presentation of net worth

Pursuant to commercial law the balance sheet tatal of Carl Zeiss Meditec as of 30 September 2004 stood
at € 216.6 million. Compared to the previous year (€ 202.7 million) this constituted an increase of 6.9%.
The increase in the balance sheet total is essentially due to an increase of € 13.8 million in cash and cash
equivalents, and to the increase in the shares in affiliated companies resulting from the acquisition of hiko
medical communication GmbH (cf. also Section "11. Events of particular significance ”). This more than
compensated for the various contracting effects on the assets side of the balance sheet. These are essentially:

- Assignificant reduction in trade accounts receivable due to further optimisation of collection management
and a further risk provision for the possible loss of long-standing receivables: This balance sheet item
decreased by more than one third, from € 13.3 million as of 30 September 2003 to € 8.8 million as
of 30 September 2004.

- The reduction in the inventories essentially following a further corresponding improvement in stock
management {c{. Sections "4. Production planning and production” and "6. Procurement”): The balance
sheet item "Raw materials and supplies” was lowered by 19.5% over the previous year, from € 9.9 miflion
to € 8.0 million. Furthermore, the "Finished goods and gaods for re-sale” were fowered from € 8.9 million
in the previous year to € 6.6 million as of 30 September 2004.

- The decrease in the item "Other loans™: Carl Zeiss Meditec has reached an out-of-court settlement
with |-Spire s.p.1.l., Brussels / Belgium and its sole proprietor. This settlement provides for the payment
of the total amount shown in the balance sheet item “Other loans” by I-Spire s.p.r.l. in accordance
with to a payment plan. Accordingly, this results in a reduction from € 2.8 million as of 30 September
2003 to € 1.3 million as of 30 September 2004,

Accounts receivable due from affiliated companies as of 30 September 2004 totalled € 19.5 miilion (previous
year: € 13.7 million). These elate exclusively to accounts receivable from affiliates of the Cart Zeiss AG.
When viewing this balance sheet item it has to be noted that this also includes the accounts receivable
from the group treasury of the Carl Zeiss AG. As of 30 September 2004 the accounts receivable from the
group treasury of the Carl Zeiss AG were € 11.5 million (30 September 2003: € 4.9 million). Other comments
in this context are to be found under Section "13. Financial position™.

With a share of 56.5% of the balance sheet total (previous year: 57.3%) the “Shares in affiliated undertakings”
currently form the item of the largest value on the assets side. This item is the statement of the book values
of the shares held by Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in its subsidiaries. Essentially these are Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc,,
Dublin, USA (shareholding book value: € 115.9 million), Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH, Pirmasens,
Germany (shareholding book value: € 6.1 million) and Carl Zeiss Meditec Co,, Ltd., Tokyo, Japan (share-
holding book value: € 0.3 miliion).



The clear reduction in the "Other assets”, from € 4.2 million as of 30 September 2003 to € 0.9 million as
of the end of the feporting period, is essentially due to the complete settlement of the purchase price for
the sold units, Aesthetic and Dental.

In a year-on-year comparison the major changes on the liabilities side of the balance sheet concern the
items "Accumulated earnings” and “Trade accounts payable”. Compared to the previous year the accumulated
earnings essentially increased due to the payment of a cash dividend of € 8.7 million by the American sub-
sidiary Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc. to Carl Zeiss Meditec AG (cf. also Section "15. Earnings position”). “Trade
accounts payable” essentially decreased due to their early settlement to avail of discounts; over the previous
year they declined by 22.8%, from € 6.2 million to € 4.8 million.

The following figure 2 summarises the most important changes in the balance sheet structure as of
30 September 2004 and 2003.

Balance sheetzstmcture of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG

B Figure 2
alance sheet structuse of
30.09.2004 30.09.2003 . R . :
v Awens Cari Zeiss Meditec AG as of
128.003 . - 121,968 30 September 2004 and 2003
. B rixed assets
48,542 PbE 54,495 [0 Curent assets (w/o cash on hand,
~ . but in!. deferred income)
40,028 26,190 O Cash on hand
R W,
: - Liabilineg
195,228 181,997
—
11,516 : 10,039 [ Shareholders' equity
: O Provisions
9829 ™ : 7 10815 [ Liabilities (incl. deferred income)



b) Key data on net worth
In the reporting period Carl Zeiss Meditec was able to further significantly consolidate its already sound net
worth structure.

Table 3 Kay ratios Definition

m 30.09.2003 Change over previous year

Key daza of net worth:

(30 September 2004 anc 2003} Equity ratio Equity 89.8% +0.3% percentage points

Balance-sheet totat

Debt-to-net-worth Total borrowed capital 11.0% -0.2% percentage paints

ratio (wlo deferred income)
Equity

Cover ratio A Equity 149.2% +3.3% percentage points
fixed assets

Cover ratio B Equity capital + long-term 150.0% +3.4% percentage points
borrowed capital
Fixed assets

Cover ratio for Equity capital + medium-term 149.2% +3.8% percentage points

medium-term and long-term borrowed capital

and lang-term Fixed assets + accounts

fixed assets receivable with a residual term

of more than one year

13. Financial position

a) Statement of financial position

As of the cut-off date 30 September 2004 cash and cash equivalents held by Carl Zeiss Meditec AG amounted
to € 40.0 million (previous year: € 26.2 million). The net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the financial
year 2003/2004 thus amounted to € 13.8 miltion {previous year: € 22.8 million).

A significant contribution to this development was made by the cash flow from operating activities. In the
reporting period it improved to € 25.8 million (previous year: € 9.6 million). To be highlighted in this
respect are the increase in the net income for the year, and, above all, the successes with the systematic
monitoring and control of the working capital. Thus, the optimised management of accounts receivable and
the active inventory strategy of the company made a iotal positive contribution of € 9.3 million to the cash
flow from operating activities.

Cash flow from investing activities in the financial year 2003/2004 stood at € -5.3 million (previous year:
€ 2.5 million). The most impartant item in this context are the investments in financial assets to the amount
of £ 8.0 million, which result in full from the acquisition of hiko medical communication GmbH. They
include the payment of the purchase price of € 6.1 million and the redemption of loans on the part of this
company to the amount of € 1.9 million.

H



Cash flow from financing activities in the reporting period stood at € -6.7 million (previous year: € 10.7 millicn).
The essential item here is the increase in accounts receivable from the group treasury of the Carl Zeiss AG.
As of 30 September 2004 the balance was € 11.5 million (previous year: € 4.9 million). This balance
accrues interest at the customary market rate and is at the Company’s disposal at all times.

b) Key ratios of financial position v

Above all, the reduction in the net working capital by 30.7%, from € 39.4 million in the previous year to
€ 27.3 million as of 30 September 2004, reflects the successes in the optimisation of the inventories and
the reduction in accounts receivable and other assets. Accordingly, the increase in the working capital ratio
over the previous year is merely attributable to the rise in cash in hand and to the further rise in the credit
with the group treasury of the Carl Zeiss AG. Coverage of the current liabilities by the current assets has
thus further improved.

Key ratios Definition 30.09.2003 Change over previous year

Cash and ' Cash at bank and in hand €40.0m £€26.2m +52.8%
cash equivalents

Net cash and Cash at bank and in hand + €51.6m £€3LIm +65.8%
cash equivalents accounts receivable against
Cart Zeiss AG group treasury

Ratio of inventories Total inventories 21.5% 28.5% -7.0 percentage points
to current assets " Current assets

Ratio of cash and Cash at bank and in hand 32.5% +12.8 percentage points

cash equivalents Current assets
to current assets

Net working capital  (Current assets €39.4m -30.7%
less cash and cash equivalents
lass accounts receivable from
group treasury of

the Carl Zeiss AG)

less current liabilities

Working capital Current assets

929:3% 806.4% +122,9%-Punkte
ratio Current liabilities

14. Investing activities

The largest single investment by the Company in the period under review concerned the acquisition of hiko
medical communication GmbH. A total sum of € 8.0 million was used for the payment of the purchase price
and the redemption of loans (cf. also Section "13. Financial position”). Investments in fixed assets were
only necessary to @ minor degree: The latter totalled € 0.7 million in the reporting period (previous year:
€ 0.8 million).

Taple 4.

Key ratios of financia!

in the financial years 200

and 2002/2003




15. Earnings position

In the financial year 2003/2004 the gross margin al Carl Zeiss Meditec stood at 36.7%, compared to 40.4% in
the previous year. Thus the positive impact on this ratio, for example from the reduction in cost of revenues,
could not compensate for the corresponding negative impact from the price pressure in individual product
areas and regions, which primarily arose in connection with the development of currency exchange rates.
In the future, however, the Company expects further improvements in this area.

The result from ordinary activities in the financial year 2003/2004 stood at € 13.8 million (previous year:
€ 4.3 million). The following major effects in the reporting period are to be taken into account:

- In the sales area it was possible to lower costs by € 2.2 million over the previous year. The corresponding
costs ratio decreased from 21.1% in the financial year 2002/2003 to 17.9% for the pericd under
review. In this respect, it has to be considered, however, that in the financial year 2002/2003 there
were still pro-rata costs for the two divisions Aesthetic and Dental, which were sold as of 1 May 2003.
On a comparable basis to the previous year there would have been a slight rise of 0.9% in costs as
a consequence of higher sales.

- The rise in costs in the administrative area is due, above all, to the formation of provisiens for two
legal disputes (cf. also Risk Report, Section "10. Legal risks"), as well as a change in accounting for
the quality management of the Company over the previous year. Half of these costs are now stated
under "General and administrative expenses”, the other half under cost of revenues (in previous year:
fully aflocated to cost of revenues). As a ratio of sales this leads to an administrative costs ratio for
the financial year 2003/2004 of 5.8% (previous year: 5.0%).

- The "Research and development expenses” decreased over the previous year slightly by 4.6% to
€ 9.8 million. This is essentially due to reduced procurement of outside services.

- The other operating expenses decreased from € 4.7 million in the previous year to € 2.4 million in
the financial year 2003/2004. At the same time the other operating income decreased from € 4.4 million
in the previous year to € 2.2 million in the financial year 2003/2004. The main causes of this are currency
exchange rate effects, and the fact that there were no costs for a capital increase in the period under
review.

- The “income from investments and participations” of € 8.7 million results from the payment of a cash
dividend by the American subsidiary Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc. to Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.

The extraordinary result of € -4.5 million in the previous year (reporting period: € 0 is attributable in full
to losses on the sale of the inventories and property, plant and equipment in connection with the disposal
of the Aesthetic and Dental business units.

This means that Carl Zeiss Meditec AG posted a total net income of € 13.2 million (previous year: net loss
€ -0.2 million).



Risk report
1. Risk management system

in the course of its operating activities, Carl Zeiss Meditec is naturally exposed to a number of risks that
are inherent to commercial activities.

Risk management at Carl Zeiss Meditec is an integral part of corporate management and based on three
major components:

- Risk management system: In order to be able to identify and assess risks in good time and take the
appropriate steps, the Company introduced a risk management system. An important element is a
database-aided software solution with which risks and their estimated probability of occurrence and
potential for damage may be recorded, systematised and evaluated on a regular basis. Carl Zeiss
Meditec thus satisfies the legal requirements with regard to control and transparency (KonTraG, Act
on Control and Transparency in Stock Corporations).

- Controlling instruments: Controlling at Carl Zeiss Meditec keeps the Management Board and all
responsible decision-makers within the Company reqularly informed on occurring risks on the basis
of key ratios, thereby supplementing the risk management system.

- Certified quality management: A further critical component is the Company's certified quality management
(see also: Business Report, 7. Quality management), Clearly structured and documented processes
within the framework of quality management ensure not only transparency — in most markets they
are meanwhile a prerequisite for the sale of medical products. The quality assurance system employed
by Carl Zeiss Meditec was certified by DQS GmbH Deutsche Gesellschaft zur Zertifizierung von
Managementsystemen and conforms to the US standard for "Good Manufacturing Practice” {(GMP),
21 C.FR. part 820, QSR. A major objective of this certified process is risk avoidance,

The risk management system is an integral part of the overall controlling and reporting process of the
Company and ensures the systematic recording and evaluation of risks. Furthermore, it quarantees that relevant
information is forwarded without delay to the Company’s decision-makers.



The main features of this system are:

- Under the direction of a central risk manager, the responsible staff regularly examines processes,
transactions and developments for existing risks.

- Risk identitication and evaluation using standardised risk matrices.

- Regular risk reports are sent to the Management Board and other decision-makers within the
Company on the basis of given threshold values for relevant risks and according to the classification
using the risk matrices.

- On this basis suitable steps are taken to avoid identified risks, reduce the likelihood of such risks
occurring or minimise the financial losses incurred.

As with the internal reporting, the risk management system is subjected to an internal audit. In addition it
formed a constituent part of the annual audit by the certified auditor.

2. Market and competition

The competition on the medical technology market in general and in ophthalmology in particular will continue
to increase. Fundamentally there is the risk that, compared to competitors, the Company might not react
in good time 10 market developments with new products and adaptations of existing products. Such an
event would have negative consequences for the net worth, financial position and earnings, and also fead
to a deterioration of the market position.

Carl Zeiss Meditec actively counters this risk by making not inconsiderable investments in the field of
research and development, and also in the upstream areas Market Intelligence (market observation), New
Business Development (strategic business development) and Advanced Technologies {detailed examination
of new technologies).

Furthermore, government reforms in the social system could have a negative effect on the Company's sales
volume and earnings situation. This risk exists particularly in countries in which a major portion of treat-
ments for eye ailments is paid by health insurance schemes. If budgets were cut, or the reimbursement of
treatment costs were denied for certain types of treatment, this could have a negalive impact on the
Company's net worth, financial position and earnings.

An additional risk potential exists in a possible further deterioration in the economic situation, particularly with
reference to the markets that are critical to the Company. This could have a marked effect on privately financed
medical applications such as refractive surgery: In this case there is a risk of deterioration in the financiat
standing of the Company’s customers or the demand for its products. Due to loss of sales and receivables

this could have a negative impact on the net worth, financial position and earnings of Carl Zeiss Meditec.



3. New technology and products

Medical technology as a whole, particularly in the field of ophthalmology, is undergoing an extremely
dynamic development process. New scientific findings lead to shorter development and product cycles.
Such findings may have a negative impact on existing methods and products and also on new methods and
products on which the business success of the Company is founded.

The success of Carl Zeiss Meditec is determined to a great extent by the development of innovative products
in the fields of ophthalmology and by recognising new technology trends at an early stage and turning
these into the appropriate products. Should the Company lose touch in technological terms, fail to react in
time to a technological development, not identify a market trend in good time or should a development end
in a technological dead-end, this could have a negative impact on the competitive position of the Company.

Carl Zeiss Meditec is actively countering this risk, however, with the measures shown under “2. Market and

competition.”

4. Approval of products

In the medical technology and the health service sectors there are strict approval procedures that vary from
one country to another. Denial of approvals or delays in approval procedures for the Company’s products
could have a negative impact on the future sales and profits of Cart Zeiss Meditec.

There is no guarantee that the Company's numerous registrations will continue to be valid in the future,
renewed or obtained in good time for launching new products shead of the competitive field. Furthermore,
stricter registration requirements must be reckoned with in future. This would have negative consequences for
the net worth, financial position and earnings of Carl Zeiss Meditec.

In order to identify such developments in good time and be able to react appropriately, the Company follows
developments in this field extremely closely, monitoring the details of approval procedures within the frame-
work of its implemented quality management system.

5. Dependence on suppliers
The increasingly close cooperation with suppliers necessitated by the general cost pressure and complexity
of the supplied companents implies a greater dependence on one ancther. This could have negative impli-

cations for the production, sales and the quality of the Company's products.

Thanks to the qualification of its suppliers, the identification of secondary suppliers and the preparation of
a strategic inventoiy plan, Carl Zeiss Meditec takes the best-possible measures to counter this risk.



6. Patents and intellectual property

The Company is not aware of any material violation of patent rights or other industrial property rights of
third parties. The possibility that a third party may assert claims against the Company for the violation of
industrial property rights cannot, however, be ruled out. A violation of this type could result in a delay in
the delivery of products. In the event of a negative outcome of the proceedings the Company may be
obliged to enter into fee or licensing arrangements. There is a risk that such copyright or licensing agreements
are not available or only available on unacceptable terms. A lawsuit against the Company due to the violation
of industrial property rights could therefore have a negative impact on the net worth, financial situation
and earnings of the Company.

The competitive position of Carl Zeiss Meditec depends on securing its technological innovations. To guarantee
these, the Company acquires patents for its own and third-party inventions and takes steps to protect its
business secrets. The expiration of industrial property rights or patents could result in the appearance of
new competitors on the market or strengthen the position of competitors who are already active.

In order to avoid the above-mentioned legal disputes, patents and patent applications in the relevant fields
are analysed by the Company at regular intervals.

7. Protection against loss of confidential data

A number of mechanisms has been established for the protection of confidential data in the information
technologies deployed by the Company. Nevertheless, breaches of security and the loss of this data cannot

be completely ruled out. This could have an adverse effect on the competitive position of Carl Zeiss Meditec.

8. Product liability risk

In the Company's products employed for medical treatments there is an inherent fundamental risk that mal-
functions result in injury to the patient. Despite employing all reasonable quality control measures and com-
plying with all legal provisions, this risk cannot be completely excluded. Although Carl Zeiss Meditec has to
date not been obliged to pay any major claims for compensation arising from product fiability, no quarantee
can be given that the Company will not be confronted with such claims in the future.



The Company has covered itself against possible product liability claims by means of product fiability insurance.
A particular risk is pbsed by potential product liability claims brought against the Company in the USA as the
damages awarded by the courts there may be very large indeed. It cannot be completely excluded that the
Company’s existing insurance cover does not provide sufficient cover for potential claims in the USA.

9, Subsidiaries

Carl Zeiss Meditec is indirectly exposed to the risk environment of each of its subsidiaries. The relationship
to its subsidiaries can result in statutory and contractual liabilities.

A further potential risk in this respect concerns the current book value of holdings in Cari Zeiss Meditec, Inc.,
Dublin, USA, and Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH, Pirmasens, Germany (former hiko medical communi-
cation GmbH). Both companies were stated at their market value at the time of their acquisition. This risk
comes to bear only'in the case that there is a long-term deterioration in the net worth, financial position
and earnings of these subsidiaries.

10. Legal risks

The Group has reached an out-of-court settlement in the action for damages against I-Spire s.p.r.l., Brussels /
Belgium and its solé proprietor. Inasmuch, any possible risks may be considered as having been eliminated
to the greatest-possible degree. This settlement includes payments of the total amount of € 2.8 million shown in
the balance sheet item "Other loans” by I-Spire s.p.r.l. in several instalments. The payment of the first two
instalments totalling € 1.8 million took place at the end of April and after the balance sheet cut-off date in
October 2004.

Current litigation risks arise from the lawsuit and claim for lost earnings filed by a distributor of the former
Asclepion for dermétologica! lasers, and the pending cost reimbursement lawsuit and claim filed by the
insolvency administrator of the former Asclepion distribution partner U.S. Medical, Inc., also in the field of
dermatological lasers. The Company has, from today's stance, taken adequate precautionary measures in
the form of provisions.



Research and development report
1. General comments

In the financial year 2003/2004 Carl Zeiss Meditec spent € 9.8 million on research and development (R&D)
(previous year: € 10.3 million). A total of € 1.0 million was granted in subsidies (previous year: € 1.8 million).
The R&D ratio decreased from 10.0% in the previous year to 9.0%. The main reason for this deveiopment
is — alongside the reduced procurement of outside services in the reporting period — the rise of 5.9% in
sales over the previous year.

Carl Zeiss Meditec's workforce in R&D as at 30 September 2004 amounted to 67. This corresponds to
23.8% of all the employees of the Company.

2. Projects

Major R&D projects at Carl Zeiss Meditec AG are involved in the further expansion of the range of applications
and the functionality of the refractive laser MEL 80™ and of the CRS Master™, a concept which links the
MEL 80™ with a so-called wavefront diagnosis system.

The development of the AC Master™ was a further important R8D project in the period under review. With
the AC Master™, which just like the 10L Master® is based on optical biometry, the front section of the eye
may be examined with the greatest precision, something which is of significance above all in connection
with the use of innovative intraocular lenses.

The development work on the software VISUPAC™ 4.0 was successfully completed in the financial year
2003/2004. With VISUPAC™ 4.0 it is possible to intelligently combine different diagnostic systems, such as
fundus cameras and the STRATUSocT™ system, and, moreover, Lo link these up to practice management and
hospital information systems. VISUPAC™ is the first new product of Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH (for-
merly hiko medical communication GmbH).

Together with the American company Calhoun Vision, Inc., Carl Zeiss Meditec AG has been working on the
development of a new type of intraocular lens whose refractive power can be adjusted after the operation
without the need for further surgical intervention. In this way, cataract surgery can be coupled with the
optimum customised correction of vision defects. The digital light source required for the purpose is being
developed by Carl Zeiss Meditec, the respective lens by Calhoun Vision, Inc.

Further R&D projects concern the laser VISULAS™ YAG Il for the post-cataract treatment, as well as other
diagnosis and therapy systems which underline the innovative strength of the Company.




Supplementary report

On 21 October 2004 Carl Zeiss Meditec announced that it intends to take over the American company Laser
Diagnostic Technologies, Inc. (LDT) domiciled in San Diego, California, USA, through its subsidiary Carl Zeiss
Meditec, Inc., LDT invented and commercialised 3 new standard for glaucoma detection with its proprietary
ocular nerve fiber measurement instrument. For the current financial year 2004 LDT expects sales of some
US-$ 20 million and a batanced operating resuit. Carl Zeiss Meditec assumes that the transaction can be
concluded by the end of 2004 following the necessary approvals from the carresponding executive bodies
and shareholders of LDT.

LDT's main product, the GDx VCC, is a system specially developed for the early detection and diagnosis of
glaucoma. It thus complements the market presence of Carl Zeiss Meditec's STRATUSoci™, a retinal imaging
system with a wide range of possible applications. These include not only the early detection of glaucoma,
but also its use in the diagnosis of other severe eye ailments such as age-related macular degeneration
(AMD), in diabetic retinopathy, as well as in examinations before and after the treatment of cataracts. In
this manner, the system GDx VCC is primarily aimed at customers who do not require the full bandwidth of
examination possibilities, such as is offered by the system STRATUSocT™.

On 1 November 2004 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG also announced that its Japanese subsidiary, Carl Zeiss Meditec
Co., Ltd., domiciled in Tokyo, Japan, was taking over the surgery business of Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd., which is
also domiciled in Tokyo, Japan. This area deals with the sale of surgical microscopes for ophthalmology,
neurosurgery and for ear, nose and throat surgery,'and has annual sales of ca. € 25 million. In the opinion
of Carl Zeiss Meditec this move allows for the reatisation of considerable synergy effects in various areas
such as administration, sales administration and service. Moreover, in this manner the Company can reinforce

and better coordinate its activities regarding approval issues.




Forecast
1. Economic conditions

For 2005 Germany's economic research institute Deutsches Institut fir Wirtschaftsforschung ("DIW™)
expects a further increase in overall economic output in the industrialised nations. I the favourable monetary
framework conditions, such as low interest rates for loans, are kept in place, this should also have a
favourable impact on further investment. From the stance of DIW the economic dynamism in East Asia and
in those threshold countries which export raw materials will remain high in 2005 despite a slight downturn
“On the whole the driving forces behind the economy seem to be so stable that, despite the rise in oil prices
and the waning stimulus from monetary and financial policy, a drift towards a downturn is not to be expected.”

For the USA and Japan a downturn in the gross domestic product ("GDP") is expected for 2005. For the
USA an improvement of 3.4% (2004: 4.4%) is expected in the GDP in 2004; in lapan the figure is set to
be 2.1% {2004: 4.2%). The economic expectations of DIW for these economic regions are stil! higher than
those for the euro-zone; here growth of 2.0% has been forecasted for the GDP* For Germany DIW assumes
that there will only be a mild recovery in private consumption in 2005. However, DIW is also of the opinicn
that the readiness to invest will pick up slightly in 2005. One of the reasons seen for this is the ongoing
expansion of capacities, which would make replacement and expansion invesiment necessary. Seen as a
whole, however, the export sector will once again be the driving force behind German industry.*

<f ibid, p €33
., p. €33
Cfoivid, p. €30-844
&f ibid, p. 645-863
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2. Outlook

Carl Zeiss Meditec fulfilled important internal prerequisites for a future acceleration in growth in the financial
year 2003/2004. Alongside an extensive improvement in the pet worth, financial position and earnings in
the period under review, considerable progress was made in the further optimisation of the organisational
structure and theinternal process flows.

It remains the objective of the Company to cansiderably increase its sales revenues through to the end of the
financial year 2007/2008, so as to make a significant contribution to the planned doubling of sales revenues
at group level™ by this point in time. In this respect the earnings power is to be reinforced on a sustainable
basis. To this end, the product portfolio is to be extended through the inclusion of innovative systems, and
existing resources deployed even more efficiently. Insofar as it makes strategic sense, external options can
also be utilised to attain the growth targets. The balance sheet structure of Carl Zeiss Meditec as created in
the financial year 2003/2004 offers a solid basis for this.

3. Strategy

Based on the excellent position of the Company with devices and systems for ophthalmology, Carl Zeiss
Meditec intends toestablish itself as a provider of complete solutions in this field. To this end the existing
competitive position in the field of the four main ophthalmic syndromes is to be enhanced. The unigue tech-
nology and product portiolio, the extensive expertise in the field of research and development, the strong
global marketing network and the world-famous brand name "Zeiss” provide an excellent basis for this. The
acquisition of the American company Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc., which was announced at the end
of October 2004, is further testimony to the fact that wherever it makes sense external growth options can
also be utilised.

10 Refersnce: group sales in the finondial year 260212005



Final declaration to the dependency report
Declaration by the Management Board pursuant to Art. 312 Section 3 AktG

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG as a member of Carl Zeiss AG has prepared a dependency report pursuant to Art, 312
German Stack Corporation Act (AktG). Under the circumstances known to the Management Board at the
time the transactions were concluded, the companies of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG received suitable consider-
ation for each of the transactions listed in this report on relationships to affiliated companies and were not
disadvantaged by the adaption of measures stated in this report or by their omission.

Jena, 8 November 2004
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG

O '/-/ % K J gg T
V/é{// /4’/;’, \/' /; /_—-~
P

Ulrich Krauss Bernd Hirsch
President and CEO Member of the Management Board



Income statement

For the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 (HGB)




Balance sheet

As of 30 September 2004 and as of 30 September 2003 (HGB)

€000

Assets
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Concessiens, industrial property rights and similar rights
and assets including licenses for such rights and assets
Praperty, plant and équipment
Land and buildings including buildings on third-party land

Plant and machinery

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment

Advances from customers and tangible assets in course of construction
Financial assets

Shares in affiliated undertakings

Loans to affiliated undertakings

Qther loans

Current assets
lnventories
Raw materials and supplies
Work in progress
Finished goods and goods for re-sale
Payments on account
Advances from customers
Accounts recelvable and other assets
Trade accounts re¢eivable
— thereof with a térm of more than one year:
€0.393m (2003: € 0.718m
From affifiated companies
— thereof with a term of more than one year:
€0(2003: €0)
Other assets
lnvestments
Cwn shares {treasury stock)
Cash on hand and cash in banking accounts

Notes

. 30092004 30.00.2003

214

46
1,632

116,183
1,023
2834

9,903
4,140
8,906

34

13343

9 13,694

(10) 4,209

34

1,892

120,040

o
13
B
N

22,983

31,246
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Fixed-asset movement schedule (gross presentation)

Financial year 2003/2004

€000

Intangible fixed assets

Concessions, industrial bmperty rights and simifar rights
Fixed assets

tand and leasehold righits and buildings,

including buildings on third-party land

Plant and machinery ‘

Other fixtures and fittinés, tools and equipment
Advances from customeérs and tangible assets in course of construction
Financial assets :

Shares in affiliated combames

Loans to affiliated companies

Investments ‘

Other loans

Purchase/manufactusing cost

01.10.2003

323

118,590
7,690
4,668
9,401

140,349,

147,027

Additions

548

6,110
1,878

7,988

3743

Transfers

Disposats

(13)

(15)

an
(518)

(550

{2,135)
(7,200)

{1,503}
{10,838)
{11,401

30.09.2004

139
6,083
20

€,503

122,565
2368
4,668
7.208

137,494

144,862




€'00C

Intangible fixed assets

Concessions, industrial bropeny rights and similar rights

Fixed assets

Land and leasehold rights and buildings,

including buildings on third-party land

Plant and machinery ‘

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment

Advances from custemers and tangible assets in course of construction

Financial assets

Shares in affiliated companies
Loans to affiliated comp:anies
Investments :
Othes loans

Cumulated depreciation

01.10.2003 Depreciation in
the Financial year

289 70

28 61

92 20

4,338 753

4,458 834
2,407
6,667
4,668

6,567 68

20,309 68

25,056 972

(10)

an
327}

{354)

(2.135)
(6,667

:
. 6,635 1,263
11,575 125,924

(8.802)

19,169

i€ 859

Residual book value

3

128003

01,10.2003

34

214

46
1,632

1,892

116,183
1,023

2,834
120,040
121,968




Notes to ;financial statements for the financial year 2003/2004

General details and explanatory notes to the financial statements
(1) Business operations

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena ("Carl Zeiss Meditec” or the "Company”) is engaged in the business of devel-
oping, manufacturing and marketing medical devices and systems for the ophthalmic market (diagnosis
and therapy). The Company’s headquarters are located in Jena, Germany’s traditional centre of excellence
for optical and optical-related technologies. The Company has subsidiaries in the USA (100%-owned),
lapan (51%-owned) and Germany (100%-owned). Together these operations canstitute the Carl Zeiss
Meditec Group {the "Group").

Carl Zeiss Meditec has so far focused on the ophthalmic market segment. The Company's customers are
specialists in private practice, optometrists, opticians and clinics worldwide.
(2) Foundation, stock exchange listing

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG was originally founded on 4 October 1995 as Aesculap-Meditec GmbH with its head
office in Jena.

On 10 November 1999 Aesculap-Meditec GmbH was transformed into a stock corporation and from this date
onwards it bore the name Asclepion Meditec AG ("Asclepion”). The Company went public on 22 March 2000
and was listed on the Neuer Markt at the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

In 2002 Carf Zeiss Ophthalmic Systems AG conveyed its assets in their entirety to Asclepion.

In this process Asclepion Meditec AG was renamed Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.



(3) Development of share capital and capital reserves in the financial year 2003/2004

Contingent capital -

Following a resolution of the extraordinary general meeting of 10 March 2000 as recorded in the commerdial
register at the Gera Local Court on 14 March 2000, the share capital was increased by up to € 400,000 {contingent
capital). The contingent capital increase serves to grant subscription rights to the holders of stack options
issued by the Company on the basis of the authorisation granted by the general meeting on 10 March 2000.
The contingent capital increase is utilised to the extent to which use is made of the subscription rights. The new
shares are endowed with dividend rights with effect from the beginning of the financial year in which they are
created through the exercising of the subscription rights.

In the financial year‘2003l2004 no shares were subscribed from the contingent capital.

Authorised Capital |

Furthermore, the Annual General Meeting of 19 March 2004 resolved to eliminate the existing authorised
capital of € 10.333 million and to empower the Management Board, with the approval of the Supervisory
Board, to increase the share capital by issuing new no-par value bearer shares worth up to € 13.208 million
by 18 March 2009 (Authorised Capital 1).

Following this resolution of the general meeting on 19 March 2004 the Management Board is authorised,
with the consent of the Supervisory Board, to exclude the subscription rights of the shareholders. The exclusion

of the subscription rights of the shareholders is only possible in the following cases:

- To balance out fractional amounts,

- If the capital increase is effected against cash contributions and the new shares for which the sub-
scription right is excluded, are equivalent to no more than 10% of the share capital, neither on the
date it becomes effective, nor on the date this authorisation is exercised, and the issue amount of the
new shares is not significantly lower than the market price of the publicly quoted shares of the same
type and structure. Sales of own shares on the basis of other authorisations pursuant to Art. 186 (3)
sentence 4 AktG must be taken into account in the limitation to 10% of the share capital,

- For capital increases against non-cash contributions for the granting of shares for the purpose of

acquiring companies, parts thereof or interests in a company.

In the financial year 2003/2004 no shares were subscribed from the Authorised Capital |,



Authorised Capital It

Furthermere, the Annual General Meeting of 19 March 2004 resolved to empower the Management Board,
with the approval of the Supervisory Board, to increase the share capital by issuing new no-par value bearer
shares worth up to a further € 1.0 million by 18 March 2009 (Authorised Capital If). The new shares can
be issued to the employees of Cart Zeiss Meditec AG and its affiliates. The statutory subscription right of
the shareholders is therefore excluded. The Management Board shall be authorised, subject to the approvat
of the Supervisory Board, to specify the details of the capital increases from Authorised Capital II.

In the financial year 2003/2004 no shares were subscribed from the Authorised Capital II.

Treasury stock

With resolution of the Annual General Meeting on 19 March 2004, Carl Zeiss Meditec was again authorised
to acquire own shares (treasury stock) up to a value corresponding to 10% of the share capital of
€ 2.84 million unti! 18 September 2005 - this represents almost 10% of the current share capital of
€ 28.417 million - for the purpose of

- offering these to employees of the Company and its affiliated companies as defined in Art. 15 {f of
the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG); or

- recalling them.

On the basis of this authorisation, in the financial year 2003/2004 the Company purchased the following
treasury stock:

Date of stock purchase Numbet of shares

Holdings as of 30.09.2003 14,252 B 108,004
24.09.2004 6913 70,545
Roldings as of 30.09.2004 21175 8 178,549

The portion of share capital attributable to acquired treasury stock is € 21,175, representing 0.07% of the
share capital. Reserves were formed pursuant to Art. 272 para. 4 of the German Commercial Code (HGB)
corresponding to the amount of € 178,000 stated on the assets side.




{4) Annual financial statements according to HGB and AktG;
Consolidated financial statements

The annual financial statements of Carl Zeiss Meditec for the financial year ending 30 September 2004
have been preparec in € '000 in accordance with the provisions of the German Commercial Code (HGB)
and the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG).

The income statement was prepared using the operational format.

in comparison to the previous year it should be noted that both sales and profit contributions of the sold-
off Aesthetic and Dental business units in the financial year 2002/2003 are disclosed in the Company's
individual annual financial statements pursuant to HGB until the date of the sale, i.e. for the period
1 October 2002 to 30 April 2003. The figures for the financial year 2003/2004 do not include sales and
profit contributions from these sold-off peripheral activities.

in order to reflect the increasing marketing orientation of product management in the past few years, in
the financial year 2003/2004 these costs were reclassified as selling and marketing expenses. The previous
year's comparative figures (€ 977,000) were adjusted accordingly. The Company’s annual financial statements
are 1o be incorporated in the consolidated financial statements of the Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkochen. The con-
solidated financial statements of Carl Zeiss AG will be published in the Federal Gazette (Bundesanzeiger)
and deposited in the commercial register at the Aalen local court.

Furthermore, the Company prepares consolidated financial statements according to US Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (US-GAAP),

(5) Details and comments on accounting and valuation methods

The accounting and valuation methods from the previous year have been applied in unchanged form.
Fixed assets

intangible fixed assets

The intangible assets capitalised at acquisition costs have been depreciated by the straight-line method pro
rata for their respective useful life (three years for software and five to fifteen years for licenses).




Tangible assets (Property, plant and equipment)
Accruals are carried at the acquisition or manufacturing cost. Disposals are booked at acquisition costs
minus accumulated depreciation at the time of their retirement.

In the financial year 2003/2004, the sliding scale method of depreciation has been used uniformly for afl
accruals in movable property in conformance with taxation provisions. A change was made from sliding-
scale to linear depreciation as soon as this resulted in a higher amount of depreciation.

With the elimination of the tax simplification rule in respect of depreciation on accruals to moveable assets
in the first and second half years (full or half annual depreciation), as of 1 january 2004 depreciation on
such accruals is now calculated pro rata temporis.

Low-value assets are deprecidted in full in the year of acquisition and treated as disposals in the following
year in the fixed-assets movement schedule.

In contrast to the former Asclepion’s straight-line method of calculating depreciation based on anticipated
useful life, the former Carl Zeiss Ophthalmic calculated depreciation an movable tangible fixed assets by
the sliging-scale method.

Financial assets

Shares in affiliated companies, loans to affiliated companies, holdings and other oans are shown at acquisition
cost. Allowance is made for possible risks in the shareholding situation and loans in the form of reason-
able valuation adjustments.

Current assets
inventories
The raw materials and supplies are valued at their acquisition cost or the lower market value.

Work in progress and finished goods are valued at manufacturing costs. These include the direct material
costs, the direct manufacturing expenses, a suitable portion of the material and manufacluring overheads,
as welf as the pro rata value depreciation of production assets. Inventory risks due to the storage period or
reduced marketability were taken into account by a combination of write-downs in the form of an impairment
test, marketability reductions and loss-free valuation.

Finished goods and goods for sale are valued at costs of purchase cr the lower market value on the cut-off date.




Accounts receivable and other assets

Accounts receivable and other assets are stated at their nominal value. Recognisable individual risks are
taken into account through the formation of suitable valuation allowances, the general credit risk from
accounts receivable is covered by a general bad-debt allowance.

QOutstanding debts with 2 residual term of over one year are discounted.

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

The share capital comprises 28,416,629 no-par-value bearer shares, each with a pro rata value of € 1.00.
This is stated at the nominal value.

Accrued liabilities and other liabilities
Provisions
Provisions for pensions and similar obligations are valued at their actuarial cash value pursuant to Art. 6a EstG

(German Income Tax Act) using the Heubeck Guidefine Tables 1998 with an assumed rale of interest of 6%.

Accruals for a deferred compensation programme (postponed remuneration) were equivalent to the asset

values of the reinsurance at Gerling Lebensversicherungs-AG.

The formation of other provisions takes into account the recognisable risks and uncertain liabilities. These
are of an amount deemed necessary in accordance with prudent commercial judgement. Accruals for partial
retirement and anniversary bonuses were valued according to actuarial principles.

Liobilities
Liabilities are stated at their individual repayment sum.

Conversion to foreign currency

Accounts receivable were converted at the acquisition exchange rate or at the lower conversion rate on the
balance-sheet date or at the forward exchange rate / worst case with foreign exchange options in the event
of an existing hedging.

The conversion of liabilities is at the repayment exchange rate upon accrual of the liabilities or at the higher
conversion rate on the balance sheet date.




Comments on individual balance sheet items
(6) Fixed assets

The movement of individual fixed assets in the financial year 2003/2004 is to be seen in Appendix 1 to
these notes.

Accruals to intangible assets are mainly attributable to the acquisition of rights of patent use.

In addition to the transfer of service and study equipment to fixed assets, capital expenditure in the financial
year was incurred for the main part for tool and other capital equipment for the start of serial production
of new products.

Additions to "shares in affiliated undertakings” are derived from the acquisition of 100% of the shares in
hiko medical communication GmbH, Pirmasens (now Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH). Retirements under
"Other loans” mainly relate to the repayment of a long-term account receivable.

Other assets

(7) Inventories

Inventories (€ 19.040 million) include cumulated valuation allowances of € 4.436 million.

(8) Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable on the balance sheet date amounted to € 8.765 million and included cumulated
individual valuation adjustments and general bad-debt alfowances of € 8.895 million.

The portion of accounts receivable with a residual term of more than one year amounting to € 393,000
includes a discount of € 12,000.

{9) Accounts receivable from / liabilities due to affiliated companies

The balances disclosed mainly comprise sales and services as well as the debt to the group treasury of the
Carl Zeiss Group to the amount of € 11.523 million




(10) Other assets

Other assets comprised for the main part grants due from the Thiringer Aufbaubank towards R&D costs
(€ 538,000).

(11) Cash on hand and cash in banking accounts

The increase in cash and cash equivalents is mainly attributable to the payment of a dividend by US subsidiary
Carl Zeiss Meditec dnc. {net cash inflow € 8.301 million), the positive operative cash flow of Carl Zeiss
Meditec AG and continued measures to optimise working capital.

(12) Prepayments and accrued income

For the main part these consist of accrued holiday pay and pre-paid insurance premiums.

(13) Shareholdérs' equity

Share capital
Share capital remains unchanged compared 1o the previous year at € 28.417 million.

Additional paid-in capital
Additional paid-in capital was reduced by the amount transferred to reserves for treasury stock (€ 70,000)
to € 152.002 miltion.

(14) Accrued expenses

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

These provisions were formed for the Carl Zeiss Group's pension obligations pursuant to the Benefit
Regulations 2000 and the Pension Regulations 1982. The actuarial report for the assessment of pension
obligations as of 30 September 2004 was prepared by Dr. Dr. Heissmann GmbH, Wiesbaden.

The item also includes a provision for a deferred compensation programme (postponed remuneration,
€ 111,000).




Other provisions

These were formed in particular for contingent fiabilities from:

- Warranties (€ 2.570 million),

- Special payments and commissions to employees (€ 1.530 million),
- Litigation risks (€ 1.096 million)

- Qutstanding invoices (€ 1.014 million),

- Other provisions relating to personnel (€ 934,000)

- Partial retirement (€ 646,000},

(15) Liabilities

Liabilities of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG are exclusively unsecured liabilities amounting to € 9.513 million with
a residual term of less than one year and € 49,000 with a residual term of more than one year.

{16) Trade accounts payable

These encompass the usual obligations in the form of trade payables to outside suppliers and accrued commissions.

(17) Other liabilities

In addition to liabilities from sacial security contributions (€ 385,000), withheld wage and church tax
(€ 230,000) and payable import sales tax (€ 447,000), other liabilities mainly comprise liabilities from the
accounts receivable sub-ledger (€ 164,000) and security deposits (€ 67,000).



(18) Deferred income

These mainly relate to deferred income for service and maintenance contracts extending beyond the
financial year.

(19) Balance sheet notes in accordance with Art. 251 HGB

Liabilities from guarantees and warranty agreements
As of 30 September 2004 liabilities of € 484,000 existed from guarantees and warranty agreements,
€ 325,000 ther2of fin favour of affiliated companies.

Other financial obligations
The sums for leasing commitments were calculated using the earliest possible termination dates or the end
of the contractual term. The nominal amounts were used as a basis for calculation.

The following financial obligations exist from rental agreements:

€000

Due 2004/2005 - thereof to affiliated companies: 895
Due 2005/2006 — thereof to affiliated companies: 895
Due 2006/2007 - thereof to affiliated companies: 447

For the main part, financial commitments from rental agreements relate to the lease of production and office
space from Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH, Carl-Zeiss-Promenade 10, Jena.



The following financial obligations enstte from leasing and service agreements:

€000

Due 2004/2005 — thereof to affiliated companies: 539

Due 2005/2006 — thereof to affiliated companies; 539 728
Due 2006/2007 - thereof to affiliated companies: 539 651
Due 2007/2008 - thereof to affiliated companies: 539 543

Due 2008/2009 - thereof to affiliated companies: 539 539
Due after 2008/2009 — thereof to affiliated companies: 5,528 5,528

8,765

To a large extent these relate to the lease of the property at Goschwitzer Str. 51-52 from AM Asset
Management Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Jena, and motor vehicle leases.

Purchase obligations

Financial obligations of € 47,000 are in the form of commitments for investments.

Comments on individual items on the income statement

{20) Sales revenues by region

Germany 11,542 18,508
Europe, not including Germany 43,295 41,510
Asia / Pacific region (including Africa) 23277
America m

‘




Sales revenues by segment

Vison 9,880
Senvice ‘ 1737
Other {discontinued business activities) — 4,243
108,953 102,860
(21) Cost of materials
€0 R,
a) Cost of raw materials, consumables and supplies, 51035 46,074
and of purchased goods
b) Cost of purchased services 13495 16,532
(22) Personnel expenses
3) Wages and salaries 15,309
b} Social security and pension Costs 2,669 2,918
— of which in respect of old-age pensions L 142 147
RN 18,207

(23) Other operating income

Other operating income (€ 2.232 million) mainly comprises currency gains (€ 1.419 million) and revenue
from the recovery of costs (€ 260,000).

Income totalling € 195,000 is not related to the accounting period.



{24) Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses (£ 2.411 million) consist mainly of foreign currency losses (€ 972,000). Expenses

totalling € 610,000 are not related to the accounting period.

(25) Income from investments and participations

This is a dividend payment by the American subsidiary to the amount of US-$ 10.5 million shown as

revenue in the financial year 2003/2004.

(26) Extraordinary result

In the previous year, extraordinary expenses related exclusively to the disposal of the peripheral Aesthetic

and Dental activities.

(27) Taxes on income and earnings

The latter relates to foreign withholding tax paid on the dividend of the US subsidiary as well as German

corporation and trade tax.

(28) Details of sharehoidings

Name and domicile of the company

Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc,

Dublin, USA

Asclepion-Meditec, S.R.L,

Milan, ltaly*

AM Asset Management
Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH, Jena, Germany
Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH, Pirmasens
Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Ltd.

Tokyo, Japan

* The figutes relate (o the liquidation Lalance cheet as of 31 March 2004

Currency

Us-$"000
€000
€'000

€'000
€000

¥'000
€000

Share of SHareholders equity thereof profitloss for
voting asof 30.09.2004  2003/2004 financial year
capital translated at the at average annual 1ate

% market rate on the
balance sheet date
100

100




AM Asset Management Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH, Jena, is a purpose-tied company for the construction and
leasing of an office’building with production facility at the Jena-Goschwitz location of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.
Carl Zeiss Meditec has been leasing the office building with production facility since 01 October 2001.

On 17 December 2003 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG acquired a 100% interest in the former hiko medical commu-
nication GmbH neadguartered in Pirmasens. The company, now operating under the name Carl Zeiss Meditec
Systems GmbH, specialises in the development of medical software solutions.

The holding in Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Ltd., Tokyo, Japan, was acquired by Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd., Tokyo, Japan
with effect from 1 November 2002 at its book value. Due to Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd.'s entitlement to preferred
shares, for at least the three financial years following the acquisition date Carl Zeiss Meditec will receive
only 34% of the future dividend payments of its Japanese subsidiary. The preferred shares were conveyed
as compensation for advance services performed by Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd. in the field of marketing, establishment
of a service structure and support for the approval of Carl Zeiss Meditec products.

(29) Particulars of personnel

Workforce size

The Company's annual average warkforce in the financial year 2003/2004 stood at 283 persons {previous
year: 325), of which 22 were trainees (previous year: 25). The decline in the workforce was to a large extent
attributable to the disposal of the Aesthetic and Dental business units as of 1 May 2003 and the related
transfer of personnel who have been included proportionately in the calculation of average workforce for
2002/2003.

The annual average number of employees in the foliowing sectors was:

Sector Nummber of employees
Production

Sales and Service
Administration and Quality Management

7
&
Total 283

Research and Development

As at the balance sheet date, 30 September 2004, there were 282 employees plus 21 trainees.



(30) Employee participation programme

The Management Board is authorised by the resclution adopted on the extraordinary shareholders' meeting
on 10 March 2000, subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, to issue in one or more tranches up
to 400,000 option rights to purchase bearer shares in the Company from contingent capital to entitled
employees and members of the Management Board of the former Asclepion Group — whose employment
relationship has now passed over to the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group — within the framework of a stock option

plan. Each option represents the right 1o buy one share in the Company at the “subscription price” (basic value).
The recipients are not required to pay a fee for the option rights granted.

In the financial year 2003/2004 no options were exercised by employees.

(31) Particulars of the executive bodies of the Company

Management Board
The following persons were appointed to the Management Board of Carl Zeiss Medilec AG in the financial
year 2003/2004 and their names recorded in the commercial register:

- Ulrich Krauss, Dipl.-Kaufmann (MBA), Weimar
President and CEO, responsible for Sales, Marketing, Service, HR, Refractive
Surgery and Business Development,
as of 1 October 2004 also responsible for Quality and Product Management,
Research and Development,
Other mandates.
Member of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc., Dublin, USA,
Member of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec, Co. ttd., Tokyo, Japan

- Bernd Hirsch, Dipl.-Kaufmann (MBA), Weimar
Member of the Management Board, responsible for Finances, Investor Relations, IT and Legal Affairs,
since 1 October 2004 also responsible for Logistics and Production, Research and Development,
Other mandates.
Managing Director of AM Asset Management GmbH, Jena,
Member of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec, Co. Ltd., Tokyo, Japan



- Dr. Walter-Gerhard Wrobel, Physicist, Jena (until 30 September 2004)
Member of the Management Board, responsible for Logistics and Production, Research
and Development, Quality and Product Management

The active members of the Management Board received a total remuneration of £ 668,000 for the
financial year 2003/2004.

Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in the financial year 2003/2004 consisted of the
following members:

- Dr. Michael Kaschke, Oberkochen
Member of the Management Board of the Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkochen
Chairman of the Supervisory Board,
Other mandates:
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc., Dublin, USA
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Optical, Inc., Chester, USA
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Australia Pty. Ltd., Camperdown, Australia
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Co. Ltd., Tokyo, fapan
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Surgical, Inc., Thornwood, USA
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Pte. Lid., Singapore
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss India Pte. Ltd., Singapore
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Co. Ltd., Seoul, South Korea
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Far East Co., Ltd., Kowloon, Hongkong
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss (Pty) Ltd., Randburg, South Africa
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Financial Services GmbH, Oberkochen
Member of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Semiconductor Manufacturing
Technologies AG, Oberkochen
Member of the Supervisory Board of Hensoldt AG, Wetzlar
Member of the Supervisory Board of Siltronic AG, Munich
Chairman of SPECTARIS, the German Industrial Association for Optical,
Medical and Mechatronicical Technologies, Berlin.



- Alexander von Witzleben, Weimar

Chairman of the Management Board of Jenoptik AG, Jena,

Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board,

Other mandates:

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Analytik Jena AG, Jena

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Meissner+Wurst Zander Holding AG, Stuttgart
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of PVA Tepla AG, Asslar

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of DEWB AG, Jena

Member of the Supervisory Board of Krone GmbH, Berlin

Member of the Administrative Board of Feintool International Holding AG, Lyss.

- Dr. Franz-Ferdinand von Falkenhausen, lena

Managing Director of Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH, Jena

Member of the Supervisory Board (until 30 September 2004),

Other mandates:

Member of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Semiconductor Manufacturing
Technologies AG, Oberkochen

Member of the Supervisory Board of FC Carl Zeiss Jena, Jena

President of the IHK (Chamber of Commerce) East Thuringia, Gera

Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Fraunhofer Institute (I0F), Jena
Member of the Board of Trustees of Innovent Jena e V., Jena

Chairman of the Adviscry Board of the Thiiringer Aufbaubank, Erfurt
Member of the Advisory Board of ZSP Geadatische System GmbH, Jena (Trimble Group)
Member of the Advisory Board of AlZ Engineering GmbH, Jena

Member of the Advisory Board “East” of Dresdner Bank AG

Member of the Advisory Board "fast” of Deutsche Bank AG

Member of the Advisory Board of Ernst-Abbe-Stiftung

Member of the State Board of Trustees Saxony-Anhalt / Thuringia of the
Founders” Association for German Science

Member of the Board of Trustees of the Jena Polytechnic College.

- Dr. Manfred Fritsch, Kieinpiirschiitz bei Jena

Member of the Supervisory Board,

Other mandates.

Member of the Supervisory Board of Messe AG, Erfurt,

Member of the Board of the Kompetenznetz Optische Technologie OptoNet eV, Jena,
Chairman of the Advisory Board Verkehrslandebahn Schangleina GmbH, Schéngleina.



- Dr. Markus 'Guthoff, Krefeld
Member of the Board of the IKB Deutsche Industriebank AG,
Member of the Supervisory Board (since 1 October 2004)
Other mandates:
Chairman of the Advisory Board of IKB Private Equity GmbH, Disseldorf
Chairman of the Advisory Board of IKB Data GmbH, Disseldorf
Member of the Supervisory Board of MetaDesign AG, Berlin
Member of the Supervisory Board of Argantis GmbH, Cologne
Member of the Advisory Board of Poppe & Potthoff, Werther
Member of the Board of IKB Capital Corporation, New York, USA.

- Withelm Burmeister, Jena
Group Manager Manufacturing Control and Chairman of the Works Council of
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, lena,
Member of the Supervisory Board on behalf of the employees (since 1 October 2004)
no other mandates.

- Jurgen Domel, Jena
Chairman of the Group Works Council of Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkochen,
Chairman of the Works Council at Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH, Jena,
Member of the Supervisory Board on behalf of the employees (until 30 September 2004}
Qther mandates:
Member of Ihe Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH, Jena,
Member of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkochen

- Franz-Jorg Stiindel, Jena
Service Engineer at Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena,
Member of the Works Council of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena,
Member of the Supervisory Board on behalf of the employees
no other mandates.

The aclive members of the Supervisory Board received a total remuneration of € 130,000 for the 2003/2004
financial year. The-amount of fixed and variable remuneration of individual members of the Supervisory
Board is calculated in compliance with the Company's articles of association,



Advances / loans and contingent liabilities in favour of members of executive bodies
No advances or loans have been granted to members of the executive bodies. The Company has not entered

into any contingent liabilities in favour of members of the Management Board / Supervisory Board.

{32) German Corporate Governance Code / Declaration according to Art. 161 AktG
{Stock Corporation Act)

The declaration mandated under Art. 161 AktG was made available to the Management and Supervisory
Boards and the shareholders.

(33) Appropriation of profits for the financial year 2003/2004

The financial year 2003/2004 closed with a net income of € 13.231 million. The Management Board proposes

that the accumulated earnings of € 13.073 million be carried forward to new account.

Jena, 8 November 2004
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG

- /¢ ,"‘/ 7 - /‘/v ///
v A SR s -~
i
Ulrich Krauss Bernd Hirsch
President and CEO Member of the Management Board



Audit opinion

We have audited the annual financial statements of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena, as well as the accounting and manage-
ment report of the Company, for the financial year from 1 October 2003 to 30 September 2004. The maintenance of
books and records and the preparation of the annual financial statements and management report in accordance with
German commercial faw and supplementary provisions in the articles of association are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual financial statements, together with

the bookkeeping system, and the management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the annuzl financial statements in accordance with Art. 317 HGB (German Commercial
Code) and the generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der
Wirtschaftspriifer (IDW, German Institute of Auditors). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such
that misstatements materiatly affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations
in the annual financial statements in accordance with the principles of proper accounting and in the management
report are detected 'with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and fegal environ-
ment of the Company and evaluations of possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit
procedures. The effectivness of the internal contro! system and evidence supporting the disclosures in the books and
records, the annual financial statements and the management report are examined primarily on a test basis within the
framewaork of the audit. The audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual financial statements and management
report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our opinion has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results
of operations of Car! Zeiss Meditec AG. On the whole the management report provides a suitable understanding of the
Company’s position and suitably presents the risks of future development.

Stuttgart, 10 November 2004

Prof. Dr. Binder, Dr. Dr. Hillebrecht & Partner GmbH

Wirtschaftsprifungsgeselischaft
Steuerberatungsgeselischaft

(% -

Schupeck Barth
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer
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The financial year 2003/2004

The most important facts
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flew product strategy further successfully implemented: 6 new produdts faunched

Targeted additions to product pertiolio strengthen the Company’s leading mart et position

Financial year 20032004 financial year 2002/2003

Conschdated 2134878 235714 -0 3%
Gross margin 43.5% +2.9%-pts.
Earnirgs beicre interest and taxes (BT 26,375 24723 RALE]
EBIT margin 2% 10.5% +0.7%-pts.
Conselidated nel incore 17,810 5,558 +97.3%
Return on sales 2.8% +2.6%-pts.
Earnings per share €025 +76.0%
30.69.2004 30.09.2003 Change
Cash and cash equivalents 45,015 +10.5%
Net cash and cash equivalents 77,100 57,067 +35.1%
Trade accounts receivable' 34,806 38,706 -10.1%
Days of Sales Qutstanding (DS0) 53.3 days 59.1 days -9.8%
Inventory 38611 11.6%
Nt working cpita 4013 217%
Liabilities 78,260 81,298 -3.7%
Nt debt 24,198 95.2%
Equity ratio 59.0% +2.1%pts.
Financial year 2003/2004 Financial year 2002/2003 Change
Cash flow from operating activilics 31,597 28,056 +12.6%
Cashflow 7 sales 11.9% +1.6%-pts.

1 Thereof from third porties: € 26.243 miliion (3¢ Septemner 2004; and € 30.344 mijiion (30 Septemper 20031

Overview of

business development
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By successfully exploiting our internal and external growth options we have strengthened and expanded

our position as the leading manufacturer of ophthalmic systems and devices in the financial year 2003/2004.

Our vision of helping each individual to acliieve perfect eyesight is the prime motivator driving our actions.
In the financial year 2003/2004 we passed many important milestones and launched new initiatives,

showing that we are well on the way to achieving this ambitious goal.

We are keeping a close eye on developments in our market and will continue to actively shape it. We
will systematically extend our product range and strengthen the presence of our Company in attractive

market segments.

The high awareness of the “Zeiss™ brand, our unique product portfolio, our great innovative power and
the resulting outstanding market position form the basis for our expansion plans. As a company with
high asset value and promising growth prospects, we are building upon the indispensable knowledge,

experience and commitment of our employees.

In this way — as in the past — we will endeavour to combine success and responsibility in the future.



The eye and its ailments

“During the course of his or her life, each individual will be confronted with impaired eyesight.
It is therefore a top priority to make people aware that early detection is the most important factor
in treating serious eye disorders” Prof. med. Anselm Kampik, Professor for Ophthalmology

at the Ludwig Maximilian University , Munich.

Vision defects: In the case of vision (refraction) defects, the shape of the eye deviates from its ideal form. in
short-sighted people, for instance, the distance from the front to the back of the eyeball is too long, whereas in
long-sighted individuals it is too short. The result is that the light beams are not properly focused onto the retina.
And, as a consequence, people with such defects have blurred long-distance or close-up vision. In the case of
astigmatism, a particular form of vision defect, the light beams are refracted differently at different levels, causing them
to be focused onto the retina in a diffuse pattern. Objects then appear distorted. As an alternative to spectacles

and contact lenses, modern laser techniques are now capable of correcting vision defects in the cornea.

Cornea

Transparent tissue
forming the outer part
of the eye.




Cataract: Cataract is the name given to clouding of the eye lens, which shouid normally be clear. There are
different possible causes of cataract; the most common being age-related lens clouding. The treatment of
cataract is the most commonly performed eye operation in the world. In the course of the operation the opaque
natural lens of the fuman eye is replaced by an artificial lens. The probzbility of suffering from cataract increases
disproportionately from the age of 65. The Medicare health scheme in the US alone already spends USS 3 biltion
each year on treating cataracts.

Glaucoma: Glaucoma is the name given to all eye disorders which involve an increase in intraocular pressure
(although in isolated cases this is not always a symptom), and which reduce visual acuity by destroying the optic
nerves, thereby leading to blindness. In industrialised countries, glaucoma is the second most common cause of
blindness. The probability of suffering from glaucoma increases disproportionately from around the age of 60.
Worldwide it is estimated that over 60 million people suffer from glaucoma, with nearly half of them unaware
of their condition! The course of the disease can be suppressed, but not cured.

Retinal disorders: The retina plays an important role in eyesight. Retinal disorders such as age-related macular
degeneration (AMD) or dizbetic retinopathy often lead to major impairment of eyesight, or even blindness. The

progress of a retinal disorder can be suppressed but not cured, i.e. it is a progressive, degenerative disorder.

Age-related macular degeneration (AMD) is the main cause of blindness in people over 50 in the industrialised
countries. The number of people in industrialised countries who have become blind as the result of AMD is
already larger than that caused by glaucoma and cataract combined.
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Forward-looking statements

This Annual Report contairis certain forward-fooking statements including statements using the
words “believe”, “assume”; “expect” and similar tormulations. Such forward-looking statements
include known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may lead to actual
fusture results, the financial position, development or performance of the Group or the refevant
sectors differing essentially trom those expressly or implicitly assumed in these statements.
Among these factors are ‘those which are in the identified risk report of the consolidated
management report and other faciors named in this Annual Repoit. Against the background
of these uncertainties, some the forward-looking statements could possibly not apply. The
Company does not assume any other obligation than thase in accordance with legal
requirements to keep these forward-looking statements in the tuture and to adoept them to future
events of developments.

This Annual Report does not constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to purchase
any securities of Carl Zeiss Meditec Aktiengesellschaft in the United States of America or
in any other junsdiction in which such offer ar solicitation is not authonzed or to any person
1o whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. Readers of this Annual Report

are requested to inform themseives about to observe any such restrictions.
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How successful was the financial year 2003/2004
for Carl Zeiss Meditec? The letter to the shareholders
contains a brief assessment of our Company’s
business trends. Additionally, the chapter “The
Carl Zeiss Meditec share” provides you with an
overview of the performance of Carl Zeiss Meditec

shares and our 1nvestor relations activities.
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Dear Shareholders,
Ladies and Gentlemen,

"A successful period on the way to achieving ambitious growth targets.” — this summarises the financial year
2003/2004. We have created 2 solid internal basis for acceierating our growth in the future. In addition to a
further improvement in our net worth, financial position and earnings we were thus able to attain significant
efficiency improvements in the sequence of internal operations. Furthermore, we have successiully exploited
external growth options: After careful consideration we have decided to strengthen and expand Carl Zeiss
Meditec's long-term market position as a provider of ophthalmic solutions with twa technology acquisitions
and a structural adjustment in sales. Our Company already has the broadest portfolio of systems and devices
available on the market today. It extends from the early detection of serious eye diseases such as glaucoma or
age-related macular degeneration through the monitoring and management of these ailments right through to the
treatment and diagnosis of refractive defects and cataracts.

We are proud of the pasitive business pecformance of Cart Zeiss Meditec in the periad under review. Ta a large

partitis founded on the motivation, commitment and willingness of the entire workforce at Carl Zeiss Meditec.

The key results of the financial year 2003/2004 are evidence of our Company’s economic strength and iltustrate
the potential Carl Zeiss Meditec has at its disposal. At € 234.9 million sales were at the same level as in the
previous year (€ 235.7 million), The underlying organic growth in sales thus enabled us to almost fully
compensate for the negative effects of exchange rates, primarily due to the loss in value of the US dollar
against the euro. The significance of this for the Company becomes apparent if we consider that after conversion
to euros the value of each US dollar earned in the financial year 2003/2004 was about 12% lower than in the
previous year. Furthermore, if the sales attained in the previous year from supplies for other manufacturers
- 50 called OEM contracts — terminated at the beginning of the financial year 2003/2004 are adjusted, on a
comparable basis to the previous year (“like for like") the actual growth in sales is 12.3%. Earnings before inte-
rest and income taxes (EBIT) rose to € 26.3 million compared to the previous year (€ 24.7 million). The EBIT
margin thus increased from 10.5% to 11.2%. The basis for this was a significantly improved gross margin of
46.4% (previous year: 43.5%). Consolidated net income almost doubled from € 6.6 million in the previous year
to € 12.6 miltion. Thanks to this development and a successful working capital management, operating cash
flow once again showed an increase over the previous year. The former rose by 12.6% from € 28.1 million in
the previous year to € 31.6 million. Despite the costs of an acquisition, cash and cash equivalents thus increased
to € 49.8 million (previous year: € 45.0 million). To this must be added € 27.4 million in treasury assets, so that
as of the balance sheet date net cash and cash equivalents reached the record level of € 77.1 million (previous
year: € 57.1 million).




Overall, thanks to the results achieved in the financial year 2003/2004 we see ourselves in an excellent position
to double our sales until the end of the 2007/2008" financial year. For this purpose we will exploit both the
internally generated potential and external growth options. At the same time profit-making potential is to be
expanded significantly: The gross margin (gross profit margin} should at this point in time be about 50% and
the EBIT margin about 15%.

The main focusas of our investor relations work in the reporting period were the positioning of Carl Zeiss
Meditec shares as a sound investment with attractive growth potential and the intensive maintenance and
expansion of the circle of shareholders. Based on the successes achieved in this area — notably the inclusion in
the research coverage of renowned banks and the increased share trading volume — we will press ahead with
our strategic goal of securing admission to the TecDAX index.

We hope you find the Annual Report an inspirational reading. At the same time we invite you 10 enter into a
dialogue with us. Openness and fairness have always been the hallmarks of our communication policy: we look
forward to receiving your suggestions, wishes and questions. We would be delighted if you would accompany

us on our path into the future.

Sincerely yours,

Yo s ’ ZLV‘,/ T
K ’,, — s "/ ’///
&/%”/ ////, v s C e
11
Ulrich Krauss Bernd Hirsch
President and CEO Member of the

Management Board

1 Reference: consoliddied raies in the financial year 2062/2003
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The Carl Zeiss Meditec share

General performance: Market overall in sideward trend -
good performance of small and mid-caps

The powerful upturn in the global economy that lasted until the spring of 2004 has since slowed down. Growth
in the USA and China, in particular, has tailed off considerably. in the USA financial policy moves to stimuiate
the economy have now run their course, and in China administrative measures have been taken to rein in
the exuberant economy. This worldwide slowing down is also reflected in the financial markets. The stock
markets which had shown a slight recovery up until the spring had again weakened considerably by the
summer hak-year.’ The DAX has meanwhile recovered and is being quoted above the level from the beginning
of 2004. In contrast, the performance of the TecDAX was weaker — it has not yet been able to recover from the
losses suffered in July and August 2004.

On the other hand, companies with a low to medium market capitalisation ~ so-called small and mid-caps
— in part showed an above-average improvement in value. This is demanstrated by the performance of the
respective SDAX and MDAX indices. Bank analysts expect selected small and mid-caps to continue this trend.
Many of these companies are on an attractive valuation level: In terms of actual growth in profits, the existing
absolute and relative valuations in this segment offer investment opportunities which are among the most
attractive in Europe
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Carl Zeiss Meditec shares

1. Performance significantly improved

In the financial year 2003/2004 Carl Zeiss Meditec shares experienced a sidewards trend. Following the 52-week
high of € 13.54 on 30 fanuary 2004 and a slight decline from March 2004 onwards, the share price persisted
at between € 10.00 and € 11.45, without exhibiting a specific trend. It repeatedly failed to break through
the important 100-day line, so that there was no sustained change in this movement pattern. Reports on the
achievement of strategic milestones® which will further improve the company’s potential sales and earnings
capacity had no initial effect. However, there was a sharp rise in the price of Carl Zeiss Meditec shares follo-
wing the announcement of the preliminary figures for the financial year 2003/2004 on 22 November 2004 and
the publication of new company reports by atmost all banking houses which cover the Company in the area of
equity research. The appreciation in share value in November 2004 thus amounted to 15.0%

—
Relative perfc;vrmgnce of Carl Zeiss Meditec shares

+23.9%

Financial year 2003/2004 Financial year 2004/2005
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Overall, the performance of Carl Zeiss Meditec shares in the period 1 October 2003° to 30 November 2004
outperformed the TecDAX technology index. Whereas the TecDAX grew by 3.9%, the price of our Company’s
shares increased by 8.4%. (t thus made up for a performance lag of 5.9% points compared to the TecDAX which
still existed at the end of the financial year 2003/2004 ending 30 September 2004,

2. Trading liquidity successfully increased
The improvement in trading liquidity of Carl Zeiss Meditec shares was and is a major goal in our investor relations
work, for it is one of the important factors in investment decisions — particularly with institutional investors.

tn the past few months there has been a significant increase in the trading liguidity of Carl Zeiss Meditec shares
on the two most important markets, XETRA and the Frankfurt trading floor. Compared to the average daily
trading of 13,956 shares in the financial year 2003/2004 on both market places, the volume traded from
1 October to 30 November 2004 had increased by 42.0% to 19,806 shares.

At the same time a further goal in our investor relations work was achieved in this connection: to tie up trading
to the XETRA system at the German Stock Exchange. Amang other things due to its flexibility, superior order
processing and commissions structure, the XETRA system is the preferential trading platform for institutional
investors. Accordingly, it is important to guarantee a larger trading liquidity, particularly here. The XETRA
portion of average datly trading volume in Carl Zeiss Meditec shares increased from 62.4% in the financial
year 2003/2004 o 77.5% in the period 1 October to 30 November 2004.

4 Eeanining cof the fingndiat year 200502064
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Further systematic expansion of investor relations activities

We have continued to expand our investor relalions activities in the financial year 2003/2004. An important
aspect of this was the goal-directed marketing of our shares to institutional investors, particularly in Europe.
In addition, we presented Carl Zeiss Meditec to fund and portfolio managers in a series of roadshows.
Besides Germany, a regional focus was also placed on Switzerland, France, Denmark, the Netherlands and the
United Kingdom.

Furthermore, we have been able 1o boost our Company's financial-analytical support — equity research
coverage ~ by reputable international banks. This has fusther improved the degree lo which our Company
is familiar to institutional investors in Europe and beyond. Currently Carl Zeiss Meditec is currently covered by
nine banks in equity research.

Development of daily trading

volumes of Carl Zeiss Meditec chares

in the penod t October

30 November
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Analysts
Citigroup Smith Barney Michaet Gallagher, Tina Coombes
Cammerzbank Securities Burkhard Weiss
Deutsche Bank Frank Siebrecht
DZ Bank Dr Patrick Fuchs
Equinet Volker Braun
Fiest Berlin Gerard Reid
LBBW Dr Alexander Burger
Nord/LB Ansgar Rauch
Sal. Oppenheim Dr Markus Kedmer, Ludger Mues

Currenl investment 1ating (date) / Previous invesiment rating

Buy {29.11.2004} 7 Buy
Overweight (29.11.2004) / Equal weight
Buy {23.11,2004) { Neyteal

Buy {23.08.2004) / Buy
Buy (29.11.2004) ¢ Buy
Buy (22.11.2004}! Buy

A further outcome of our investor relations work was an improvement in the underlying technical conditions for

trading Carl Zeiss Meditec shares. With effect from 1 October 2004 a new designated sponsor has been

engaged, particularly for the purposes of quoting prices at XETRA and Frankiurt floor trading and keeping the

respective order books. The improved underlying technical conditions have aiso had a positive influence on

the trading liguidity of our shares.

Trading segment

Price development
Share price at the beginning of the financial year 2003/2004*
Share price at the end of the financial year 2003/2004~
Share price on 30.11.2004”
Highest price in the financial year 2003/2004*
. Lowest price in the financial year 200312004~
Shateholder structure:
Free float
Carl Zeiss AG
Management and Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG
Evaluation:
Market capitalisation of share capital as of 30,11.2004"
Market capitalisation of free float as of 30.11.2004

Designated sponsorss:

"XETRA

] |

N . Frime Standard

€10.60
€10.09
€11.49
€13.54

€9.95

~1

Commerzbank AG,
Seydler AG
{as bom 01,10.7004)




Outlook

The main thrust of our investor relations work remains ensuring censistent, open and instant communication
with the capital market environments. The aim of this work is to make Carl Zeiss Meditec shares even more
attractive. In the financial year 2004/2005 particular attention will be paid to a continued improvement in the
trading liquidity of our shares and the optimisation of our shareholder structure. The admission 10 the TecDAX
technology index remains the strategic goal of our investor relations work.

| §
Caril Zeiss Mec:lit c: Aspet value with good growth perspectives

- Good market position and «xceflent prerequisites for playing an active role in
industry consolidation:
- *Zeiss” as a prestigious and renowned brand
- Efficient global sales network
- Strong innovative po wer

- Consistent and distinct improvement in earnings and profits

- Healthy balance sheet structure:
- Equity ratio at 61.1%
- High level of nét cash and cash equivalents amounting
to 35.8% of batance sheet total
- No net financial debt:

- Excellent mid-term growth perspectives in the current market and
the adjacent ophthalmic su ‘gery market




In the ophthalmic market




We have reinforced and expanded our position

as the world’s leading manufacturer of ophthalmic
systetns and devices in the fmancial year 2003/2004.
Inn the chapters “Initiatives in the financial year
2003/2004” and “Market and competition”

we inform you of the events which have
contributed to this, in which fields we are

operating and witich relevant trends exist there.

In chapter “Growth strategy at Carl Zeiss Meditec” we

discuss the basis of our strategy and its components.
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Initiatives in the financial year 2003/2004'

Products

F

29 October 2003

Dublin, USA

29 October 2003,
Dublin, USA

Market launch: following extensive
clinical research, the new Glaucoma
Progression Analysis™ (GPA™) software
for the Humphrey® field Analyzer is
now availabie to pracutioners. Due to
its even more accurale measurement
of glaucoma progressian, it aflows
practitioners 10 make better treatment

decisions on an abjective basis.

The following inttiatives ai2 not comprehensive.

Pirmasens, Germany

April 2004,

Pirmasens, Germany

With the VISUPAC™ 4.0 data
management softwase it 15 possible to
inteligently combine different diagnostic
systems, such as fundus cameras and
the STRATUSac:™ system and, moreover,
to link these up 10 practice management

and hospital information systems.

14 May 2004

Jena, Germany

14 May 2004,

Jena, Germany

Market launch: The new PreViewPHP™
diagnostic device lor the early
recognition of serious eye ailments is
launched in Europe and Japan. The
device permits earlier treatment of
age-related macular degeneration
(AMD) and thus contributes to
preserving good wision. According
to the American Academy of
Ophthalmology (AAQ), AMD 15 the
most common cause of blindness in
the over-fifties and currently atfecis

of 25 million people worlgwide.



Anaheim, USA

26 November 2003,
Anaheim, USA

AAD: (arl Zeiss Meditec impresses the
number one ophthalmelogy congress
in the world, the AAD in the USA,
with @ new corporate presentation

and numerous new producis.

Jena and Pirmasens,
Germany

17 December 2003,
Jena and Pirmasens,

Germany

Acquisition: Carl Zeiss Meditec acquires
a 100% holding in hiko medical
communication GmbH. The Pirmasens-
based company now operates under
the name Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems
GmbH and is specialised in the
development of special ophthalmic

cross-platform software solutions



Jena, Germany

19 March 2004,

Jena, Germany

Second Annual General Meeting:
Carl Zeiss Meditet AG shareholders
give the go-ahead for further growth.
A large majority votes in favour of
continuing with the existing corporate
growth plans and authorises the
Management Board 10 increase the
share capital from its current evel of

€ 28.4 million by up to € 13.2 million

Jena, Germany

29 April 2004,

Jena, Germany

Celebration: The refractive laser team

celebrates the delivery of the 100th

MEL 80™ with a small reception at
the production plant. The system in
question is destined for a customer in
China — highlighting the growing
significance of the Far East market
for the laser business. 17 of these
systems have already been sold to
China since the MEL 80™ was
granted approval in September
2003. The aim is to further capitalise
on this success 1n the financial year

2004/2005

Nuremberg, Germany

25 June 2004,

Nuremberg, Germany

Symposium: Recognised specialists
discuss the future of ophthaimology
at the 2nd Ophthalmology Forum
organised by Carl Zeiss Meditec.
The forum analyses the dynamic
relationship between nnovation and
cost-cutting in medicine and the
significance of early dragnosis as 3
crucial element in ihe battle against
eye disorders. “If doctors, ophthalmic
equipment producers and patients
join their forces, they can contribute to
securing the future of ophthaimology,”
is how Dr. Markus Kraemer, equity
analyst at Bankhaus Sal Oppenheim,

summed up the current situation.



Athens, Greece

30 Jjuly 2004,

Athens, Greece

Otympia 2004. Carl Zeis< Meditec
provides ophthaimology practice
devices and systems in the
“Deutsches Haus” for the duration
of the Olympic Games. All the
athletes and visitors can have a
check-up or, in th2 event of an acute
disorder, be treated professionally
using devices provided by the leading

system provides.

Paris, France

18 September 2004,

Paris, France

Launch of patient marketing:
Carl Zeiss Medited's basic patient
marketing package was unveiled at
the ESCRS, the largest European
ophthalmolagy trade fair. The package
contains materials designed to help
doctors give patients full information
on modern laser correction of vision
defects  while  marketing this
treatment more actively and more

broadly than was previously possible.
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Tokyo, Japan

12 December 2003,
Tokyo, Japan

Significant victory: Following the
completion of a twelve-month clinical
study, the Japanese Ministry of
Health has granted market approval
to the Carl Zeiss Meditec VISULAS™
690s laser, as the only devic2 certified
for the photodynamic therapy (PDT)
tieatment of age-related macular
degeneration (AMD)..In April 2004
the fapanese hezlth authonty also
confirmed that patients can now
claim & refund of the costs for this
AMD treatment. This means that
patients in Japan who suffer from
this disease can now be given this

treatment.

Read more about this subject under

“Market and competition” in tis report

Jena, Germany

22 September 2004,

Jena, Germany

Start of dlinical study: The first
tounds of treatment to correct
vision defects using Carl Zeiss
Meditec's MEL 80™ excimer laser
system have begun as part of the
clinical study for approval of the
system in the USA. The American
health authority FDA (Food and
Drug  Administration)  recently
granted the Jena-based provider of
ophthalmic solutions permission to

carry out the study.

Do you wish to receive
up-to-date information?
Read the latest company

news online at

or subscribe to our fnvestor

Update by e-mail or fax.

Register at

MeAe . ZEISs com i
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21 October /

2 December 2004,
Dublin, USA and

Jena, Germany

Acquisition: Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc
acquires the US company Laser
Diagnostic Technologies, inc. {LDT)
based in San Diego, Califormia. With
its proprietary ocular nerve fibre
measurement instrument LDT has set
a new standard in glaucoma detection
Worldwide sales of appioximately
UsS 20 milion with 3 treak-even
operating result are’ expacted for
2004. The acguisition will supplement
the product portfolio fram 2005
onwards and advance (arl Zeiss
Meditec to one of the world's
leading companiss in the growth
market for the early detettion and

diagnosis of glaucoma

New Orleans, USA

23 October 2004,
New Orleans, USA

Superior performance: The market
has confirmed the leading position of
Carl Zeiss Meditec at the largest
ophthalmology trade show in the
world, the American Academy of
Ophthalmology (AAD). The keen
interest shown by trade visitors in the
STRATUSo™  10LMaster®  ang
MELBO™ systems, among others,
genarated brisk sales and high
visitar numbers at the stand. The
PreViewPHP™, VisanteQ(T™ and
numerous other innovations also
attracted 2 great deal of customer
interest. Carl Zeiss Meditec once
again demonstrated its intention to
strengthen its  position as the
technological pacesetter for solutions

in the fieid of ophthalmalogy

Jena, Germany

26 October 2004,

Jena, Germany

Changes on the Supervisory Board:
Dr. Markus Guthoff, Management
Board Member of KB, has been
newly appointed to the Supervisory
Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG. The
new court-appointed employees’
representative on the Supervisory
Board is Withelm Burmeister,
Chairman of the Works Council of
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG. Dr. Markus
Guthoff and Wilhelm Burmeistes
were appointed to the Supervisory
Board as successors to the members
Dr. Franz-Ferdinand van Falkenhausen
{Managing Director of Carl Zeiss
lena GmbH) and Juergen Doemel
{Chairman of the Group Warks Councit
of Carl Zeiss AG), who are resigning

their posts for personal reasons.

JiiNcyembad20nal \\
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Tokyo, Japan and
Jena, Germany

{16

1 November 2004,
Tokyo, Japan and

Jena, Germany

Structural ahignments: The Japanese
subsidiary Carl Zeiss Meditec Co. Utd.,
Tokyo, takes over the surgery business
of Carl Zeiss Co. Ld., Tokyo, Japan.
Besides a umform market presence,
this move allows considerable synergy
effects 1o be realised in vanous
areas such as administration, sales
adminisiration and service. The
company can now alsc coordinate

its approval efforts more efiectively.
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Market and competition
In the ophthalmic market

Carl Zeiss Meditec provides diagnostic and therapeutic systems for the four main diseases of the eye. Our customers
are ophthalmologists, eye clinics and optometrists. Qur innovative and unique systems support them in their
daily work and help them to examine and treat their patients more efficiently and with greater success.

The overall ophthalmic market includes the segments pharmaceuticals, contact lenses, surgical supplies and
implants (intraocular lenses) plus devices and systems. The Company estimates the total market for ophthalmic
products at roughly US$ 17.2 billion per year. The systems and devices market in which Carl Zeiss Meditec is
currently active accounts for roughly USS 2.1 billion' of this. Major competitors such as Alcon, Bausch & Lomb
or AMO/VISX are active in all these individual segments. Other companies only offer a restricted range of device
classes. Carl Zeiss Meditec has the broadest product portfolio on the market addressed by the Company.

Annuat volume of the ophthalmic market

Total market
63 volume: 17.2
S

Contact fenses

Devices and systems
Implants and consumables
Pharmaceuticals

dooa

1 Cwn oesumiates Bosed on éxterngl reporis such as MorketScope Reports 2002-2004 et ol



Trends in the ophthalmic market

For some time now a trend towards consolidation has been observed in the stifl strongly fragmented
ophthalmic devices and systems market segment. The likely consequence is that only a few providers will dominate
the market in a few yearss' time. Highly specialised niche providers will be taken over by larger companies as
they attempt to supplement their product and technology portfolios. An example of this is the takeover of the
US glaucoma specialist Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc. by Carl Zeiss Meditec as announced at the end of
October and closed at the beginning of December 2004.

A further market trend which is closely related to the consolidation trend is the attempt by some providers to
strategically complement their product portfolios. The reason for this is that customers in this market
are increasingly demanding complete solutions rather than individual products.

Carl Zeiss Meditec produces inmovative and unique products

to help doctors throughout the world examine and treat their patients

more efficiently and successfully.

For further information
on the four main
ophthaimic disorders
please refer to

the inside front cover

of this report.



Market growth and its drivers

Ophthalmology is a growth market. The devices and systems segment

is set to grow by an average of 10% per year.

The ophthalmic market is a growth market also in the long run. We are forecasting average annual growth

of roughly 10 percent in the devices and systems segment for the period 2002 to 2008. The following

graphs show a breakdown of growth across the individual ophthalmic disorders and the key global markets.
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Market growth by syndrome

Compound annual growth rate:

B Refraction +12%
B Cetaract +1%
{J Glaucoma +10%
O Retina +9%

Market growth by region

Compound annual growth rate:

B Asia/Pacific +18%
B Americas +11%
[0 Europa (w/o Germany) +8%
3 Germany +8%



The four drivers of growth in ophthalmology’

Demographic trends

The global population ic growing at an ever faster rate. At the same time the proportion of old people in the
population is increasing. Since eye disorders are age-related, the demand for diagnosis and treatment is growing,
The early detection and treatment of eyesight disabililies amongst older citizens will become an important
challenge in the industrialised countries in the coming years.

Decrease in illiteracy
Studies show that there is a link between the level of literacy and the incidence of short-sightedness. The greater
the degree of literacy in the world, the greater the number of people who suffer from myopia.

Advances in medical technology

New devices and systems are permitting new forms of therapy both for disorders which were previously either
unknown or untreatable, and also for disorders already identified. Early recognition is increasing in importance
here: the earlier theidiseases can be diagnosed, the earlier they can be treated. The interlinking of systems and

the combination of diagnosis and treatment are assuming an ever-increasing importance.

Increase in health care spending
In developing countries the struggle against blindness is one of the top health pricrities. This is giving rise to
an enormous demand, not only for devices and systems, but also for related supplies.

In the industrialised countries there is increasing demand for the very latest treatment methods. Wellness and
lifestyle trends are creaiing demand for privately financed operations such as the laser correction of vision
defedts. At the same time, the increasing health expenditure is leading to greater efficiency in the therapies
paid for by health insurance schemes. This means an increasing demand for devices and systems which help to

make diagnosis and treztment faster, more efficient and more accurate.

2 UN Werld Populatioh Trends 2062 UE Nonongl Lye insiitute 2002 MarkeiScope Reports 200G2-2064 et ol




At home around the globe

With our European headquarters {Jena/Germany) and our Pirmasens
(Germany) Jocation, and the successful, long-established subsidiaries in
North America (Dublin/USA) and Japan (Tokyo) we have a direct presence
in the world's most'impartant markets.

In ail other countries we avail ourselves of the efficient sales network of
the Carl Zeiss Group: Abtout 40 sales companies and over 100 agencies
in foreign countries secure access to customers worldwide and give us
the extra clout needed 10 prevail in the global competition. The strong
"Zeiss" brand under which our systems and devices are marketed,
strengthens our competitive position.

This will enable us to respond quickly to the different needs of practitioners
and patients in the future — whether in Asia, Australia, Europe, America
or Africa.

Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc.>
Dublin, CA (USA)

-
\ Head office

C ~

Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc.

A
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Japan - lucrative market with high entry barriers

The Japanese ophthalmic market is the second-largest in the world. The gradually ageing population - the
number of over-65s is increasing by 1.8 percent each year — means that the demand for treatment and

diagnostic devices is set to rise considerably in the future, due mainly to age-related disorders.

The Company succeeded in completing the entire extremely complicated approvals procedure
for the VISULAS™ 690s in a record time of just 17 months. This saw the Company succeed not only

in gaining access to a lucrative market, but also in gaining a strategic advantage over its rivals,

Before a medical technology company can sell its products on the Japanese market there are high barriers of
entry to overcome: the Japanese Ministry for Health, Labour and Welfare (MHLW) has the world’s lengthiest
and most complex approvals procedure for new products. Each device must satisfy the MHLW by providing
comprehensive proof of its effectiveness and safely. The obstacles in this procedure are so high that companies

have repeatedly abandoned their approval plans in mid-process in the past.

The approval of the VISULAS™ 6905 in December 2003 was an important step for Carl Zeiss Meditec in
positioning itself as a leading complete solution provider for the treatment of age-related macular
degeneration (AMD). In industrialised countries AMD, a typical disease among older people, is the main cause
of blindness in the over-50 age group. The Company's extensive product range extends from early detection
through to treatment and covers diagnosis, treatment and aftercare for this disorder: the STRATUSoT™,
PreView PHP™, various fundus cameras and also the VISULAS™ 690s are already used successfully to treat
AMD in large parts of the world.

The Company succeeded in completing the entire extremely complicated approvals procedure for the
VISULAS™ 690s in a record time of just 17 months. This saw the Company succeed not only in gaining
access t0 a lucrative market, but also in gaining a strategic advantage over its rivals. Carl Zeiss Meditec,
with its VISULAS™ 6905, is the first and, up to now, only company to offer a laser which, in conjunction
with the Novartis medicine Visudyne®, provides effective AMD treatment in the form of so-called

photodynamic therapy.

3 WS Census Bureoyu, Population Qwicicn, Internaticral Programs Center



B ine MHWL team in japan

In a second step Carl Zeiss Meditec also managed to considerably extend its sales opportunities in this field.
Since April 2004, patients in Japan have been able to have their AMD treatment based on the VISULAS™ 6905
and Visudyne® from Novartis reimbursed by the state health service. This has led to a surge in demand for the
VISULAS™ 690s: 15 of these systems were sold in Japan in the first month alone.

In parattel to this, Carl Zeiss Meditec is currently working to further extend its range of AMD products for the
Japanese market. The Company has applied for approval of its PreView PHP™ system, a diagnostic system
which can detect AMD earlier than was previously possible. The next challenge facing the VISULAS™ 690s and
the PreView PHP™ is the post market study required by the Japanese health authority. This involves exten-
sive studies generally extending over a period of roughly three years. Just under 600 patients will need to
be examined and treated for this.

The high degree of*personal commitment and professional expertise shown by our colleagues in Tokyo was
instrumental in Carll Zeiss Meditec now being able to market itself as a solution provider for the diagnosis and
treatment of the serious eye disorder of AMD in Japan.
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Growth strategy at Carl Zeiss Meditec

All-round technological competence and application know how
become crucial competitive factors

The medical engineering industry, not least in the field of ophthalmology, is set to play a decisive role in
the effective management of disease at the point where innovation meets quality. A necessary precondition
for this —and a crucial precondition for remaining competitive - is all-round technological and application
expertise. In the field of ophthalmology, for instance, the strategy of confining the range of products to a
handful of diseases is becoming gradually obsolete now that the customers, i.e. doctors, are increasingly
demanding comprehensive solutions and not just individual products. In the face of rising treatment costs
on the one hand and falling health budgets on the other, this is a way to offer doctors, patients — and not
least the payers — the best possible and most cost-effective medical care.

Today Carl Zeiss Meditec already has one of the broadest product portfolios on the market, ranging from
early detection of serious eye diseases such as glaucoma or age-related macular degeneration and the
monitoring and management of these disorders through to treatment. We can therefore already offer doctors
solutions for the highly complex tasks with which they are confronted on a daily basis.

in addition, we are also examining growth perspectives in segments adjacent to the market for ophthalmic
systems and equipment. These include ophthalmic surgery concerned with the treatment of eye diseases,
for example, cataract surgery. In order to successfully expand our business activities in this market,
additional prerequisites must be created with regard to the product range.

Our aim is to further consolidate the market and competitive position of Carl Zeiss Meditec in the future,
as evidenced by the strategic milestones which we reached in the financial year 2003/2004 and will be
described in the following.



1. Intelligent software linking of devices creates opportunity for increased efficiency

Carl Zeiss Meditec’s strategy is to continuously influence the ophthalmic market into the future. Identifying
market trends at an early stage is crucial here: the combining of separate systems to form a complete solution
holds highly promising growth potential. This is not restricted to the combination of diagnostic and treatment
devices; it also extends to the networking of different diagnostic instruments and techniques. This is the only
way to increase efficiency for doctors and patients and to further improve treatment results. The software-based
linking of individual systems is a necessary precondition for this. A comprehensive product portfolio and
appropriate softwafe know-how are two of the decisive success factors to companies in order to prevail
amongst the competition.

Carl Zeiss Meditec is systematically expanding its product portfolio

to meet market demands.

This is the reason why Carl Zeiss Meditec decided to acquire its long-standing cooperation partner and software
specialist hiko medical communication in Pirmasens in December 2003. The company, now operaling under the
name Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH, specialises in the development of medical software solutions. The new
product of Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH, the VISUPAC™ 4.0 software, represented an important milestone
on the path of implementing of the corporate strategy. With the new software it is now possible to intelligently
combine different diagnastic systems, such as fundus cameras and the STRATUSocT™ system, and to link these
up to practice management and hospital information systems.

Carl Zeiss Meditec’s strategy is to continuously influence the ophthalinic market

into the future. Identifying market trends at an early stage is crucial here.
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2. Targeted completions of product portfolio strengthen the Company’s leading position

Carl Zeiss Meditec is systematically expanding its product portfolio to meet market demands. The take-over
of the US glaucoma diagnosis specialists Laser Diagnostic Technologies, inc. (LDT} announced at the end
of October 2004 and closed at the beginning of December 2004 is a good example here. This technology
acquisition makes us one of the global leaders in the early detection and diagnosis of glaucoma. LDT's
main product, the GDx VCC, is a systems specially developed for this application. It thus complements the
market presence of Carl Zeiss Meditec's STRATUSoCT™, a retinal imaging system with a wide range of possible
applications. The GDx VCC system is therefore aimed primarily at customers wha do nat require the full
range of examination possibilities, as offered by the STRATUSoct™. The global market presence of Carl Zeiss
Meditec will help GDx VCC achieve wider distribution and therefore bring about additional application possibilities.

The acquisition of hiko medical communication GmbH and Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc. is further
proof of our role in a market to be consolidated.

3. Targeted expansion of sales activities

We work continuously at expanding and strategically focussing our global sales activities to ensure that we
can continue to market our products successfully. This was the reason behind the "FLAG" sales initiative
which was launched in August 2003. FLAG stands for "Focus-Leverage-Action-Growth” and its goal is to
systematically raise the penetration of individual products in selected markets. The diagram below highlights
the "FLAG process”.

“FLAG process” :

Strategic market analysis
Production of ideas!
Quantifiying potentials
Monitoring/Contiotling
Implementation of measures

oom 0O&

Prioritisation of goalsidecision




The main goal of FLAG i5 10 tap into existing market potential — and thereby increases sales. With consolidated
sales of € 64.5 million, the fourth quarter of the financial year 200372004 was well above the annual average
and is evidence of the frst successes of this initiative. The initiative also led to increases in sales and profits
from the 10LMaster®, the STRATUSOCT™, the VISULAS™ 5325 laser and the Humphrey® Field Analyzer in
all major markets of the Company.

Particularly in Japan and the USA, further investments were made in the expansion of sales capacities.

Strategic decisions are dilligently prepared — the work of
the Advanced Development and the New Business Development teams

Advanced Development Team

Strategic decisions need 10 be catefully prepared. This also applies for innovative products which shall
receive broad acceptance in the market. Today it is more important than ever to recognise development
trends in the market at an early stage and to assess their potential. At the same time, ever greater demands
are being placed on the research and development team to ensure that their work conforms to the latest
technical standards and regulatory requirements (e.g. the regulations set down by the US Food and Drug
Administration). The pat of the development process which leads to the finished, marketable product - the
main development = is tightly organised and highly exacting in terms of the level of documentation required,
and is subject to intense business pressure to literally deliver the goods. It is too late to address basic issues
at this stage in the jprocess. This is why it is best to clarify basic technological and application-related risks
before the start of the main development phase. And this is the basic objective of the work of the Advanced
Development Team of Carl Zeiss Meditec. The team’s responsibilities inciude:

- The latest findings in the field of ophthalmology are subjected to an active screening process in order
to identify and ascess development trends at an early stage.

- We come across new ideas in our fields of work every day. These need to be examined and analysed
5o that we can decide on their economic benefit for Carl Zeiss Meditec.

- In order to efficiently organise the main development far a new system, its underlying principle must already
have been proven and developed into a laboratory model, a so-called "demonstratar”. This also belongs
to the Advanded [ievelopment Team's tasks.




The entire research and development department of Carl Zeiss Meditec benefits from the work of this team.
New products can be developed more quickly through to the market maturity without neglecting the underlying
research work on future product and technology innovations which will be important for the future business
success of the Company.

New Business Development Team

As a listed company, Carl Zeiss Meditec attracts a great deal of attention - and not only from financial investors.
Ideas for collaborative efforts are often proposed as a result. These are processed by the New Business
Development Team. The individual proposals are structured, examined and a decision made on whether they
should be pursued or not. The heads of Strategic Business Development, Research and Development, Advanced
Development and Product Management are closely involved in this process. Key decision-making criteria for the
viability of an idea include the strategic relevance, the clinical usefulness, clarification of the patent status and
the existence of a sound business plan.

A large number of proposals have already been analysed and assessed since the New Business Development
Team was set up. Some of these go through to full assessment, others are entered into a watch fist from where
they may be activated at some time in the future. The members of the New Business Development Team will
continue to carefully evaluate all offers, ideas, propesals and external developments in an ongoing process —
as a way of guaranteeing the innovative power of Carl Zeiss Meditec.



lege Zimare,

B+ Thomas Mo,

Rudaif von Binau,

Dr. Stefan Traeger




Spotlight USA




The American market

Compeltingly attractive
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The American market
Compellingly attractive

As the world's leading economic power, the United States of America generates about one-fifth of the
annual income of global economies.' Entrepreneurial initiative, free trade and a high level of consumer
consciousness were and are a trademark of the world’s leading industrial nation. This environment attracts
manufacturers of industrial goods from across the globe. The U.S. market also offers outstanding sales
opportunities to companies in the medical technology and ophthalmic industries. These faclors have allowed
Carl Zeiss Meditec 1o enjoy a successful presence in the U.S. for more than 20 years, as the world's leading
manufacturer of ophthalmic equipment and systems.

One reason for the size of the U.S. market is that per capita spending on health care is far higher than
anywhere else in the world. The average U.S. citizen spends nearly US$ 5,000 annually for their health,

and more than half of this is funded privately or through private health insurance companies!’

For Carl Zeiss Meditec, the attractiveness of the U.S. market stems from the vast dimensions of the coun-
try. The U.S. share of the ophthalmic market, in which Carl Zeiss Meditec products are offered, represents
between 40 and 45 percent of the total global market, relatively independent of the respective product
group. For example, approximately 46 percent of the global market for ophthalmic diagnostic systems is in
the U.S., creating a US$ 500 million opportunity. One reason for the size of the U.S. market is that per
capita spending on health care is far higher than anywhere else in the world. The average U.S. citizen
spends nearly US$ 5,000 annually for their health, and more than half of this is funded privately or through
private health insurance companies?

1 www.ourwaerliges-omt.de

¢, The Surgical end Office Bused Diagnostic bquipment Market, March 2604
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Baby Boomers: The patients of today and tomorrow

A {urther driver of the growing demand for innovative diagnostic and treatment systems is the aging of the
world's population. In the world's key industrial countries, the growth of the aging population is due primarily
to the so-called “Baby Boomer” generation. Baby Boomers are part of the large age group born in the two
decades following World War I, which is analogous to the post-war generation born in many European
countries. More than 75 million U.S. citizens born between 1945 and 1964 today make up approximately
one-third of the U.S. population. Baby Boomers embody the American way of life in 3 special way: their
active lifestyle is accompanied by a high propensity to consume. As a result, it is not only the largest homogeneous
section of the population - representing the majority of the wage and salary earners — it is also the group
which achieved the highest fevel of income in the 1990s.*

4 www.bbhg com/bomistal. bim
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Every eight seconds.a Baby Boomer crasses the threshold to the age of fifty. The inevitable result is that in
an aging population such as the U.S. — as in other industrial countries — there will be a sharp increase in
the occurrence of serious eye disease associated with an aging population, such as cataracts, glaucoma
and retinal disorders,

Current statistics from the U.S. provide clear evidence of this disproportional increase in the aged:
According to an in-depth study conducted by the Nationa! Eyecare Institute of Maryland in 2002, more than
10 percent of 65-year-old men have been treated for cataracts and more than 50 percent of 80-year-old
women have undergone cataract surgery. The prevalence of eye disease among seniors also applies to retinal
disorders: one in four Americans aver age 60 has noted symptoms of age-related macular degeneration
(AMD}. More than eighi million people in the U.S. suffer from this disease, which can lead to blindness
if left untreated

If one considers glaucoma, the prevalence increases noticeably after the age of 65. In the U.S. approximately
three million people sulfer from the disease, with nearly half of them unaware of their condition. In the
early stages of the disease, the human brain can compensate for losses in the central visual field. Once it
is diagnosed, the glaucoma is already at an advanced stage. At this point, it is not possible to cure glaucoma,

but merely to slow its progression®

In the coming years, the treatment of serious eye disease among older citizens will become even more of
a challenge in the U.S., as well as in other industrialized countries.

S US Mational Eye institute, Visicn Problems in the US, Prevalence of Adult Vision impgirment
and Age-Reloted tyd Diseases in Amerco, 2002
£ bid., Herald Tribure of 22 May 2004
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The following figures show the prevalence rates in the U.S. by disease:

Prevalence rate of AMD by age gioup (e_stimated) i
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Prevalence rate of cataract by age group (estimated)
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Prevalence rate of glaucoma by age group (estimated)
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The Baby Boomer generztion in the U.S. is representative of an increase in health consciousness and a greater
desire for the most advanced treatment of disease. Discriminating patients demand comprehensive solutions

for successful treatmen: and are disinclined to accept compromises. Because of this, Baby Boomers are

significantly more accepting of innovative technologies than earlier generations.

U.S. lifestyle helps to drive the market

Baby Boomers' confidence in modern technology and innovative medical devices has been passed on to
younger generations. The well-developed health and trend consciousness of American youth is reflected in
the refractive treatment of vision defects. In no other segment of the ophthalmic market is the dominance
of the U.S. market so pronounced as in the laser correction of vision defects, known as refractive surgery.
The number of treatments in the U.S. in relation to operations carried out worldwide is even higher than in
the diagnostic market — based on the number of procedures per 100,000 inhabitants this is almost twice
as high as, for example, in Germany.” The driver of this markedly higher treatment rate in the U.S. is a very
targeted group: lifestyle-conscious spectacle wearers in their 20s. They see the procedure as a cosmetic,
rather than surgical, operation. Moreover, they have the financial means and are willing to bear the costs
of treatment, as health insurance companies do not reimburse for most refractive procedures.

Refractive laseirsurge {per 100,000 inhabitants). ...
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Carl Zeiss Meditec in the U.S. -

Milestones of a success story

Thirty-two years ago two like-minded partners started a joint venture in Berkeley, California: Luis Alvarez,
professor at the renowned University of California and Nobel Prize laureate for high-energy physics, and

Bill Humphrey, an inventor who had set himself the task of turning Alvarez’s inventions into marketable products.

In 1975, Humphrey - by then adopted as the company’s name (it still enjoys a high standing among ophthalmic
surgeons and opticians in the United States) - introduced the Vision Analyzer. The Vision Analyzer, a new
form of refraction system to determine visual acuity without the use of special glasses and similar devices,
triggered 3 massive growth phase for the company. In 1978, Humphrey launched the Lens Analyzer, stili the
most common instrument for the automatic measurement of the refractive power of spectacle lenses.

A pioneering spirit and creative power have beent hallmarks of Carl Zeiss Meditec in California since
its inception. As a result, it is no surprise that the resources and research and development efforts

play a major role in the expansion of our market leadership, and will continue to do so in the future.

When the Humphrey® Field Analyzer (HFA) was introduced to a worldwide specialist audience in the early
1980s, few could have predicted that the company had created what would become a new gold standard
in functional early glaucoma diagnosis ~ and this still applies today. In the new millennium, more than
80 percent of U.S. eye specialists and more than 65 percent of optometrists still place their trust in the
dependability of the HFA for the diagnosis of glaucoma.



A pioneering spirit‘and ¢reative power have been hallmarks of Carl Zeiss Meditec in California since its
inception. As a result, it is no surprise that the resources and research and development efforts play a major
role in the expansion of our market leadership, and will continue to do so in the future. Qur premier
position in the U.S. ophthalmic market and around the globe is based on products that stem from innovation.
The optical coherence tomography (OCT) developed by U.S. engineers is one such technology. It forms the
basis of Carl Zeiss Mediiec’s glaucoma diagnostic system, the STRATUSGCT™, with which the Company has
revolutionized the diagnosis of glaucoma and serious retinal disorders. The STRATUSocT™ enables real-time,
cross-sectional views of the retina. It is the first device in the world, to generate high resolution, photographic
quality images of the structures behind the retina. This enables glaucoma to be detected much earlier than
ever before. Carl Zeiss Meditec has established itself as the leader in a market segment, which, according
to its own estimates, is set to grow by eight to ten percent annually. This is a position that is further
strengthened by the acquisition of the U.S. company Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc. as announced in
October 2004 and closed at the beginning of December 2004.
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Carl Zeiss Meditec and AMD - Active prevention of blindness

Age-related macular degeneration in the U.S.

AMD is the leading cause of blindness in persons over the age of 50. Today, approximately two million
U.S. citizens suffer fram a serious limitation to their eyesight due to an advanced stage of AMD. Another
15 million Americans have pre-symplomatic indications of AMD. The total number of AMD cases is expected
to triple over the next 25 years. One reason for this is that an increasing number of Baby Boomers are
reaching an advanced age, joining the potentially AMD-endangered population group. A total of about
eight million U.S. citizens suffer from age-related macular degeneration, a disease that can result in

permanent loss of eyesight.®

S US Nativrief Eye Institute, Vision Problems in the US, Prevalence of Adult Vision Impairment
and Age-Relsied bye Diteaser in America. 2052



Given that AMD is a progressive, degenerative condition in which the loss of vision is irreversible, early
detection and treatment of AMD is crucial. New drugs and therapies are emerging as a response to the
increased incidence of AMD, and these, in turn, are driving the need for reliable diagnostics for AMD.
These procedures are designed to recognize the disease at an early stage and increase the efficiency of
treatments for delaying AMD. Only in this way will it be possible to preserve eyesight.

Demonstrating its leadership in AMD diagnosis and treatment,
Carl Zeiss Meditec offers a comprehensive three-pronged solution

to slow and even arrest AMD progression, and prevent blindness

arong patients.

Carl Zeiss Meditec’s three-pronged solution for AMD

Practitioners are demanding a comprehensive and integrated approach for the treatment and management
of AMD, and patients want to maintain high-quality vision as long as possible. Carl Zeiss Meditec has
geared itself to these requirements and provides innovative and technologically superior solutions that
improve patient care and enhance clinicians' techniques. Demanstrating its leadership in AMD diagnosis
and treatment, Carl Zeiss Meditec offers a comprehensive three-pronged solution to slow and even arrest
AMD progressicn, and prevent blindness among patients:

- Early detection
- Effective monitoring
- innovative therapy

The latest addition to the Carl Zeiss Meditec three-pronged solution is the PreView PHP™. It is designed to
be the first line of defenze in the progression of AMD inte its advanced stage — a stage in which everything
depends on its detection and permanent monitoring.

Cart Zeiss Meditec will continue to explore new solutions to solve the growing challenges presented by
specialists and patients, including other AMD diagnostics and treatments.




" ... to focus on what the clinician really wants.”

What determines success in the U.S. (ophthalmic) market?

JAMES TAYLOR: We see the drivers of the market and we're not the only company that recognizes that. You
have the pharmaceutical companies investing; you have the biotech companies investing; and you have
other technology companies investing. What you have is this almost primordial stew of energy starting to
focus on this market - and out of that comes opportunity.

What differentiates Carl Zeiss Meditec from its competitors? What makes Carl Zeiss Meditec's
products attractive for doctors and patients?

JAMES TAYLOR: We are not only committed to providing products, but actually looking at clinical needs ~
figuring out how we can bring diagnostics, therapeutics, and devices together — in order to provide those
solutions. And, if you look at almost any advance that's going in ophthalmology right now, we are probably
either a primary provider, a secondary enabler, or providing a technalogy platform that's making it possible.

Diagnosis and therapeutics are going to be combined into systems that are far more elegant for the customer,
on a parallel with the way, in the old days, anesthesia machines were provided by one company, heart monitors
provided by another, oxygen monitors provided by anather. Now, if you go buy an anaesthesia system ...
it certainly will have integrated diagnostic ang therapeutic systems.



What are the major market trends among patients from your perspective?

JAMES TAYLOR: Patients expect "perfect vision” due to the many technological advancements in recent
years. Aging “Baby Boomers” are growing the market, as eyesight fails with age.

What are the magjor trends in the market and, above all, what are the preconditions for
future success?

JAMES TAYLOR: As you look at the shape of the {ophthaimic) industry, diagnostics and therapeutics beco-
me integrated into systems and other components and become integrated into solutions. for us to be suc-
cessful, we need to have all parts of that spectrum covered so we could actually focus on what the clinici-
an really wants, which is a solution to his or her problem.

B Research and davelopment

made in the USA
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Responsible management




Responsible management is a combination

of long-term added value and a sense of responsibility.
We are convinced that trust can only be built up
on this basis — a basis for successful cooperation
with our shareholders, customers, business partners

and employees.

On the following pages we will explain the basis
of our value-orientated corporate management
and how high secial responsibility ranks

at Carl Zeiss Meditec.

Transparency in communications is the direct
result of responsible management. This is why
we give you a detailed insight into the work of
the executive bodies of our Company and explain
how corporate governance is implemented

at Carl Zeiss Meditec.

The workforce at Carl Zeiss Meditec

VISION 2020 - Committed to fighting blindness
Value-based management

Report by the Supervisory Board

Executive bodies of the Company

Directors’ Holdings and Directors’ Dealings
Corporate Governance

Impfementing the code recommendations
("mandatory provisions”}

Implementing the code suggestions

{"discretionary provisions”)

Declaration by the Management and Supervisory
Boards of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG on the

German Corporate Governance Code in accordance
with Art. 161 AktG {Stock Corporation Act)
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Persoanel structure

at Cari Zeiss Mediter

as of 30 September 2004

The workforce at Carl Zeiss Meditec

Highly qualified and motivated employees are the precondition for long-term business success. Thoughtful
human resources development and continuous improvement play a crucial role here. With unigue products
and first-class service, Carl Zeiss Meditec's worldwide workforce of about 800 strives to uphold the
Company’s premier position in the market for ophthalmic equipment in the future. The following figure provides

an overview of the personnel structure at Carl Zeiss Meditec in individual operating segments:

Personnel structure at Carl Zeiss Meditec AG

2.5% .
Production

Sales and marketing
Service
Product management

Research and development

16.6%

Management Board,
commercial sector, administration
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Quality management

In order to further extend our lead over the competition we need a constant stream of innovative products
which are tailored to meet customers’ needs. For this we require staff whose thinking extends beyond the
horizons of their own particular area of work and who have the necessary multidiscipline knowledge.
Cail Zeiss Meditec is already investing considerable sums in further training for its employees. All completed
courses etc. are noted in a training record and are chosen to meet particular needs. This training extends
well beyond a narrow definition of technical training courses and afso includes social skills such as
collaborating, team working and networked thinking. The training process encompasses all levels in
the Company.

The system will be further expanded in the financial year 2004/2005 to include an additional, needs-based
internal training programme consisting of roughly 40 courses and units. This additional programme will act
as a channel through which alt employees can pass their knowledge on to their colleagues. The choice of
programme content is designed to optimise processes and to convey interface knowledge which extends
beyond each individual's own area of work.
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Compensatoryi stock plan for all staff in Germany and the USA' : '

30 September 2004 saw a furiher successful financial year draw to a close. This is thanks not least to the
joint, cross-location efforts to become one of the leading selution providers in the field of ophthalmology.
As 3 result of the business success and in recognition of the great personal commitment of the whole staff,
the management of Cafl Zeist; Meditec has resolved to issue a banus to all employees in the form of a stake
in the Company. Fach employee of the Company in Germany and the USA will therefore receive 25 shares

and become a co-ownert of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.

A special programme has been devised to help prepare employees with leadership potential for managerial
responsibilities.

Good work should always be rewarded. Remuneration at Carl Zeiss Meditec AG is firmly linked to performance.
All managers® and nearly all higher-paid employees' salaries contain a variable remuneration component
which is based on fulfilraent of their individual and company targets.

B Meetings ang workshops with
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At Carl Zeiss Meditec there is a culture of open discussion. Flat structures and approachable managers help
ensure that any good suggestions for improvements are quickly assessed and put into practice. Material
incentives are offered to reward and encourage such constructive suggestions. Participation in innovation
award competitions is actively supported throughout the Carl Zeiss group, further reinforcing the culture of
innovation at Carl Zeiss Meditec.

Forward thinking is regarded as a crucial means of securing the future success of Carl Zeiss Meditec.
We are well aware of our social responsibility and the value of training young people. 23 apprentices are
currently training to become qualified mechatrenics technicians, industrial mechanics, industrial electricians
or industrial clerks in our Company. The training partner here is the "Schott-Zeiss-Bildungszentrum”
where young people are taught basic professional skills for 1-2 years before they are integrated into the
relevant departments within the Company. This ensures that high quality and highly practical training is
undertaken in parallel to the theory taught at the technical college. To ensure that commercial trainees, for
instance, gain an insight into the working of the entire company, a rotation schedule has been drawn up
covering all the different departments.

The Company enjoys close contacts to the Jena University of Applied Science, the Friedrich-Schiller
University in Jena and the limenau Technical University. We offer students opportunities for industrial
placements and dissertation topics and have already been able to employ many highly qualified graduates

from these educational institutions.
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VISION 2020 — Committed to fighting blindness

Somewhere in the'wor d an adult goes blind every five seconds ~ for children the figure is one per minute.
There are currently roughly 45 million blind people in the world, including 1.5 million children! Qver 90%
of these live in developing countries. The rising fife expectancy and rapid increase in the world’s population
mean that an estimated 75 million people will be blind by 2020. 7 out of 10 blind people live in Asia,
2 out of 10 in Africa. Up to 6 of these 10 people could be cured by routine surgery — the cataract operation.
A further 3 peoplecou d be saved from blindness if there were sufficient facilities for treating eye diseases.
Blindness is therefore basically a problem of developing countries, yet one which could be avoided in 80%
of the cases.’ The problem in these countries is not simply a lack of the necessary funds and facilities, but
also insufficient numbers of trained medical staff. The International Agency for the Prevention of Blindness
{IAPB) has dedicated itself to easing this problem. The organisation supports the VISION 2020 Right to
Sight campaign of the V/orld Health Organisation (WHO) which has set itself the ambitious target of eradicating
preventable blindness in developing countries. Over 20 non-governmental organisations are currently involved
internationally in "VISKON 2020", including the Christoffe! Blindenmission in Germany.

Somewhere in the world an adult goes blind every five seconds —

for children the figure is one per minute.

Back in 2002 Carl Zeiss AG and Casl Zeiss Meditec AG were the first corparate sponsors from the eyecare
industry to support this global campaign. A sense of social responsibility is not only a trademark of Zeiss
companies, it is something which is practised on a daily basis. As a manufacturer of systems and devices
for diagnosis and the treatment of eye diseases, it is our aim to maintain the eyesight of people all over
the world.

Besides making an annual six-digit USS financial contribution to the IAPB, we sponsored various other projects
in the last financial yeer. The main focus in this respect was the support of hospitals and medical facilities
in rural parts of India. Qur efforts are focused on this country for good reason: India, the second most
populous country on earth, is home to roughly nine million blind people — more than any other country,
Approximately half of these suffer from cataract. Most of these people can no longer take care of themselves
and cannot work. Blindness is therefore gradually developing into an enormous economic problem.
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With its commitment for VISION 2020 Carl Zeiss Meditec s endeavouring to create long-term perspectives
and thus "help people to help themselves”. As in previous years, our endeavours have produced concrete
results. As part of the VISION 2020 programme, we have equipped state hospitals in the Andhra Pradesh
province with the latest Carl Zeiss Meditec ophthalmic diagnasis and treatment devices. This measure helps
close gaps in the medical provision but it also involves accompanying education wark on the causes of
blindness and the training of young ophthalmologists.

A further example of active development help is our support for Centers of Excellence lor the treatment of
glaucoma at the Aravind Clinic in Madurai in southern India. For many years now, Carl Zeiss Meditec has
been supporting the training of ophthalmologists and medical staff and funding measures aimed at
enlightening the population on the causes of blindness.

The involvement of Carl Zeiss Meditec in expanding the Aravind Clinic into a modern research centre is just
one example of many close collaborations with institutions in India. Further institutions which the company
supports inciude the Center of Excellence at Shankara Nethralaya hospital which specialises in retinal
disorders, the training centre at the hospital in Kathmandu and the academy at the LV Prasad Eye institute.
The education and training of eye specialists, support for upcoming generations of doclors and the provision
of the latest diagnostic and treatment devices by Carl Zeiss Meditec are all parts of the same lask:
Experienced Zeiss and Zeiss Meditec specialists also organise induction training sessions lor medical personnel.
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Besides offering direct local support, Carl Zeiss Meditec aiso regards public appreciation of the work of
deserving and committed medical staff as an important part of the social partnership. Which is why the
tropical disease specialist Prof. Dr. Volker Klauss was given a donation of € 10,000 from the Carl Zeiss
Foundation at the 2nd Ophthalmology Forum, organised by Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in Nuremberg, for his
excellent work in combating blindness. Prof. Dr. Klauss is an ophthalmologist and specialist in tropical
diseases who worked for many years in Uganda and Kenya, where he made significant progress in the treatment
and prevention of eye ciseases. He has made a major contribution towards combating blindness with his
field work and his research.

The management of Carl Zeiss Meditec does not merely pay lip service to the aims of VISION 2020 - a fact
which is shown by a personal gesture: the members of the management and supervisory boards jointly
donated two split lamps to eyecare centres in Zambia and Pakistan. Just how urgently these devices are
required in the Third Werld is evidenced by two simple facts. The hospital in the Copperbelt province in the
north of Zambia which received one of the split lamps takes care of more than 1 million people. Dr. Seneadza’s

eye care department is the only facility at a public hospital in the entire province.




For more information

on the VISION 2020 initiative
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Next year Carl Zeiss Meditec will be looking to expand its involvement in VISION 2020. There are plans to
set up Carl Zeiss VISION 2020 Training Centres in pootly developed regions of the world in conjunction with
the WHO. The declared goal is to introduce modern ophthalmic procedures to rural areas of the developing
world and to ensure the availability and quality of treatment by eye specialists. A further aim is to encourage
increased involvement of regional and local opinion leaders and the local authorities in the affected regions

in the provision of the development aid. Furthermore, an even stronger campaign is to be conducted for

VISION 2029, primarily through intensified marketing and PR.

It remains our goal to achieve a major improvement in the medical care in developing countries — both by

treating blindness and preventing it. This is a goal that we support with commitment and determination ~

because everybody has the right 1o see the world with his or her own eyes.




Value-based management

The goal of our business activities is to create value. Basically, this means deploying the equity and outside
capital provided by investors in such a way as to generate added value. In order to achieve this, all areas
of the Company — from development and sales through to administration — must be focused on efficiency
and profitableness.

We use the Economic Value Added® (EVA®) method as a means of assessing the corporate added
value. EVA® is a profit variable which takes into account all costs, espedially those required for the outside
and equity capital used. All the company processes from strategic planning and operative decision-making
through to performance measurement are oriented to the EVA® figure,

To determine the Economic Value Added®, the result after tax and before interest from ordinary operations
is adjusted to allow for the costs required for financing the business assets. The business assets include the
entire capital tied up in the operative business.’ It thus becomes apparent that the corporate value rises
more steeply, the more successful the company is in its operations and the less it has lo expend on financing
its business assets. The working capital management system introduced by Carl Zeiss Meditec therefore has
an important valuesincreasing function. it is used to control and monitor inventories and trade accounts
payable and receivable, thereby lowering the corresponding financing costs. The following chart summarises
the components of Economic Value Added® and provides a brief overview of the main options for
enhancing this entity. ‘
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Influencing factors and basic options for increasing the EVA®
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Car| Zeiss Meditec has implemented the EVA® system comprehensively in the financial year 2003/2004.
Long-term growth in corporate value is one of the main concerns of the management. In doing so we are
stiengthening the competitiveness of our Company and enhancing its growth perspectives — which are
equally attractive to both our employees and shareholders.

Carl Zeiss Meditec effected a 16.7% improvement in its Economic Value Added® from € 10 million in the
financial year 2002/2003 to € 11.7 million. The added value (AEVA®) achieved in the reporting period
thus amounted to € 1.7 million.



Report by the Supervisory Board

Dear Shareholders,
Ladies and Gentlernen,

The business development of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in the financial year 2003/2004 has once again proved
that the Company plays a leading role in the growing market for ophthalmic systems. The significant rise in
sales, particularly in the fourth quarter, the ongoing increase in profitability over the previous year and the
further improvement of the operative cash flow all speak for themselves and demonstrate the potential which
Carl Zeiss Meditec holds. The success becomes even more apparent if we consider the growth in the
Company’s actual value, the so-called economic value added® (EVA®): it rose by 16.7% from € 10.0 million
in the financial year 2002/2003 to € 11.7 million in 2003/2004. Successful performance of the Company is
a key internal prerequisite for further acceleration in the growth process in the future. As the consulting and
supervising body of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG we will be facing the challenge together with the Management

Board and all employees — for the benefit of the business partners, the employees and all shareholders.

As in previous years, the Management and Supervisory Boards once again collaborated closely in the
financial year just ended. In the financial year 2003/2004 the Supervisory Board discharged its duties in
accordance with the law and the Company’s procedural rules and articles of association. It monitored the
work of the Managemer t Board at regular intervals and acted in an advisory capacity. The Supervisory Board
was directly involved in all decisions of fundamentat importance to the Company.

The Management Boarc kept the Supervisory Board regularly and comprehensively informed by means of
detailed verbal and written reports on all relevant issues concerning business policy, company planning, risk

management, profitability and raising the Company’s value.

In addition, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board has also engaged in a regular exchange of information
and ideas with the Management Board outside meetings of the Supervisory Board. The main topics discussed
on such occasions ‘were the current business outlook and aspects of the strategic development of the
Company. On his part, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board was engaged in a lively exchange of information
with the other members of the Supervisory Board. This ensured close collaboration between the
Management and Supervisory Boards.




The Supervisory Board held a total of five meetings during the financial year 2003/2004. No resolutions were
passed by means of circular letter in the reporting period. The Management Board resolution concerning the
issue of free employee shares by the Company in accordance with the authorisation of the general meeting
on 19 March 2004 was approved by the Supervisory Board General Committee by circular letter at the beginning
of October 2004.

All the members of the Supervisory Board were present at three meetings. Twa Supervisory Board meetings were
held at which one member was missing. In addition, two guests were invited to attend one of the meetings.

The work of the Supervisory Board committees
In accordance with its procedural rules, the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec is supported in its work
by three committees.

1. The General Committee advises the Management Board on the strategic alignment of the Company.
In addition, the General Committee supports the Chairman of the Supervisory Board belween
meetings and in the coordination and preparation of meetings of the Supervisory Board. Upon
authorisation, the General Committee also decides on whether or not to sanction actions of the
Management Board requiring approval.

The General Committee held three meetings in the financial year 2003/2004. Qne of these meetings

was a joint meeting with the Audit Commiltee,

2. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include discussing key accounting and risk manage-
ment issues and matters concerning the audit of annual accounts. This includes e.g. awarding the
audit contract, carrying out the required check on the independence of the auditor and determining
the main focal points of the audit.

The Audit Committee held three meetings in the reporting period.

3. The Personnel Committee prepares staff decisions for the Supervisory Board.

The Personnel Committee held one meeting in the financial year 2003/2004.



The composition of the Supervisory Board and its committees, including the duties of individual members,

is shown in the following table:

Name . Supervisory Board General Committee Audit Committee Personnel Committee
Dr Michael Kaschke Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman

Alexander von an!ebeﬁ Deputy Chairman Member Member Member

Dr Markus Guthoff Member

Dr Manfred Fritsch Member - - Member

Franz-Jorg Stindel ‘, Member - Member

Withelm Burmeister Member

Corporate Governanc2

At one meeting the Supervisory Board deliberated on the development of Corporate Governance at
Carl Zeiss Meditec. The Supervisory Board came to the conclusion that the Company is observing, and wil!
continue to observe, the recommendations of the Code in the version dated 21 May 2003. The only
recommendation nat currently being implemented is the individualised presentation of the Management
Board's fixed and vériable remuneration elements in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Payments received by the Management Board are shown here as a total. The Management and Supervisory
Boards will examine the possibility of an individualised declaration in future. The fixed and variable
remuneration of individual Supervisory Board members in the financial year 2003/2004 is calculated in

accordance with the Company's articles of association.

The declaration of the Management and Supervisory Boards of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG on the German
Corporate Governance Code in accordance with Article 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)
reflects the status of the implementation of Corporate Governance at Carl Zeiss Meditec.

In accordance with its commitment to good Corporate Governance, Carl Zeiss Meditec is not only implementing
the main recommendations of the code, it is also observing ail relevant “discretionary” suggestions in the
cede. Further information on this is provided in the "Corporate Governance” section of this annual report.

The Supervisory Board expressly welcomes the provisions of the German Corporale Governance Code.
We are convinced that leadership directed at raising the Company’s long-term value, together with a transparent
and fair communication policy, will ultimately benefit all parties with a vested interest in Carl Zeiss Meditec.
This is ultimately the only way lo generate the trust which forms the basis of successful collaboration with

business partners, emplcyees and shareholders.




Focus of deliberations of the Supervisory Board

The development of business of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG was a reqular item on the agenda at meetings of the
Supervisory Board. The sales and earnings situation of the Company overall was discussed at length, as welt
as individual sectors, products and product groups. Numerous Management Board reports on these topics
formed a basis for these deliberations.

Issues related to the strategic focusing of Carl Zeiss Meditec continued to be a major concern for the
Supervisory Board. Examining internal and external growth options was the main focus of the deliberations.
Here, after a lengthy discussion, the Supervisory Board approved the acquisition of hiko medical communication
GmbH and Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc. and the structural alignment in the sales operations of
Japanese subsidiary Carl Zeiss Meditec Co. Ltd.

Employee remuneration was also discussed. Here the Supervisory Board approved the resolution of the
Management Board concerning the issue of shares to the employees of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries in accordance with the corresponding authorisation by the general meeting on
19 March 2004.

Audit of the annual financial statements

Prof. Dr. Binder, Dr. Dr. Hillebrecht & Partner GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgeselischaft und
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft (Auditors and Tax Consultants) of Stuttgart were appointed by resolution of the
general meeting on 19 March 2004 as auditors for the annual financial statements. Before making their
praposal, the Supervisory Board obtained a declaration from the auditor confirming that there are no
professional, financial or other relationships between the auditor and his bodies and head auditors on the
one hand and the Company and members of its executive bodies on the other. Having obtained the approval
of the shareholders, the Supervisory Board authorised Prof. Dr. Binder, Dr. Dr. Hillebrecht & Partner GmbH
to conduct the audit of the individual and consolidated annual financial statements for the financial
year 2003/2004 together with the report on relations with affiliated companies in accordance with
Article 312 AktG.

The annual financial statements prepared by the Management Board for the year ended 30 September
2004 including the management report for the financial year 2003/2004 were examined by Prof. Dr. Binder,
Dr. Dr. Hillebrecht & Partner GmbH. The auditors found that the annual financial statements and management
report are in compliance with the properly prepared accounts, legal provisions and the articles of association,
and that the management report presents an accurate view of the risks to future development. The auditor
confirmed this with his unqualified audit certificate.



The annual individual and consolidated financial statements, including the appropriate management and
audit reports, were submitted to all the members of the Supervisory Board and discussed in detail in accordance
with the requirements of Art. 171 Section 1 Sentence 2 AktG (German Stock Corporation Act) at the
balance sheet meeting of the Audit Committe of the Supervisory Board in the presence of the auditor.
The Management Board also presented its proposal for the use of profits to the Supervisary Board for the 2005
general meeting. This proposes that the net income from the financial year 2003/2004 be carried forward to

new account.

Following its detailed examination, the Supervisory Board concluded that there were no objections to the
annual financial statements and the Company's management report for the financial year 2003/2004.
The Supervisory Board approved the annual financial statements for the year ending 30 September 2004
as prepared by the Management Board. The annual financial statements have thus been established.
The Supervisory Board concurs with the proposal by the Management Board to carry forward the net income
of the financial year. 2003/2004 to new account.

The Supervisory Board's examination also included the consolidated financial statements and the consalidated
management report; The consolidated annual financial statements prepared by the Management Board for
the year ended 30 September 2004 including the consolidated management report for the finandial year
2003/2004 were also audited by Prof. Dr. Binder, Dr. Dr. Hillebrecht & Partner GmbH. The consolidated financial
statements were prepa‘ed in compliance with United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
{"US GAAP"). The auditors determined that the consolidated annual financial statements and consolidated
management report-were in compliance with the properly prepared accounts, legal provisions, US accounting
standards and the articles of association, and that the consolidated management report presents an accurate
view of the risks to future development. The auditor confirmed this with an unqualified audit opinion.

Following its detailed extamination, the Supervisory Board concluded that there were no objections to the
consolidated annual financial statements and the consolidated management report of the Company for the
financial year 2003/2004. The Supervisory Board approved the annual consolidated financial statements for
the year ending 30 September 2004 as prepared by the Management Board.

Pursuant to Article 292 HGB (German Commercial Code), the current consolidated financial statements in
accordance with US-GAA? exempts the Management Board from its obligation to prepare consolidated financial
statements in accordanc with German law.

As an affiliate of the Carl Zeiss AG, pursuant to Article 312 AktG (German Stock Corporation Act)
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG has prepared a report on the relations with affiliated companies in the financial
year 2003/2004 (“dependency report”). This report has been audited by the Company's auditor. Both the
dependency report and the respective audit report were submitted to the Supervisory Board. Upon examination
of the reports pursuant to Aricle 314 AktG the Supervisory Board raised no objections to the statement of the
Management Board:
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Composition of the Management and Supervisory Boards

The composition of the Management Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG changed during the financial
year 2003/2004. With the approval of the Supervisory Board, Dr. Walter-Gerhard Wrobel left the Company
as of 30 September 2004 at his own behest to seek new challenges outside Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.

Immediately after the end of the financial year 2003/2004 two changes were made in the composition of
the Company's Supervisory Board. Dr. Markus Guthoff, Management Board member of IKB Deutsche
Industriebank AG, was appointed to the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in October 2004.
On the 1XB Board of Management, Dr. Gutheif is responsible for the Private Equity Division, risk management,
controlling of credit risks and organisation and information processing. He has a great deal of
experience in capital markets. Withelm Burmeister was also legally appointed as the new employee
representative to the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG. He is the Chairman of the Works Council
of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG. Two employee representatives have served on a voluntary basis on the Supervisory
Board since the Company was founded in 2002. Dr. Markus Guthoff and Wilhelm Burmeister were appointed
to the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG as successors to Dr. Franz-Ferdinand von Falkenhausen
(Managing Director of Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH) and Jirgen Démef (Chairman of the Group Works Council of
Carl Zeiss AG) who are resigning their posts for personal reasons. At this juncture the Supervisory Board

would like to express its sincere thanks to them for their work.

Final remarks

Without the great commitment of the entire workforce of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG and its subsidiaries it
would not have been possible to achieve the successtul growth posted in the financial year 2003/2004.
The Supervisory Board would fike to express its sincere gratitude to all employees for their efforts. Thanks are
also due to the Management Board for its commitment and excellent cooperation.

lena, 9 December 2004
For the Supervisory Board

Dr. Michael Kaschke
(Chairman)



Executive bocdlies of the Company
Board of Management

Ulrich Krauss, Dipl.-Kaufmann
President and CFO
(*1964), Weimar

Responsible for:
sales, marketing, service, human resources, refractive susgery,
business development, guality and product management, research and development

Bernd Hirsch, Dipl.-Kaufmann
Member of the Management Board
(*1970), Weimar

Responsible for:
finance, investor relations, legal, IT, logistics and production,
research and development
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Supervisory Board

Dr. Michael Kaschke

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

(*1957), Oberkochen

Member of the Group Management Board of Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkochen

Group mandates:

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc., Dublin, USA

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Optical, Inc., Chester, USA

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Australia Pty. Ltd., Camperdown, Australia
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Co. Ltd., Tokyo, Japan

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Surgical, Inc., Thornwood, USA

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss India Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Co. Ltd., Seoul, South Korea

Chairman of the Board of Carf Zeiss Far East Co., L1d., Kowloon, Hongkong
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss (Pty.) Ltd., Randburg, South Africa
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Financial Services GmbH, Oberkochen
Member of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Semiconductor

Manufacturing Technologies AG, Oberkochen

Member of the Supervisory Board of Hensoldt AG, Wetzlar

Other mandates:

Member of the Supervisory Board of Siltronic AG, Munich

Chairman of SPECTARIS, the German Industrial Association for Optical, Medical
and Mechatronicical Technologies, Berlin
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Alexander von W‘itzl(rben

Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
{*1963), Weimar

Chairman of the Manacement Board of Jenoptik AG, Jena

Other mandates:

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Analytik Jena AG, Jena

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Meissner+Wurst Zander Holding AG, Stuttgart
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of PVA Tepla AG, Asslar

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of DEWB AG, fena

Member of the Supervisory Board of KRONE GmbH, Berlin

Member of the Administrative Board of Feintool International Holding AG, Lyss

B tembers of the supervisory board
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Whihelm Butmeicier,




Dr. Markus Guthoff

Member of the Supervisory Board

(*1964), Krefeld

Member of the Management Board of IKB Deutsche Industriebank AG, Disseldorf

Group mandates:

Chairman of the Advisory Board of IKB Private Equity GmbH, Dusseldorf
Chairman of the Advisory Board of IKB Data GmbH, Disseldorf
Member of the Board of IKB Capital Corporation, New York, USA

Other mandates:

Member of the Supervisory Board of MetaDesign AG, Berlin
Member of the Supervisory Board of Argantis GmbH, Cologne
Member of the Advisory Board of Poppe & Potthoff, werther

Dr. Manfred Fritsch
Member of the Supervisory Board
(*1941), Kleinpirschitz/lena

Other mandates:

Member of the Supervisory Board of Messe AG, Erfurt,

Member of the Board of the Kompetenznetz Optische Technologie OptoNet e V., Jena,
Chairman of the Advisory Board Verkehrslandebahn Schdngleina GmbH, Schongleina

Franz-J6rg Stindel

Member of the Supervisory Board
{"1954), Jena

Service Engineer at Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena

Other mandates:

none

Wilhelm Burmeister

Member of the Supervisory Board

(*1954), Jena

Group Manager Manufacturing Control and Chairman of the Works Council
of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena

Other mandates:




Directors’ Holdings and Directors’ Dealings

Directors’ Holdings — Details on shareholdings of members of the executive bodies of
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG

Management Board

Ulrich Krauss Shares

Bernd Hirsch Shares
Supervisory Board

Dr Michael Kaschke! Shares

Alexander von Witzleben Shares

Dr Markus Guthoff ' Shares

Dr Manfred Fritsch Shares

Franz-Jirg Stiindet Shares

Wilhelm Burmeister Shares
Company

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG Shares

Directors’ Dealings - securities transactions subject to reporting requirements made by
members of the executive bodies of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in the financial year 2003/2004

The following is a'summary of securities transactions carried out by members of the Management and
Supervisory Boards.in the financial year 2003/2004 that were subject to reporting requirements pursuant
to Art. 152 of the German Securities Trading Act {WpHG).

Name Function Date Purchase/sale % Number of shares Price

Alexander von Witzleben Deputy Chairman of " 10.09.2004 Sale e 1,000 €10.20
the Supervisory Board

Alexander von Witzleben Deputy Chairman of 15.04.2004 Sale €11.70
the Supervisory Board .

Dr Michael Kaschke Chairman of the 03.05.2004 Purchase 250 €10.60
Supervisory Board.

Dr Michael Kaschke Chairman of the 03.05.2004 Purchase 250 €10.70
Supervisory Board. ;

The appropriate details of these securities transactions were immediately made publicly accessible following
their notification on the Company’s Website at www.meditec.zeiss.comfir and submitted to the
Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht (Bafin, Federal Supervisory Office for Financial Services).




Corporate Governance'

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG has a highly valued tradition of responsible management. We are convinced that
management based on raising the Company's fong-term value and on a transparent and fair communication
policy ultimately benefits all the parties with vested interests in Carl Zeiss Meditec. This is ultimately
the only way to generate the trust which forms the basis of successiul collaboration with shareholders,
business partners and employees.

Hence it was only natural for us in the financial year 2003/2004 ~ as in the year before — to implement
the recommendations of the May 2003 version of the German Corporate Geovernance Code witheut any
significant restrictions,

The only recommendation not currently being implemented in full is the itemised presentation of the
Board's fixed and variable remuneration elements - clause 4.2.4 of the Code in the current version — and this
is now being examined by the Management Board and Supervisory Board. Payments received by the
Management Board are at present shown as a lotal in the notes lo the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year 2003/2004.

implementing the code recommendations
("mandatory provisions")

Shareholder rights

The forum for the Carl Zeiss Meditec AG shareholders is the general meeting, which is where they are entitled
to exercise their voting rights. Each Carl Zeiss Meditec share entitles its bearer to one vote. There are no
shares with multiple, preferential or maximum voling rights. Every shareholder who has submitted his or her
shares is entitled to take part in the general meeting. S/he has the possibility to speak out on items on the agenda,
to ask relevant questions and to make proposals. The general meeting is chaired by the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board. The Management Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG presents the annual statement and the
consolidated statement to the general meeting. As the body for expressing the will of our shareholders, the
general meeting decides on changes to the statutes and on key management decisions such as company agreements
and changes to the company form, the issuing of new shares and other financial instruments, and authorisation
to purchase the Company's own shares.

1 Constitules repor! of corporate governane e
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All Carl Zeiss Meditec shareholders have the same rights —

each share entitles the bearer to one vote.

Cooperation between Management and Supervisory Boards

The dual management system of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, which charges the Management Board with managing
the company and the Supervisory Board with advising and monitoring the Management Board, is based —
like the German Coiporate Governance Code - on German Stock Corporation legisiation. In the interests of
successful management of the Company, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board maintain a close
dialogue with each other. The Management Board coordinates the Company's strategic orientation with the
Supervisory Board and ciscusses the progress of strategy implementation with it at regular intervals,

The Supervisory Board is directly involved in decisions which are of fundamental importance for Carl Zeiss
Meditec AG. These include decisions which could have a major impact on the Company's net worth, financial
position or earnings. The Management Board and the Chairman of the Supervisory Board are jointly responsible
for providing the Supervisory Board with appropriate information.

The Management Board
The Management Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG runs the Company. It is committed to defending the
Company’s interests and to raising its long-term value.

The Chief Executive Officer coordinates the Company's basic policies. The main responsibilities of the
Management Beard are defining corporate strategy, setting the Company budget and distributing resources.
[t publishes quarterly and annual statements for the Group and is responsible for filling the most important
posts in the Company. It also keeps the Supervisory Board informed regularly, comprehensively and with no delay
on all issues concerning planning, business performance and risk management for Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.
Any secondary occupations require the consent of the Supervisory Board. None of the Management Board

members has such a secondary occupation.




Remuneration of the Management Board

The Management Board remuneration consists of fixed and variable components. The appropriateness of
these components is reviewed at the beginning of each financial year by the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board General Committee.

The variable component is contingent upon certain quantitative goals being reached. These goals also form the
basis of the corporate control and should take both short and long term business performance {e.g. sales,
EBIT, EVA®) into account. Strategic goals as agreed with the Supervisory Board are also taken into consideration.

From the financial year 2004/2005, a Long Term incentive Program is to be introduced for the Management
Board and the Company executives. The main aim here is to provide incentives for raising the medium and
long term shareholder value and to focus the management on growing the company value over a longer
period of time.

Global Management Committee

The Global Management Committee has been set up to ensure efficient coordination between the German
parent company and its US subsidiary, Carf Zeiss Meditec, Inc. The members, consisting of the Management
Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, lena, and the President of Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc., Dublin, USA, liaise closely
on strategic issues and discuss key points of strategy implementation. The body meets regufarly in person
and holds conference calls.

The Supervisory Board

tmmediately after the end of the financial year 2003/2004 two changes were made to the Supervisory Board
of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG. Dr. Markus Guthoff, management board member of IKB Deutsche Industriebank AG,
was appointed to the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in October 2004. On the KB Board of
Management, Dr. Guthofl is responsible for the Private Equity Division, risk management, controlling of credit
risks and organisation and information processing. He has a great deal of experience in capital markets. After
a bank apprenticeship and studies in Business Administration and Economics he joined the Corporate Finance
Division of 1KB Deutsche Industriebank AG in 1993. There he gained experience in several areas and has been
a member of the Management 8oard since 2001,



The new legally appointed employee representative on the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG is
Wilhelm Burmeister, He is the Chairman of the Works Council of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG. Two employee
representatives have served on a voluntary basis on the Supesvisory Board since the company was founded
in 2002.

Dr. Markus Guthoff and Withelm Burmeister were appointed to the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec
AG as successors to Dr. Franz-Ferdinand von Falkenhausen (Managing Director of Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH)
and Jirgen DOmel {Chairman of the Group Council of Carl Zeiss AG) who are resigning their posts due to
personal reasons.

The Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG therefore consisted, as in the previous year, of six members.
All the members of this body are committed to defending the Company's interests.

The Chairman of the Sugervisory Board coordinates the work of the Supervisory Board and chairs its meetings.

Transparency in reporting

To ensure maximum transparency, Carl Zeiss Meditec provides reqular and topical information to its
shareholders, financial analysts, shareholder associations, the media and the general public about the
Company's performance and about any important changes to the business. All the shareholders and the
main target groups receive the same information simultaneously. We take great pains to ensure that all the
information we provide is issued to the interest groups without any delay.

In preparation for the Anlegerschutzverbesserungsgesetz (German Investor Protection Improvement Act)
which came into force on 30 October 2004, a working group was set up during the financial year
2003/2004 to oversee and monitor the obligation to issue ad-hoc announcements. The responsibilities of
this working group include checking to see whether there is an obligation to make an announcement about
a particular event, if necessary defining the times of ad-hoc events and making the necessary preparations
for publishing the corresponding ad-hoc announcement.

Open and fair communication generates trust. Carl Zeiss Meditec provides

regular and topical information to all interest groups about the Company's

performance and about any tmportant changes to the business.




The annual financial statements including the annual management report are published much more quickly
than the required 90 days after the end of the financial year. Right from the outset Carl Zeiss Meditec has had
a policy of "fast closing”, meaning that it publishes its statements and reports simultaneously. Interim reports
are published within 45 days of the end of the quarter in question. All mandatory publications and many of the
Company's additional investor relations publications are issued both in German and English. We use our
Website as a platform for publishing continually updated information. The dates of the main publications —
such as annual and interim reports or general meetings ~ and a whole range of other information such as inve-
stor presentation are held there for general access.

In addition, the Management Board also issues an immediate statement if there are any notifiable changes to
share ownership. This is deemed to be the case if an individual's shares go above or below 5, 10, 25, 50 or 75 percent
of the voting rights of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG through buying, selling or some other method. Carl Zeiss Meditec AG
also publishes details of all the deals of the Management and Supervisory Board members involving company
shares. This information is made avaifable immediately in German and English on the corporate website at

www.meditec.zeiss.com/ir.

Financial records and auditing

Shareholders and third parties are informed principally via the consolidated financial statement. Carl Zeiss
Meditec consolidated financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the US-GAAP (Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles). The financial statements of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG are prepared by the
Management Board, approved by the Supervisory Board and checked and certified by an independent auditor.
Prof. Dr. Binder, Dr. Dr. Hillebrecht & Partner GmbH, Stuttgart, were chosen as the auditors for the annual
individual and consclidated statements at the general meeting on 19 March 2004. Before making their proposal,
the Supervisory Board obtained a declaration from the auditor confirming that there are no professional,
financial or other relationships between the auditor and his bodies and head auditors on the one hand and
the Company and its body members on the other.




A healthy financial structure — audited by independent auditors —

guarantees the ongoing solidity and reliability of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.

Since the beginning of the financial year 2004/2005, which started on 1 October 2004, Carl Zeiss Meditec
has adopted extensive measures in preparation for the legally required change to the European [FRS accounting
regulations from the financial year 2005/2006. Accordingly, as of 1 October 2004 alt internal and external
accounts of Carl Zeiss Meditec are being drawn up in accordance with the Handelsgesetzbuch
(German Commercial Cede), US GAAP and IFRS.

Open and ongoing dialogue with our shareholders is the ambitious goal we have set ourselves, and one
which we intend to:continue fulfilling in the future through comprehensive and transparent communication.
As the result of a transarent business policy and rapid and open reporting, we will continue to promote
trust in our Company from investors and the general public.

Implementing the code suggestions
("discretionary provisions”)

In accordance with its commitment (o good corporate governance, Carl Zeiss Meditec is not only implementing
the main recommendations of the code, it is also observing all relevant "discretionary” suggestions in the
code. The following table provides an overview of these.
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No.

3.6.

36.

37

3.10.

533.
534,

54.4.

6.8.

Recommiendation

Proxies ﬁomin ated by the Company should also be contactable

during the general meeting

The corrgpany should allow shareholders to follow the general meeting
via mod;em ccmmunication media (e.g. internet).

In supervisory boards which include employee representatives, the shareholder and

employée repiesentatives should prepare for the supervisory board meelings separately,

or together with members of the management board, where applicable.
The supérvismy board should meet without the management board where necessary,

In appropriate cases an extraordinary general meeting should be held

The company should comment on the code suggestions in the corporate
governance réport.

The variable components of the management board's remuneration should inciude
one-off and awnwally recurring components linked to the business success and also
coraponents tased on fong-term success and calculated risk-taking.

When new management board members are appointed, the fength of contract
should fot ex:eed five years,

The superviso y board can transfer the appointment of management board members

1o a committee which then lays down the contract details and the remuneration.

The chairman of the supervisory boasd should not also be chairman

of the auditing committee.

The chairman of the auditing committee should not be a former

management board member.

The supervisory board may delegate other topics to committees.

The supervisory board can decide that its meetings are to be prepared by committees
and that thes: can also make decisions instead of the supervisory board.

Itis possible 1o (re-Jelect supervisory board members at different times and for
different pericds of office.

Remuneratior of the supervisory board should aiso contain components based
on the long-term success of the company.

Compafy putlications should also be produced in Engish.

The Company bielieves i i questionable whether such a service would be used
by many charsholders as this requires the latzst technical equipment
{e.g. DSL connection; with sufficient transmission quality for thein to foltow

the general meeting property.

Carl Zeiss iMeditec will manitor relevant developments and respond quickly
to any fundamental changes.

Does not apply for the Company

Does not apply for the Company,
as no requirement in the financial year 2003/2004
Does not apply for the Company,
as no requirément in the finanaial year 2002/2004




Declaration by the Management and Supervisory Boards
of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG on the German Corporate
Governance Code in accordance with Art. 161 AktG
(Stock Corporation Act)

Pursuant to Art. 161 AktG the Management and Supervisory Boards of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG are obliged
to submit an annual declaration that the recommendations of the “Government Commission on the German
Corporate Governance Code” have been complied with. This deciaration must be made permanently accessible
to shareholders.

The Management Board and Supervisory Board declare herewith

that since its last declaration of 8 December 2003, Carl Zeiss Meditec AG has applied the recommendations
of the "Government Cormission on the German Corporate Governance Code” in the version dated 21 May 2003,
with only one restriction concerning the itemised listing of fixed and variable remuneration components of
Management Board merabers. The remuneration of the Management Board in the financial year 2002/2003
was presented as a total amount.

The Management and Supervisory Boards furthermore declare that Carl Zeiss Meditec AG observes and will
continue to observe the recommendations of the Code in the version dated 21 May 2003. Only the
recommendation contained in article 4.2.4 of the German Corporate Governance Code will continue to be
given restricted observance.

Art. 4.2.4:

In the notes to the consolidated financial statements, remuneration paid to members of
the Management Board shall be shown divided into fixed allowances, profit-orientated
components and cemponents with long-term incentive effect. The figures shall be shown
for each director individually.

Payments received by the Management Board are shown as a total in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements for the financial year 2003/2004. The Management and Supervisory Boards will examine the
possibility of an individualised declaration in future.

Jena, 9 December 2004

For the Supervisory Board For the Management Board
(Dr. Michael Kaschke) {Ulrich Krauss)




Financial statements 2003/2004 of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena (HGB)

income'statement BB {€°000) m Financial year 2002/2003 Change

Salee 30933 102,860 +% 9%
Gross peofit on sales 41,512 3.6%

¢ sctivities 13,842 4,348 +2186%
Extraordinary result — {4,500y 100.0%
Netincomed for the year 13,231 {158; nia
Loss carryforward (32.782) 93.5%
Withdiawa! from capital reserve 32,890 nfa
Netincame 13,672 {1581 + 49 5%,

Saies and prafit contributions of the solg-cff Aesthetic and Dental business units are disclosed in the Company's individuol finandio!
siatements of the fiianuol year 2063/2004 until the date of the sale, 1.e. 30 April 2003

Including ope:ating loss of the Aesthetie and Dentol units to the amount of € -0.8 million.
Less on the soie of the inventones and fixed assels in connection with the disposal of the Aesthetic and Cental business uniis

Bziance sheet KN {€°000) 3009 30.09.2003 Change
Fixed assets 128,003 121,966 +4.9%
Coreent assets 80,527 +98%
thereof Trade accounts receivable 13,343 -34.3%
theieof Cash and cash equivalents 2 40,628 26,190 +52.8%
Shareholders” equity 195,228 181,997 +7.3%
Liabiliies 10,003 -4.4%
8ziznie sheet total 216573 202 853 +£ Gt
[+ (€'000) Financial year 200372004 Financial year 200212003 Change
Cash flow from operating activities 25831 9,605 +169.0%

The complete annual financial statements of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jeng, in accordance with the German
Commercial Code (HGB), including the ungualified audit certificate, will be available for downloading from
the Carl Zeiss Meditec Website www.meditec.zeiss.com/ir. Alternatively, it may also be requested in written
form as an offprint from Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.




Consolidated financial statements
of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG (US GAAP)
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Consolidated management report for the financial year 2003/2004

Executive summary

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena, is the parent company of the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group (the "Group”, "Carl Zeiss
Meditec"). Together with its operative companies, as of 30 September 2004 the Carl Zeiss Medite¢ Group had
the following structure:

Y

.
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG
Jena (Germany)

100% 100%
Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc. Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH
Dublin, CA (USA) I Pirmasens {Germany)

[ 51%
Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Ltd.
Tokyo (Japan)

The take-over of the glaucoma diagnosis specialist Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc., San Diego, USA,
("LBT"), which was announced after the balance sheet date, and its integration into the Carl Zeiss Meditec
Group, has not been taken into account as a number of resolutions still have to be adopted by the respective
commitiees. Further delails on the acquisition of LDT are to be found in the supplementary report.

Despite negative exchange rate effects, consolidated sales almost reached the level seen in the previous year.
They totalled € 234.9 million (previous year: € 235.7 million). Had exchange rates remained on the previous
year's level, sales would have been € 249.9 million - an increase of 6.0% over the previous year. Due to the
further optimisation of the product mix and reductions in costs of revenues, the consolidated gross margin
increased 10 46.4% (previous year: 43.5%).

Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) significantly improved by 6.5% over the previous year (€ 24.7 million)
to € 26.3 million. The EBIT margin also significantly improved. In the financial year 2003/2004 it amounted to
11.2%, {ollowing on from 10.5% in the previous year.

Consolidated net income was almost double the previous year's figure. It amounted to € 12.6 million (previous
year: € 6.6 million). Earnings per share increased to € 0.44 {previous year: € 0.25).

Thanks to a clear reduction in accounts receivable and inventories, coupled with a positive business development,
the cash flow from operating activities repeatedly improved in the period under review, rising by 12.6% to
€ 31.6 million (previous year: € 28.1 million).

The net cash and cash equivalents (cash on hand and credits with the group treasury of Carl Zeiss AG) reached
a record level of € 77.1 million (previous year: € 57.1 million).




Business report
1. Underlying conditions for economic development’

The powerful upturn that lasted until the spring of 2004 has since slowed down. Growth in the USA and
China, in particular, has 1ailed off considerably. In both countries the reins have been pulled in on the prevailing
monetary policy. In the USA financial policy moves to stimulate the economy have now run their course,

and in China administretive measures have been taken to rein in the exuberant economy.’

The economic recovery i1 the euro-zone stabilised in the financial year 2003/2004. Thus, the gross domestic
product in real terms rose to a significantly greater degree in the first six months of 2004 than it had in the
last six months of 2003. Although there were considerable differences between the individual EU member
states with respect to ihe strength of growth and also its causes, on the whole it may be stated that
the economic recovery in this region was fuelled to a greater degree by exports than by an increase in
domestic demand’

The recovery in the German economy — analogous to developments throughout the euro-zone - was
reinforced in the period under review. Thus economic research institutes such as Deutsches Institut fir
Wirtschaftsforschung ("DIW") regard “the ongoing stagnation which set in with the economic collapse
crash in the year 2000", as having been overcome. The motor for growth is once again exports, however.
Domestic demand = and here above all private and state spending — continue to stagnate. The reasons for
this stagnating demand lie in rising energy prices and consumer uncertainty arising from the diverse reform
plans, the majority of which are yet to be implemented.

Business activitias in the regions are being dampened by the major rise in oil prices. Moreover, exports from
the euro-zone have been burdened by a considerable rise in the value of the euro over the US dollar.

Ceutsches Institit fr Winschafisforschung (German insifiuze for Economic Researchl, Berlin (Publl: Weekly Report No. 4312004
“The Situeticn of theé Global and German Econiamies in Autumn 2004°, 21.10.2004, Berlin

{f. inid., p. 629-637

Ot ibid. p. 6384

ibid. p. 645
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2. Structure of the consolidated financial statements
The following aspects must be borne in mind with regard to the structure of the consolidated financial statements:

- Expansion of the reporting entity: On 17 December 2003 Carl Zeiss Meditec acquired a 100% interest in
hiko medical communication GmbH of Pirmasens, Germany ("hiko”), a company specialising in the
development of software for medical technology. Accordingly, the activities of the former hiko, now operating
under the name Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH, are included in the consolidated financial statements
of Carl Zeiss Meditec from this date onwards.

- Reporting of discontinued operations: With effect from 1 May 2003, in the financial year 2002/2003
Carl Zeiss Meditec sold off the Aesthetic and Dental divisions that were not part of its core business,
In accordance with the US accounting rules set forth in SFAS No. 144, this disposal was classified as
“discontinued operations”. Accordingly, the contributions to sales and expenses generated in this
sector were aggregated in the previous year's consolidated income statement and disclosed separately.
The revenue from the sale of business units is shown at the end of the income statement
("Consolidated net income from discontinued operations”).

3. Development of sales

In the financial year 2003/2004 Carl Zeiss Meditec posted consolidated sales of € 234.9 million, a figure
similar to that seen in the previous year (€ 235.7 million). The organic sales growth within the Group was
thus abfe to compensate for negative exchange rate effects, which resulted above all {rom the decrease in
value of the US dollar over the euro. Whereas one US dollar cost an average of 0.93 euro in the finandial
year 2002/2003, this figure fell by 0.11 euro in the period under review to an average of 0.82 euro.
Accordingly, if the development of the consolidated sales is compared with the previous year on the basis
of constant exchange rates, there would have been an improvement of 6.0% to € 249.9 million over the
financial year 2002/2003.

Furthermore, if the consolidated sales attained in the previous year from OEM contracts® terminated at
the beginning of the financial year 2003/2004 are adjusted, on a comparable basis to the previous year
(“like for like") the adjusted growth in sales in the Group is 12.3%.

n

The Groug manufactures products for other compames within the jramewasrk of Criginal [quipment Manufosturing contracts
MOLA contracts™), whe then sell these 16 end customers undér the

cwn Lrond nemes. The términgted contracts were ongi-
nally concluded by the American subsidiary Cort Zewss Meditec, inc.. so as i ulibise available groducuc it
fly fuded by the A biidiary Cort 7 Meditec, in o i vldise availobl oducten Copoities



Sales by business seyment

Consolidated sales in the Laser business unit rose considerably. In the reporting period sales of € 44.1 million
were attained. This corresponds to an increase of 27.7% over the previous year (€ 34.5 million). The share
of this business segment in the consolidated sales has thus increased from 14.6% in the financial year
2002/2003 to 18.8% in the financial year 2003/2004. The major contribution to this was made by the positive
development in sales in the field of refractive lasers. The main focus of sales, in this respect, was on Europe
and Asian growth regions such as China. Furthermore, business with the other laser systems also developed
dynamically. The VISULAS™ 5325 and the VISULAS™ 5325 Combi for the treatment of retinal diseases and
glaucoma were successiul in Eurape, above all. Moreover, sales with the VISULAS™ 690s system, which is
used within the framewrork of 3 so-called photodynamic therapy in conjunction with the Novartis drug
Visudyne® for the treatment of age-refated macular degeneration (AMD), rose in Japan in the period under
review. The foundations for this were laid by the granting of product approval by the Japanese Ministry of
Health in December 2003 and the publication in June 2004 of the decision by this ministry to reimburse
the costs for AMD treatments with the VISULAS™ 690s and Visudyne®

Consolidated sales in the Diagnosis business unit decreased by 5.0% over the previous year as a consequence
of exchange rates and the termination of the above-mentioned OEM contracts. In the reporting period
these amounted to € 1€69.8 million (previous year: € 178.8 million). The mainstays of sales in this segment
were the systems STRATUSccr™, IOLMaster® and the Humphrey® Field Analyzer. The most important markets
for the STRATUSoCT™ diagnostic system in the reporting period were the USA and Japan. Moreover, consolidated
sales with this product rose in Europe. The unique technology — optical coherence tomography ~ upon
which the STRATUSoci™ is based enables the rendering of real-time, cross-section views of the neurofibral
fayers of the eye. In this way serious eye diseases like glaucoma and several retinal disorders can be
diagnosed earlier than hitherto. The most significant sales markets for the IOLMaster®, with which the eye
can be measured contact-free and precisely prior to an operation for cataracts, were Europe and the USA.
The Humphrey® Field Atalyzer HFA, which has established itself as the "gold standard” for the diagnosis
of glaucoma, saw significant sales in the USA and Japan. Further mainstays of sales were the diagnostic
system Humphrey® FDT for the routine diagnosis of the field of vision within the framework of glaucoma
check-ups and the fundus cameras FF 450 and VISUCAM™ /ite, with which the ocular fundus may be

examined precisely,

Sales in the Service business unit decreased by 6.2% to € 21.0 million from € 22.4 million in the previous
year. The share of the sales from the Service unit in consolidated sales thus decreased slightly, from 9.5%
in the previous year to &.9% in the financial year 2003/2004. A significant reason for this development lays
in the guarantee periods granted for the many new products launched on the market by the Company, such
as the refractive laser MEL 80™, and during which there are generally only low service revenues. However,
in the future the Group 2xpects service sales to rise as customers usually enter into maintenance agreements
for more complex products ance the guarantee period has expired.
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Sales by business segment in the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 developed as summarised in
Figure 1.

Sales by business segment

Financial year Financial year
200372004 2002/2003
22,361
et thereof
20,978 e terminated O semvice -6.2%
OFfM sales: 0O . .
13,147 Diagnostics -5.0%
169,798 / N\ 178826 Diggnostics excl.
. : terminated OFM sales: +2.5%
44,102 £ 3 34527 B Laser +21.7%
Consolidated sales:  Consclidated sales:
234,878 235714

On the basis of constant exchange rates over the previous year all of the Group's business units would have
attained an increase in sales. If the consolidated sales are also adjusted for those sales with diagnostic
systems attained in the previous year with OEM supplies, the Group's fargest business unit would have
posted an increase in sales of 10.2% in the period under review compared to the financial year 2002/2003.
Figure 2 shows the distribution of consolidated sales by business segment on the basis of constant exchan-
ge rates.

Sales by business segment on the basis of constant exchange rates

Financial year Financial year
200312004 2002/2003
22,361
/_—
thereof
22,565 f;ff'x;‘"mfd_ O Ssenice +0.9%
7;‘;;57 [J  Diagnostics +2.1%
182621 / AN 178,826 Diagnostics excl.
- - terminated OEM sales +10.2%
LR A M| 34,527 B e +29.5%
Consolidated sales:  Consolidated sales:
249,887 235,714



The distribution of sales. by region in the period under review reflects the macro-economic trends shown in
the section 1. Underlying conditions for ecanomic development”. The greatest impetus for sales came from
the Asian/Pacific region. In this region, consolidated sales rose by 17.4%, to € 65.5 million (previous year:
€ 55.8 million). With an upturn of 8.2% a comparatively high growth rate was also attained in Germany.
In the period under review the Group posted sales of € 17.7 million in Germany (previous year: € 16.4 million),
something that is, above all, due to the excellent development of sales in the fourth quarter of the financial
year 2003/2004. The davelopment of the consolidated sales in Germany may be interpreted as an initial
indication that the current reservation with replacement investment is being reversed. Moderate sales growth
was attained in Europe (excluding Germany), where the sales revenues increased by 4.5%, to € 41.9 million
(previous year: € 40.1 million). Sales in the Americas region, which encompasses the USA above all,
decreased by 11.1%, from € 123.5 million in the previous year to € 109.8 million. The reasons for this are
the weakness of the US dollar over the euro, and the loss of sales of € 13.1 million attained in the previous

year with OEM supplies. Figure 3 shows the development of consolidated sales by region.

Financial year Financial year
2003/2004 2002/2003
55,780
} Thereof
! E{E’Zﬁ,’f O Asia/ Pacific +17.4%
654718 _~ ~ 13,147 O Americas 11.1%
109,806 ~ 123,490 Americas (excluding
41,860 ; 40,051 termingted OEM sales) -0.5%
17738 B -#_1.63: B turope (excl. Germany) +4.5%
RIS —— O Germany +8.2%

Consolidated sales:  Consolidated sales:
234,878 235,714

On a comparable basis with the previous year, namely with constant exchange rates and following the
adjustment for the GEM sales in the financial year 2003/2004, it may be seen that the Group has been able
to considerably expand its regional market position, and in particular in the USA, the world's largest medical
market. The adjusted ircrease in sales here would have been 11.1%. In the Asia/Pacific Rim region the
growth in sales would have been 21.3%, and thus much greater than reported. Figure 4 shows the development
of consolidated sales by region on the basis of constant exchange rates.

B Figure 3
Consolidatad cales by region
in the financial years

200312004 and 2002/7003

an € °000)
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. "Consolidated sales by region on the bésis of con;iant exchange rates

Financial year
2003/2004

67,639
122,625
41,876

17,747 .,

Consolidated sales:
249,887

4, Orders on hand

Financial year
200212003

55,780

thereof
terminated
OEM sales:

~ 13,147
~ 123,490
- 40,051

~ 16,393

Consolidated sales:
235,714

oo

(g |

Asia / Pacific:

Americas

+21.3%
-0.7%

Americos (exc.

terminated OEM sales)
Europe {excl. Germany)

Germany

+11.1%
+4.6%
+8.3%

As of 30 September 2004 Group's orders on hand totalled € 13.6 million (previous year: € 13.2 million).

As in the previous year, Carl Zeiss Meditec believes there is a continuing trend towards customers placing

orders at short notice.

Figure 5 shows the distribution of orders on hand as al the individual group companies of the balance sheet date.

Orders on hand by group company

7.1%

<1%

52.2%

40.7%

O o 0O =

Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH,
Pirmasens, Germany

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG,

Jena, Germany

Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc.,

Dubfin, USA

Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Utd.,
Tokyo, Japan



5. Production planning and production
The Group has tworproduction sites. These are located in Jena, Germany and Dublin, USA.

The Group's core competencies embrace the development of new technologies, products and applications
(cf. Research and Development Report) and the manufacture of key components. The main focus of product
manufacturing by the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group is on the assembly of system components. More than two
thirds of the parts or components required in Jena are purchased from external suppliers. The remaining
third is divided equally between other members of the Carl Zeiss AG and the Group's own component
manufacturing facilities. A large number of the parts and system components used in Dublin are purchased
from external suppliers.

[n the financial year 2003/2004 the Group further extended and optimised its production processes.
Moreover, the assembly srocesses were further optimised for those systems produced in large numbers. At the
sites in Jena and Dublin production lines were also established for the new products launched on the market
in the financial year.

Production planning in Jena is based on the rolling forecast method used by the sales partners. This method
requires the latter to prepare a rolling sales forecast as a basis for ordering individual items and manufacturing
components. For the puiposes of restricting stock-keeping to a minimum, final assembly is usually performed
to customer orders. Products at Dublin are made to meet the orders of marketing partners according to the

demand-flow principle.
6. Development of manufacturing capacities
The Carl Zeiss Meditec Group compensates for fluctuations in demand by flexible deployment of production

persannel. One prerequisite for this is an appropriate training system, by which the employees are qualified
for work on the different production lines.
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7. Procurement

As described under "5. Production planning and production”, products are assembled almaost exclusively to
customer orders submitted. The purpose of this is to keep stocks as low as possible. Accordingly, the respective
components are calied up from suppliers shortly befare the production date.

Moreover, the Group made further progress in the optimisation of its inventories in the financial year
2003/2004. Thus, so-called consignment warehouses were established with other main suppliers at the Jena
focation. These are stock warehouses which are owned by the respective supplier and are integrated into the
product process of the Group. The necessary compenents are called up as required and invoiced. Furthermore,
the organisation of restocking for these warehouses is entirely in the hands of the suppliers.

The Group attaches great significance to long-term partnerships with its suppliers. Suppliers are subject to
regular qualification audits in order to ensure consistently high quality fevels, and also with purchased

components and parts.

8. Quality management

Official registrations and approvals are demanded by the majority of markets as a prerequisite for the marketing
of medical products. Accordingly Carl Zeiss Medilec has had its individual group companies registered with
the responsible national agencies. In order to successfully attain approvals the quality management system
of the Group is reqularly audited and certified by DQS GmbH Deutsche Gesellschalt zur Zertifizierung von
Managementsystemen in accordance with 1SO 9001 & 13485, Appendix 1 & V of the Directive 93/42/EEC
and the Canadian Medjcal Device Regulation {(MDR).

The quality management system of the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group also conforms with the requirements of
the U.S. legislation 21 C.F.R. part 820, Quality Systems Regulation.

9. Registrations and approvals

The Group's products are fundamentally intended for marketing worldwide. For this reason, the design
features, materials and components employed, as well as the interfaces of all devices and systems, are all
chosen at the outset so that they can be used anywhere in the world.

With the exception of the refractive laser MEL 80™, for which the approval procedure in the USA and
Japan is still pending, the Group's complete range of products has been approved in all major countries of
the world.




10. Personnel

As of 30 September 2004 the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group employed a workforce of 796 (previous year: 752).
In addition there were 23 trainees in Germany. Partially retired employees in Germany were not included in
this figure. The increase in the number of employees results from the take-over of hiko medical communication
GmbH as of 17 December 2003 (cf. also Section "12. Events of particular significance”).

On an annual average a total of 801 employees were employed by the Group in the financial year 2003/2004
(previous year: 798 employees). Total personnel expenses’ in the reporting period stood at € 60.4 miltion
(previous year: € 61.5 million). Personnel expenses as a ratio of consolidated sales are thus 25.7%
(previous year: 26.1%).

Figure 6 provides an overview of the personnel structure at the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group as of
30 September 2004,

Personnel stru:ctu}e of|the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group

- B Production

9.2% ¢ 31.0% (3 sales and marketing
o |1 O service
‘ O Product management

20.4% : 16.6% {3 Research and development

. : {3 Management Board,
3% / ) commercial sector, administration

TN 168% B Quality management

11. Environmental protection

Within the framework of its business activity the Group complies with all the relevant environmental

protection provisions.

There is no direct or indirect risk to the environment from the Group's products or production methods.

& This itemn encompuasses wages and saiaries, socul security and retirement pension payments
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12. Events of particular significance

On 17 December 2003 Carl Zeiss Meditec announced that the Group had acquired a 100% interest in its
long-standing alliance partner hiko medical communication GmbH in Pirmasens. hiko medical communication
GmbH has been trading as Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH since 29 June 2004.

Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH specialises in the development of medical software solutions, and under
the name VISUPAC™ it markets a successful product that enables central filing and management of diagnostic
and treatment data by eye specialists and clinics,

With this acquisition a further major step was taken towards implementing the corporate strategy. The Group
has thus secured the necessary resources and know-how in order to be able to offer customers cross-platform
software solutions for ophthalmic applications.

13. Net worth

a) Statement of net worth

The consolidated balance sheet total of Carl Zeiss Meditec as of 30 September 2004 stood at € 215.4 mil-
lion. Compared to the previous year (€ 205.8 million) this constitutes an increase of 4.7%. This increase is
essentially due 1o a rise of 10.5% in the liquid funds to € 49.7 million (previous year: € 45.0 million), as
well as to a considerable rise in the credit with the group treasury of Carl Zeiss AG. This credit, which is
disclosed under "Accounts receivable due from affiliated companies” totalled € 27.4 miilion {previous year:
€ 12.1 million) as of 30 September 2004. The Carl Zeiss Meditec Group may dispose of the funds, which
are invested at the customary market conditions, at short notice. Furthermore, the item "Goodwill" increased
by £ 5.0 million to € 16.1 million. The reason for this is the acquisition of hike medical communication
GmbH (cf also Section "12. Events of particular significance"). In total, this more than compensated for the
various contracling effects on the assets side of the consolidated balance sheet. These elfects include:

- Assignificant reduction in trade accounts receivable due to further optimisation of collection management
and a further conservative valuation of long-standing receivables This balance sheet item decreased
by 13.5%, from € 30.3 million as of 30 September 2003 to € 26.2 miltion as of 30 September 2004.

- The reduction in the inventories following an improvement in stock management (cf. Sections
"S. Production planning and production” and 7. Procurement”): Inventories were 11.6% down on
last year at € 34.1 million (previous year: € 38.6 million).

- The reduction of "Other assets": Compared to the previous year this balance sheet item declined by
€ 3.3 million to € 1.2 million. This is essentially due to the payment of the final purchase price instalment
of € 1.5 million for the Aesthetic and Dental divisions, which were sold last year, and the payment of
an outstanding residual purchase price claim by the company Biclase Europe GmbH to the amount ot
€ 1.2 million. Biolase Europe GmbH was obliged to make this payment on the basis of an agreement
with the former Asclepion-Meditec AG on the sale of a production facility.



A€ 2.9 million the balarice sheet items “Loans” was of approximately the same magnitude posted in the previous
year (¢ 2.8 million): The out-of-court settlement in the lawsuit against |-Spire s.p.r.l,, Brussels, Belgium, and
its sole shareholder reduced this figure. This settlement foresees the payment of the total amount of € 2.8 million
shown in the balance sheet item "Loans” by I-Spire s.p.r.l. in several instalments. In the period under review
[-Spire s.p.r.l. paid the f rst instalment of € 1.5 million. The item was increased by a loan of € 1.6 million to
the cooperation partner Notal Vision, Inc. Carl Zeiss Meditec cooperates with Netal Vision, Inc. in the field of
the early diagnosis of age-related macular degeneration (AMD).

There were no major changes over the previous year on the liabilities side of the balance sheet. Merely the
"Income taxes payable” decreased to € 2.8 miltion (previous year: € 6.7 million). The reason for this lies in the
fact that the Japanese subsidiary Carl Zeiss Meditec Co. Ltd. paid its tax liabilities earlier than it had in the
previous year. Due 10 the successful development of business the "Retained earnings” more than doubled over
the previous year. As of 30 September 2004 the latter totalled € 24.6 million compared to € 12.0 million as
of 30 September 2003.

Figure 7 summarises the structure of the consolidated balance sheets as of 30 September 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Struicture of cé)nsolida ed balance sheet '
; M

v AR

30.09:2004 30.09.2003
49,748 ] 45,015 B Cash and cash equivalents
106742 . ! 103,818 B Current assets (w/o cash and Fash equivalents)
| i/—‘ {3 Long-term assets {wfo goodwill)
42,817 { ‘ 45,896
Ve 0
16,126 . 116 Goodwl
49,453 S ~__ 50,316 -
_ﬁ v
28,807 | ~ 30,982
: 3 Current liabilities
131,599 121,400
— —— 3 Long-term liabilities
5,574 . 3,147 [0 shareholders’ equity
o O Minority interests
Cons, Cons.
balance balance
sheet total: sheet total:
215,433 205,845

b) Key ratios relating to net worth

Thanks to the successful development of business the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group was able to further improve
its solid balance sheet structure in the period under review. Alongside an increase in the equity ratio and
a reduction in the days of sales outstanding (DSO) over the previous year, the decrease of 95.2% in the
net level of debt over the previous year is of some significance.

Figure 7.

g

Structure of

consolidated balang

as of 30 September 2
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14. Financial position

Summary of key ratios

in the consclidated

28,056 2,078

fasle 1 O3 Key ralios Definition

se af T8 Santarbar 7 . . .
as 01 30 seplember £ Equily ratio Equity capital
ang 2002 Balanca-sheet total
Net debt Liabilities

tess cash and cash equivalents
less accounts receivable from group
treasury of the Carl Zeiss AG

Net financial deot Interest-bearing liabilities € {48,827,600) €(26,971,000)" +81.0%
less cash and cash equivalents
less accounts receivable from group
treasury of the Carl Zeiss AG

3.4
Average on inventories

Inventary turnover Cost of goods sold
Days of Sales Trade accounts
Qutstanding (DSO} receivable

Consolidated sales

59.1 days

X 360 days

a) Statement of financial position

Figure 8 1@ Summary of key ratios in the consolidated cash flow statement :

8.333 37.832

cash flow statement

31,597 6.722)

(18,865) 4,733 "JT

|

fin € 500} =
’ i

] Financial year 200312004
L [ Financial year 200212003

oL

7 Negative sign mieans credit

Net increase in cash
Cash flow from financing activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from operating activities

percentage points
€1,160,000 € 24,194,000 -95.2%



In the period under review the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group again succeeded in enhancing its financial
strength. Compared to the previous year cash flow from operating activities improved by 12.6%, up from
€ 28.1 million to € 31.6 million. The following factors were essentially responsible for this:

- active management of the current assets: The further reduction in receivables and the decrease in the
inventories improved the operating cash flow,

- the considerable improvement in the consolidated net income: The consolidated net income almost
doubled over the financial year 2002/2003. In the reporting period it amounted to € 12.6 million
{previous veat: € £.6 million).

Cash flow from investing activities in the financial year 2003/2004 stood at € -6.7 million (previous year:
€ 2.1 million). The majcr item in this respect is the acquisition of hiko medical communication GmbH with
a volume of £ 5.8 millicn (¢f. also Section "12. Events of particular significance”). Investments in property,
plant and equipment totalled € 2.8 million, and were thus at about the same level seen in the financial
year 2002/2003 (€ 2.8 million). The Capex ratio, i.e. investments as a ratio of consolidated sales, was thus
1.2% (previous year: 1.2%).

In the reporting period the cash flow from financing activities amounted to € -18.9 million (previous year:
€ 8.3 million). In the financial year 2003/2004 the cash inflows from operating activities were invested with
the group treasury of Carl Zeiss AG at the customary market conditions. This is recorded in the cash flow
statement under "Intrease in receivables due from treasury"” and thus has a negative sign. In the previous year
the net cash inflow of £ 24.3 million essentially resuited from the capital increase at Carl Zeiss Meditec.
The total receivables transferred to the group treasury in the period under review were € 15.8 million
(previous year: € 51 million).

The net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the financial year 2003/2004 amounted to € 4.7 million

(previous year: € 37.8 million].

b) Key ratios relating to financial position

Above all, the reduction in the net working capital by 27.7%, from € 41.4 million in the previous year
to € 29.9 million as of 30 September 2004, reflects the successes in the optimisation of the inventories and the
reduction in accounts receivable and other assets. Accordingly, the increase in the working capital ratio over
the previous year is solely attributable to the rise in cash and cash equivalents and to the rise in the credit
with the group treasury of the Carl Zeiss AG. Coverage of the current liabilities by the current assets has thus
further improved.
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Key 1ali0s

Cash and cash
equivalents

Net cash and
cash equivalents

Net working
capitat

Working Capital

Key ratios

Cash flow

per share

Capex ratio

Definition 30.09.2003

Cash at bank and in hand 45,015
Cash at bank and in hand : 77,100 57,067
+ accounts recejvable
from group treasury of
the Carl Zeiss AG

less accounts payable
to group treasury of
the Carl Zeiss AG

Current assets 41,413
less cash and cash
equivalents

less accounts receivable
from group treasury of
the Cart Zeiss AG

less current liabilities

Current assets 107,037 98,517

less current liabilities

A cial year 200372004 Financial year 2002/2003

Cash flow from €111 €1.08
operating activities

Definition

Weighted average
of shares outstanding
Cash flow from investments 1.2%

in fixed assets

Consolidated sales

15. Investing activities

Change

+10.5%

+35.1%

-27.7%

+8.6%

Change

+2.8%

+0 percentage
points

As already seen in Section "14. Finandial position, a) Statement of financial position”, the acguisition of hiko

medical communication GmbH was the most significant investment by the Group in the period under review.

Investments in property, plant and equipment totalled € 2.8 million, and were thus at about the same level
seen in the financial year 2002/2003.



16. Earnings position

a) Statement of earnings

Key ratios ‘ Financial year 200372004 Financial year 2002/2003 Change over previous year
Sales 235714 o

Gross margin ) 43.5% +2.9 percentage points
Earnings before inleres} 24723 +6.5%
and taxes (EBIT) !

EBIT margin ? 10.5% +0.7 percentage points
Consolidated net inccrr';e 6,558 +92.3%
Earnings per share (in é) 0.25 +76.0%

At € 234.9 million- the consolidated sales in the financial year 2003/2004 were at about the same level
seen in the previous year (€ 235.7 million). In the fourth quarter the Cart Zeiss Meditec Group posted sales
of € 64.5 million, a much higher figure than that seen in the preceding quarters. Viewed over the course of
the whole year the considerable decrease in the value of the US dolfar over the euro, and thus the corresponding
negative impact on the conversion of the consolidated sales from US dollars into euros, was virtually

compensated for. Figure: 9 provides an overview of the quarterly sales development.

Consolidated sales per'quarter :

58,403 57,511 54,497 64,467

T
Lo
S

i

‘ Q4 2003/2004
Q3 2003/2004

Q2 2003/2004
Q1 2003/2004

A Tabie 4:
Summary of key ratios
in the consolidated income statement
for the financial years 2003/2004
ang 2002/2003

(in € °000)

B Figure %
Consolidated sales per quarter

in the financial year 2003/2004

(in £ 000
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There was 2 significant improvement in the Group’s gross margin compared to the previous year. In the
financial year 2003/2004 it amounted to 46.4% following on from 43.5% in 2002/2003. This represents an
increase of 2.9 percentage points. The reasons for this development are:

- Further optimisation of the cost of goods sold: It was possible to make further progress in this area,
in particular thanks to the process optimisations and improvements in the field of "Procurement”.

- Change in product mix: The proportion of innovative and powerful diagnosis and therapy systems in
the consolidated sales increased in the period under review.

The function costs increased to € 83.7 million, following from € 77.6 million in the previous year. This
development has arisen as follows:

- In comparison to the financial year 2002/2003 the selling and marketing expenses rose by 8.2% to
£ 47.1 million (previous year: € 43.6 million). This is due, among other things, to the development
of additional sales capacities in the USA. Thus not only has it been possible to compensate for the
toss of the fow-margin OEM sales, which were suspended as of the beginning of the financial year,
but also to attain a clear increase in sales in the local currency (cf. also Section "3. Development of
sales”). Moreover, the marketing activities in the individual markets and for specific products have
been extended. A further increase in the costs in this area over the previous year results from the fact
that the Japanese subsidiary Carl Zeiss Meditec Co. Ltd. was only consolidated for 11 manths in the
previous year, yet the corresponding costs are included in full for the period under review. The marketing
and selling cost ratio thus amounted to 20.1% of consolidated sales {previous year: 18.5%).

- The increase in administrative costs is mainly due to the formation of provisions for two pending litigations
(cf. also Risk Report, Section "11. Legal risks"), as well as a change in allocation of costs for the quality
management of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena, over the previous year. Half of these costs are now stated
under "General and administrative expenses”, the other half under "Cost of goods sold” (in previous
year: fully allocated to "Cost of goods sold"). Furthermore, Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc., Dublin, incurred
higher personnel costs due to the successful business development. Relative to consolidated sales the
administrative expenses ratio rose to 5.0% in the financial year 2003/2004 (previous year: 4.7%).

- In the financial year 2003/2004 the Group spent € 24.9 million on research and development
(previous year: € 22.9 million). Granted subsidies of € 1.0 million (previous year: € 1.8 million) are
included in this amount. Relative to consolidated sales the research and development costs ratio
increased to 10.6% in the financial year 2003/2004, following on from 9.7% in the previous year.
The main reasons for this are the development of additional capacities in this area at Carl Zeiss
Meditec, Inc., as well as costs incurred in connection with approvals for products in the USA. Among
these are, for example, the MEL 80™ and the PreviewPHP™ system,



On the basis of the development of operating activities within the Group, earnings before interest and tax
(EBIT) improved by 6.5% to € 26.3 million (previous year: € 24.7 million). The EBIT margin increased by
0.7 percentage points 1o 11.2% (previous year: 10.5%).

Earnings before tax (EBT) also increased significantly compared to the previous year. They amounted 1o
€ 25.1 million (previous year: € 22.6 million). In addition to the positive trend in the operating business,
this was also attributable to the substantial decrease in interest expenses. These fell from € 2.1 million in
the previous year to € 1.2 million in the financial year 2003/2004.

The tax ratio decreased t0 39.1% in the financial year 2003/2004, following on from 39.8% in the
previous year.

in total Carl Zeiss Medit2c posted a consolidated net income of € 12.6 million, following on from € 6.6 million
in the previous year. This represents an increase of 92.3%. Accordingly the earnings per share improved to
€ 0.44 (previous year: £ 0.25) despite the increase in the weighted average number of shares cutstanding
to 28.4 million (previous year: 25.9 million).

b} Key ratios relating to earnings position

The key ratios relating to the earnings position confirm the successful development of business for the Carl
Zeiss Meditec Group. Above all the growth in the return on eguity and the return on assets show that the
deployment of the necassary resources for the business operation has been further optimised. Figure 10

shows the development of key ralios in @ year-on-year comparison.

Development; of key ratios reléting to earnings position

I

2.8% 5.4% 3.2%
5.4% 9.6% 5.9%

: t [J Financial year 2003/2004
. {3 Financial year 2002/2003
l Return on Assets (RoA)

Retuin on equity

Return on sales

o Figure 10

in the finandial years 200

and 200242603
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Risk report
1. Risk management system

in the course of its business, the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group is naturally exposed to a number of risks that
are inherent 1o commercial activities.

Risk management at Carl Zeiss Meditec is an integral part of corporate management and is based on three
major companents:

- Risk management system: In order to be able to identify and assess risks in good time and take the
appropriate steps, the Group has introduced a risk management system. An important element is a
database-aided software sofution with which risks and their estimated probability of occurrence and
potential for damage may be recorded, systematised and evaluated on a regular basis. The Group thus
satisfies the legal requirements with regard to control and transparency {(KonTraG, Act on Contro! and
Transparency in Stock Corporations).

- Controlling instruments: Controlling at Carl Zeiss Meditec regularly informs the Management Board, the
Managing Directors of the subsidiaries and all responsible decision-makers within the Carl Zeiss Meditec
Group in a timely manner on emerging risks on the basis of key ratios, thereby supplementing the risk
management system.

- Certified quality management: A further critical companent is the Group's certified quality management
(see also: Business Report, Section “8. Quality management"). Clearly structured and documented processes
within the framework of quality management ensure not only transparency — in most markets they are
a prerequisite for the sale of medical products in the meantime. The quality assurance system employed
by Carl Zeiss Meditec was certified by DQS GmbH Deutsche Gesellschaft zur Zertifizierung von
Managementsystemen and conforms to the US standard for “Good Manufacturing Practice”
(GMP), 21 CFR. part 820, QSR. A major objective of this certified process is risk avoidance.

The risk management system is an integral part of the overall controlling and reporting process of the Group
and ensures the systematic recording and evaluation of risks. Furthermore, it guarantees that relevant infor-
mation is forwarded without delay to the Group's decision-makers.




The main features of this system are:

- Under the directicn of a central risk manager, the responsible staff on the different sites requiarly exa-
mine processes, tansactions and developments for existing risks.

- Risk identificatior and evaluation using standardised risk matrices.

- Reqular risk reports are sent to the Management Board, the Managing Directors of the subsidiaries
and other decision-makers within the Group on the basis of given threshold values for relevant risks
and according to the classification using the risk matrices.

- On this basis suitable steps are taken to avoid identified risks, reduce the likelihood of such risks
occurring or minimise the financial losses incurred.

As with the internal reporting, the risk management system is subjected to an internal audit. In addition

the audit formed a-constituent part of the annual audit by the certified auditor.

2. Market and competition

The competition on the medical technology market in general and in ophthalmology in particular will continue
to increase. Fundamentially there is the risk that, compared to competitors, Carl Zeiss Meditec might not
react in good time to market developments with new products and adaptations of existing products. Such
an event would have n2gative consequences for the net worth, financial position and earnings, and also
lead to a deterioration of the market position.

Carl Zeiss Meditec actively counters this risk by making not inconsiderable investments in the field of research
and development, and also in the upstream areas Market Intelligence, New Business Development and
Advanced Technologies.

Furthermore, government reforms in the social system could have a negative effect on the Group's sales
volume and earnings situation. This risk exists particularly in countries in which a major portion of treatments
for eye ailments is paid 2y health insurance schemes. If budgets were cut, or the reimbursement of treatment
costs were denied for certain types of treatment, this could have a negative impact on the Group's net
worth, financial position and earnings.
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An additional risk potential exists in a possible further deterioration in the economic situation, and in
particular with respect to the markets that are critical to the Group. This could have a marked effect on
privately financed medical applications such as refractive surgery: In this case there is a risk of deterioration
in the financial standing of the Group’s customers or the demand for its products. Due to a loss of sales
and receivables this could have a negative impact on the net worth, financial position and earnings of
Carl Zeiss Meditec.

3. New technology and products

Medical technology as a whole, particutarly in the field of ophthalmology, is undergoing an extremely dynamic
development process. New scientific findings fead to shorter development and product cycles. Such findings
may have a negative impact on existing methods and products and also on new methods and products on
which the business success of the Group is founded.

The success of the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group is determined to a great extent by the development of innovative
products in the fields of ophthalmology and by recognising new technology trends at an early stage
and turning these into the appropriate products. Should the Group lose touch in technological terms, fail
to react in time to a technological development, not identify a market trend in good time or should a
development end in a technological dead-end, this could have a negative impact on the competitive position
of the Group.

Carl Zeiss Meditec is actively countering this risk, however, with the measures shown in Section “2. Market
and competition”.

4. Approval of products

in the medical technology and the health service sectors there are strict approval procedures that vary from
one country to another. Denial of or delays in approval procedures for the Group's products could have a
negative impact on the future sales and profits of the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group.

There is no guarantee that the Group's numerous approvals will continue to be valid in the future, renewed
or obtained in good time so as to faunch new new products ahead of its competitors. Furthermore, stricter
approval requirements must be reckoned with in future. This would have negative cansequences for the net
worth, financial position and earnings of Carl Zeiss Meditec.

in order to identify such developments in good time and be able to react appropriately, the Group follows
developments in this field extremely closely, monitoring the details of approval procedures within the framework
of its implemented quality management system.




5. Dependence on suppliers

The increasingly close cuoperation with suppliers necessitated by the general cost pressure and complexity
of the supplied componerits implies a greater dependence on one another. This could have negative implications
for the production, sales and the quality of the Group's products.

Thanks 1o the qualification of its suppliers, the identification of secondary suppliers and the preparation of 2
strategic inventory plan, Carl Zeiss Meditec takes the best-possible measures to counter this risk.

6. Patents and intellectual property

The Carl Zeiss Maditec Group is not aware of any material violation of patent rights or other industrial pro-
perty rights of third parties. The possibility that a third party may assert claims against the Group for the vio-
lation of industrial property rights cannot, however, be ruled out. A violation of this type could result in a
defay in the delivery of groducts. In the event of a negative outcome of the proceeding, the Group may be
obliged to enter into fee or licensing arrangements. There is a risk that such copyright or licensing agree-
ments are not available or only available on unacceplable terms. A lawsuit against Carl Zeiss Meditec AG
or one of its subsidiarie; due to the violation of industrial property rights could therefore have a negative

impact on the net worth, financial situation and earnings of the Group.

The competitive position of the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group depends on securing its technological innovations.
So as to guarantee these, the Group acquires patents for its own and third-party inventions and takes
measures to protect its business secrets. The expiry of industrial property rights or patents could result in the

emergence of new competitors on the market or strengthen the position of competitars who are already active.

In order to avoid the abcve-mentioned fegal disputes, patents and patent applications in the relevant fields

are analysed by the:Group at reqular intervals.
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7. Protection against loss of confidential data

in the sphére of IT solutions the Group has established a number of mechanisms for the protection of
confidential data. Nevertheless, breaches of security and the loss of this data cannot be completely ruled
out. This could have an adverse effect on the competitive position of the Group.

8. Product liability risk

In some of the Group's products employed for medical treatments there is an inherent fundamental risk that
malfunctions result in injury to the patient. Despite employing all reasonable quality control measures and
complying with all legal provisions, this risk cannot be completely excluded. Although the Carl Zeiss
Meditec Group has to date not been obliged to pay any major claims for compensation arising from product
liability, no guarantee can be given that the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group will not be confronted with such

claims in the future.

The Group has covered itself against possible product liability claims by means of product liability insurance.
A particular risk is posed by potential product liabiiity claims brought against the Group in the USA as the
damages awarded by the courts there may be very large indeed. It cannot be completely excluded that the
Group's existing insurance cover does not provide sufficient cover for potential claims in the USA.

9. Subsidiaries

The Carl Zeiss Meditec Group is indirectly exposed to the risk environment of each of ils subsidiaries. The
relationship to its subsidiaries can result in statutory and contractual liabilities.



10. Goodwill

The goodwill stated on the consolidated balance sheet, resulting from the acquisition of the former
Asclepion-Meditec AG by Carl Zeiss Ophthalmic Systems AG and the take-over of the former hiko medical
communication GmbH, is not amortised on a scheduled basis but, in accordance with SFAS 142 is regularly
examined vis-a-vis.its value within the framework of annual impairment tests. An impairment test
performed in the reporting period produced the full value of assets recognised in this balance sheet item.
On the basis of business trends, the Group anticipates pasitive results for future tests. However, there is still
a risk of a fong-term deterioration in the net worth, financial position and earnings, with the attendant

consequences for the arnount of goodwill to be shown in the balance sheet.

11. Legal risks

The Group has reached an out-of-court settlement in the action for damages against I-Spire s.p.r.l,
Brussels/Belgium and its sale proprietor. Inasmuch, any possible risks may be considered as having been
eliminated to the greatest-possible degree. The settlement includes payments of the total amount of € 2.8 million
shown in the balance sheet item "Other loans" by I-Spire s.p.r.l. in several instalments. The payment of the first
two instalments totalling € 1.8 million were recorded at the end of April and after the balance sheet cut-off
date in October 2004.

Current litigation risks arise from the lawsuit and claim for lost earnings filed by a distributor of the former
Asclepion for dermatological lasers, and the pending cost reimbursement lawsuit and claim filed by the insolvency
administrator of the former Asclepion distribution partner U.S. Medical, inc., also in the field of dermatological

lasers. The Company has, from today's stance, taken adequate precautionary measures in the form of provisions.

it
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Research and development report
1. General comments

In the financial year 2003/2004 Carl Zeiss Meditec spent € 24.9 million on research and development (R&D}
{previous year: € 22.9 million). A total of € 1.0 million was granted in subsidies {previous year: € 1.8 million).
Relative to the consolidated sales the R&D ratio increased in the period under review from 9.7% in the previous
year to 10.6%. The reason for this development was, above all, the expansion of additional R&D capacities
at the American company Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc., as well as costs incurred in connection with approvals for
products in the USA. Among these approvals are thase for the MEL 80™ and the PreviewPHP™ system. This
further focus on research and development is clear evidence of its importance in securing the future growth
of the Group.

As of 30 September 2004 162 staff within the Group were employed in RED (previous year: 143); this corresponds
t0 20.4% of the total workforce (previous year: 19.0%).

2. Projects

A aumber of significant R&D projects were successfully concluded in the reporting period with the market
launch of the corresponding products. These included the two software products GPA™ and VISUPAC™ 4.0,
as well as new software upgrades for the STRATUSoCT™ system, the diagnostic system PreviewPHP™ and the
ACMaster™ (cf. also Section "3. New Products in the financiat year 2003/2004°).

Major RED projects at group fevel concern the further expansion of the range of applications and functionality
of products already successfully launched on the market Among these are the systems STRATUSoCT™ and
HFA 11, as well as the refractive faser MEL 80™ and the CRS Master™. Further projects in the sphere of research
and development are concerned with the continued or new development of innovative perimetric systems,
digital fundus cameras and the optimisation of the product portfolio in the field of ophthalmic lasers.

in addition, the fundamentals and outlook for future diagnostic and therapy systems were examined in other
group projects. Above all, systems which allow for an increase in efficiency for physicians and improved
diagnostic and treatment results for patients will be of even greater significance on the market in the future
in the view of the Group. The Group assumes that in the future physicians, patients, health policy and health
insurance companies will focus to a greater degree on the early detection and treatment of serious eye
diseases ~ for instance glaucoma and various retinal diseases.




Together with the American company Cathoun Vision, Inc., Carl Zeiss Meditec has been working on the
development of a new type of intraocular lens whose refractive power can be adjusted after the operation
without the need for further surgical intervention. In this way, cataract surgery can be coupled with the
optimum customised correction of vision defects. The digital light source required for the purpose is being
developed by Carl Zeiss Meditec, the respective fens by Calhoun Vision, Inc.

Further activities in the field of research and development concerned the processes for the US approval of
new products such as the MEL 80™ and the PreviewPHP™

3. New products in the financial year 2003/2004

In the financial year 2003/2004 the following products were brought onto the market by Carl Zeiss
Meditec Group:

- Glaucoma Pfogression Analysis™ Software (GPA™Y): This is software for the management of
glaucoma with the aid of the HFA Il/ system.

- VISUPAC™ 4.0: With VISUPAC™ 4.0 it is possible to intelligently combine different diagnostic systems,
such as fundus cameras and the STRATUSGCT™ system, and, moreover, to link these up to practice
management and hospital information systems.

- Software 4.0 for the STRATUSocT™ system: This software upgrade expands the functionality and
heightens the operating comfort of the diagnostic system STRATUSGCI™.

- PreView PHP™: The PreviewPHP™ diagnostic system represents a new approach to the early detection
and monitorihg of age-related macular degeneration (AMD), a serious retinal disorder.

- ACMaster™: With the AC Master™, which just like the 10t Master® is based on optical biometry, the
front section of the eye may be examined with the greatest precision, something which is of significance
above all in connection with the use of innovative intraocular ienses.

- VISULAS™ YAG HI: This laser system will be deployed in the follow-up treatment of cataract operations.

L
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Supplementary report

On 21 Octaber 2004 the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group announced that it intends to take aver the American
company Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc. (LDT) domiciled in San Diego, California, USA, through
Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc.. LDT developed and commercialised a new standard for glaucoma detection with
its proprietary ocular nerve fiber measurement instrument. For the current financial year 2004 LDT expects
sales of some US $ 20 million and a halanced operating result. Carl Zeiss Meditec assumes that the transaction
can be concluded by the end of 2004 following the necessary approvals from the corresponding executive
bodies and shareholders of LDT,

LDT's main product, the GDx VCC, is a system specially developed for the early deteclion and diagnosis of
glaucoma. It thus complements the market presence of Carl Zeiss Meditec's STRATUSOCT™, a retinal imaging
system with @ wide range of possible applications. These include not only the early delection of glaucoma,
but also its use in the diagnosis of other severe eye ailments such as age-related macular degeneration
(AMD), in diabetic retinopathy, as well as in examinations before and after the treatment of cataracts. In
this manner, the system GDx VCC is primarily aimed at customers who do not require the fuil bandwidth of
examination possibilities, such as is offered by the system STRATUSoci™.

On 1 November 2004 Carl Zeiss Meditec also announced that its Japanese subsidiary, Carl Zeiss Meditec Co.,
Ltd., domiciled in Tokyo, Japan, was taking over the surgery business of Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd. which is also
domiciled in Tokyo, Japan. This business is concerned with the sale of surgical microscopes for ophthalmology,
neurosurgery and for ear, nose and throat surgery, and has annual sales of ca. € 25 millien. In the opinion
of the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group this move allows for the realisation of considerable synergy effects
in various areas such as administration, sales administration, and service. Moreover, in this manner the
subsidiary can reinforce and better coordinate its activities regarding approvals issues,




Forecast
1. Economic conditions

For 2005 Germany's economic research institute Deutsches institut fir Wirtschaftsforschung ("DIW")
expects a further increasa in overall economic output in the industrialised nations. If the favourable monetary
framework conditions, such as low interest rates for loans, are kept in place, this should also have a favourable
impact on further invesiment. From the stance of DIW the economic dynamism in East Asia and in those
threshold countries which export raw materials will remain high in 2005 despite 3 slight downturn.®
"On the whole the driving forces behind the economy seem to be so stable that, despite the rise in oil prices
and the waning stimutus from monetary and financial policy, a drift towards a downturn is not to be expected.”

For the USA and Japan a downturn in the gross domestic product ("GDP") is expected for 2005. For the
USA an improvement of 3.4% (2004: 4.4%) is expected in the GDP in 2004; in Japan the figure is set to
be 2.1% (2004: 4.2%). The economic expectations of DIW for these economic regions are still higher than
those for the euro-zone: here growth of 2.0% has been forecast for the GDP'* For Germany DIW assumes
that there will only be a mild recovery in private consumption in 2005. However, DIW is also of the opinion
that the readiness to invest will pick up slightly in 2005. One of the reasons seen for this is the ongoing
expansion of capacities, which would make replacement and expansion investment necessary. Seen as a
whole, however, the export sector will once again be the driving force behind German industry.™

2. Outlook

In the financial year 20:03/2004 Carl Zeiss Meditec fulfilled important internal prerequisites for a future
acceleration of growth. Alongside an extensive improvement in the net worth, financial and earnings
position in the period under review, progress was also made in further improving the efficiency of internal

process flows.

Once again the Group reasserts its target of doubling its sales revenue by the end of the 2007/2008
financial year.” The eariings power is 10 be reinforced continually and on a sustainable basis at the gross
margin and EBIT margin level, as is the return on sales. In the financial year 2007/2008 the gross margin
is to be around 50%. The EBIT margin is then set to be some 15%. To this end, the product portfolio is to be
extended through the inclusion of innovative systems, and existing rescurces deployed even more efficiently.
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3. Strategy

Based an the excellent position of the Group with devices and systems for ophthalmology, Carl Zeiss Meditec
intends to establish itself as a provider of complete solutions in this field. To this end the existing competitive
position in the field of the four main ophthalmic disorders is to be enhanced. The unique technology and
product portfolio, the extensive expertise in the field of research and development, the strong global marketing
netwerk and the world-famous brand name "Zeiss” provide an excellent basis for this. The acquisition of the
American company Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc., which was announced at the end of October 2004,
is further testimony to the fact that wherever it makes sense external growth options can also be utifised.

lena, 22 November 2004
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Ulrich Krauss Bernd Hirsch
President and CEQ Member of the
Management Board




Consolidated income statement

€000 Notes Financial year 200312004 financial year 2002/2003
Szles 233714
Costs of goods sold { {133,184)
Grass profit 102,536
Selling and marketing expenses (43,563)
General and administrative expenses (11,112)

Research and development expenses (25,574 {24,688}
minus government grants received (2u}(15) 1,790 (22,898)
Other operating income / {expense}, net 519
Fareign cutrency gainsY (fosces) 20320 (753)
tarnings before interest resu t and taxes 24,723
Interest income / {expense), et (2,075
Appreciation, depreciation and valuation adjustments on financial assets -
Earnings before tay 22,648
lncome tax expense from cor tinuing operations 22) 512 9,014
Minority interests @21 (2,880
Nat income from contifiuing operalions 12650 10,754
Income / (foss) before income taxes from discontinued operations* — (5.934)
Income tax benefit from discantinued operations — 1,738
Naticome trom discoatiniesd ppersinns (4,196}
12,630 £.558
oo
044 |
{ERI]
G.44 .25
oo

G.a4 0.41
{G.16)
Total G.44 A5

Weighted average aumber of shares outstanding for the peried under review
Basr

Dluted

(8,402 358

78.407,33¢

These aliow for ¢ ios: of € 4.5 mflion o5 the sole in the previous yeor,

The following notes (¢ theconschidated financigl statemenis are part of the consclidated financiol statement
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Consolidated balance sheet

€000

Assets

Current assets:

Cash

Restricted Cash

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances of
€12.032m (prev.year! € 10.478m)

Accounts receivable frém affiliated companies
Inventories :

Prepaid expenses

Defeired income 1axes

Other assets

Property, plant, and equipment, net

Goodwill

Other intangible assets, net

Other long-term accounts receivable, net of aflowances of
€0.012m {peev. year: € 0.047m)

Loans

Deferied income taxes

Other non-current assets

(2d)
(2d)
{2€} (5)

@
@ m

(20) 22
6)

(10
(20)422)

A 30092004

[ e |
I YT
156,49¢

3

45,015
850
30,344

20,451
38611
1132
7,958
4,472
148,833
26,000
11,116
5,079
718

2818
11,284

one ulidated financiol statements are port of the consciidaied finoncial stgtements.




€000 Notes 30.09.2004 30.09.2003

Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current lizbilities

Current portion of long-terar debt {14) 187
Current portion of capital leisse obligations (n 656 374
Trade accounts payabie 10,636
Accounts payable to affiliated companies “ 5919
Income taxes payable 6,655
Deferred income 4,870
Deferred income taxes' (20) (22 8
Provisions ()3 20527
Other current liabilites () 1,140
cutrent liabiiities 45 50,316
Long-term debt, net of! curreat portion {14) _ 4841
Capital lease obligatiof\s, less current portion 7 24,731
Long-term deferred income — 1,007
Deferred income taxes. (2n) (22) 563 226
Other liabilities ] 143 177
hablinies 75,260 81,198
Minority imerests 2n 3,147
Sharehalders’ equity: —
28,416,629 ordinary shares with an {20) 28,417 28,417
mputed nominal value.of € 1.00,
Additional paid-in capital (20 89,433
Retained earnings (20) 12,032
Accumulated other comprehensive foss (20} 20) (8,374)
Treasury stock 0 (108)
i : 121400
215,433 705,845

The fofiowing notes 1o tne consshigated financigl staterrents e jort of

¢

the conselidated financiet statements
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Consolﬁdated cash flow statement

£'000

n
o
<«
&
bt

Financial year 2002/2003

Cash flow from aperating activities:
Net income 12,610 6,558
Adjustments to recondile ne” income 10 net cash provided by / (used in)
operaling activities

Minority interest 2,880
Depreciation and amottisation 5175
Amortisation of finandial assets 3

Income from accumulation ¢f interest free receivables (125)
Loss on disposal of fixéd ass2ts 121 216
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations — 4,500
Deferred income taxesiin connection with the capital increase — 281
Deferred taxes ‘, — (2,409}
Change in working caﬁitat —

Trade accounts receivable 3.156 10,385

1

inventories 4,846 (5,059)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,585
Trade accounts payable 2,360
Accrued tax expenses 6,518
Other accrued expenses and liabilities (5.868)
459
18982 71.498
318597 78.056
Cash flow from investing activities: —
Change of restricted cash (850)
Purchase of fixed assets 2,790)
Purchase of intangible 3ssets .
Gain on sale of fixed assets 146
Payment of loans and ivestnients 2310
Cash outflow from the issuing of loans .
Inpayment due to the sale of a subsidiary in the context of an asset deal 200
Inpayment due to the disposz! of discontinued operations 1,365
Acquisition of consolidated companies, net of funds received {5.770) 1,697
(Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH: € 5.770m, Carl Zeiss Meditec Co. (td., Tokyo: € 1.697m) —
Net cash (used inj / provided Dy invest {6. 2,078
Cash flow from financing activities: —
Repayments of short-term delst (1,368)
Repayments of long-term debt (178)
inpayments from taking up toans from refated parties 796
Increase ! (decrease) in dccou wts receivable due to Treasury (9,785}
{Increase) / decrease in liabilities from Treasury (5,134)
Repayments under capital lease contracts {347)
Inpayments due 10 sale and lease-back transactions 110
Proceeds from capital increase (net) 24,347
Purchase of treasury stock (108)
Nei cash provided by / in 8132
Effect of exchange rate changzs on liquid assets (635)
Nelincrease in (ash 4733 3783
Cash, beginning of the reporting period 7,183
Cash, end of the reporting pericd 49,742 45,015
Supptemental disclosures concerming the cash flow: —
interest paid 2,187 2676
NCeme toves peid . 11622 175

ine follcwing notes io e conschidoted financial stetements are poart of the conselidated finoniiol statemens




Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

€000

Share  Additional Retained Accumulated Treasury Total

capital paid-in earnings other stock  shareholders’

capital comprehensive equity

loss

As per 30.08.2002 25,833 57,389 5474 (3,367 95,325
Netincome - - 6,558 - 6,558
Other comprehensive Joss (due to currency conversions) - - (5,007 - (5,007)
Accumulated comprehensive income - - - 1,551
Purchase of treasury sfock (108} (108)
Capitatincrease 2,584 22,044 24,628
As per 30.09.2003 : 28417 89,433 12,032 8,376 (108} 121,400
Net income : 12,610 - 12,610
Gther comprehensive {oss {d1e to adjustments of accruals for pensions after taxes) - - (270) - 270
Other comprehensive loss (due to currency conversions) - - 2,071 (2.071)
Accumulated comprehensive income - - - - 10,269
Purchase of treasury stock - (70} (70)
Asper 30.09.20064 28,417 £3,433 24,641 (10,715 {178} 131,599

The follovarg notes 1a ine consolidaied finoncial siatements are poart of the consclideted financial statements



Development of consolidated fixed assets

Financial year 2003/2004 (US GAAP)

€°000 ) Costs of purchase / conversion
01.10.2003 Additions
Acquisition

Intangible assets and goodviilt

Goodwill 13,050
Software . 444
Other intangible assets 6,733
20,227
Property, plant and eq‘_llepment
Land, buildings and leasehold improvement 27,223
Plant and machinery - 8,269
Other fixtures and fmir‘jgs‘ tcols and equipment 11,665
Payments on account and ta gible assets in course of construction 512
47,669

Financial assets
Other joans 2,818
2.818
0,714

5,049
1318
21

5,388

194

194

Additions

1,194
1,513
2,825

1,645
1,645
5,048

Transfers

125
155
28¢

Disposals

(16}
(287)

303

(14)
(146)
(1,293)

Currency
adjustments

(an

Hat

{1,107
(433
(332)

24

(1,896}

{23}
123
(.06}

- 35.09.2604

The foltawing noies on the consclidated financia! statements ere part of the consohdoted financiol statements.



€°000

Intangible assets and goodvill
Goadwill

Software

Other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Land, buildings and Ie:aseho‘d improvement
Plant and machinary

Other fixtures and fittings, tcols and equipment

Payments on account and taagible assets in course of construction

Financial Assets
Other loans ;

Cumulated depreciation

01.10.2003

1,934

200
1,898
4,032

6,346
6,702
8,621

Additions

301
1348
1,649

1,494
677
1,585

s

69
89
5474

Transfers

90
155
245

@
(241)

Disposals

(16)
(287}
{303)

9
130

(1.107)

{1,268)

Lo
o

Currency  30.09.2004
adjustments

(102)

1315 234
0% 5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year 2003/2004 (US GAAP)

(1) The company
(a) Business operations

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena {"Carl Zeiss Meditec” ot the "Company”} is engaged in the business of developing,
manufacturing and marketing medical laser and diagnostic systems. The Company’s headquarters are located
in Jena, Germany's traditional centre of excellence for optical and optical-refated technologies. The
Company has subsidiaries in the USA (100%-owned), Japan (51%-owned) and Germany (100%-owned).
Together these operations constitute the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group {the “Group”).

Carl Zeiss Meditec has so far focused on the ophthalmic market segment. The Company's customers are eye
specialists in private practice, optometrists, opticians and clinics worldwide.

(b) Basis of presentation

The consofidated financial statements were prepared in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles
of the United States of America ("US GAAP").

The financial year of Carl Zeiss Meditec and its subsidiaries ends on 30 September.

(2) Accounting and valuation principles
{a) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the annual financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries
that the Company controls. The financial position, results of operations and cash flows of enterprises that
are controlled by the Company are consolidated. Holdings in enterprises in which the Company exercises a
substantial influence, but which it does not control (usually a share of between 20% and 50%) are reflected
in the accounts by the equity method. Holdings of less than 20% are reflected in the accounts by the historical
cost method if the Company is unable to exercise significant influence and the investee enterprise is not
listed on a stock exchange. The effects of intergroup transactions among consolidated companies have
been eliminated.

e

b o il



The 49% interest held by outsiders to the Group in the Japanese subsidiary Carl Zeiss Meditec Co. Ltd.,
Tokyo, Japan, is disclosed as minority interest. A 51% holding in the company was acquired from Carl Zeiss
Japan Co., Ltd., Tokyo, Japan on 1 November 2002.

(b) Conversion of foreign currency
The functional currency of the Company is the euro.

The assets and liabilities of those foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is other than the euro are
translated using the exchange rate as of the reporting date. Capital transactions and balances are
converted using the historic rates of exchange in effect at the time the transactions were consummated.
The results of operations are converted at the average exchange rate for the financial year. Differences
arising from this translation process are shown under “Other comprehensive income / (loss)” within
shareholders’ equity.

Transactions conducted in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange in effect at the transaction
date. Assets and liabilizies denominated in foreign currency, such as cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable or accounts payable, are remeasured each reporting period until settlement. The resulting income

"

or expenses are shown in the income statement under “Foreign currency gains/(fosses)

The following table shows the exchange rates applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Exchange rate on balance sheet date a5 of Average exchange rate

' 50.06.2000" JEEVIIINE Change ECEPALIEVITNIE 200212003 Change
uss 0.8105 0.8555 53% DRI 09255 A11%
I 0.0078 6.4% R 0.0078 26%

(¢} Use of estimates

The preparation of‘annual financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires the use of certain
assumptions and estimates. These assumptions relate to the recognition and measurement of assets and
liabilities, the nature and extent of contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date and the amount of income

and expenses in the regorting period. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

-
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(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents held in banks as well as liquid securities with an original maturity of less than
three months are reported as cash and cash equivalents. Because of their short maturity, the carrying

amounts of cash and cash equivalents are approximately equal to their fair value.

Restricted cash of € 850,000 as of 30 September 2003 represented collateral for the purchase of business
assets.

(e} Accounts receivable and loans

Trade accounts receivable and loans are disclosed at their nominal value, net of possible allowance for estimated
uncotlectible accounts.

Valuation allowances are established for doubtful receivables and loans associated with discernible risks.
Unrecoverable receivables and loans are written off. Long-term interest free receivables and loans are discounted

based on market conditions; accrued interest is shown as income by the effective interest method.

(f) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of acquisition/manufacturing cost or market value. Costs are primarily
determined on the basis of the weighted average cost method. Manufacturing costs include materials and
labour, as well as direct manufacturing and material overheads including depreciation.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reported at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic life of each asset. The following depre-

ciation periods are applied:

Buildings and leasehald improvements 3-44 years

Plant and machinery, other fixtures and fittings, tocls and equipment 1-23 years




Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their customary service life. This is limited, however, to the
term of the rental or fease agreement. Customary service life is evaluated regularly by the Company's
management in the light of current technological conditions. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
expenses as incurred, while renewals and improvements that extend the useful life or increase capacity are
capitalised. Upon the <ale or retirement of property and equipment, the accounts are relieved of the cost
and related accumulated depreciation, with any resulting gain or loss disclosed in the income statement
under "General and administrative expenses”.

(h) Goodwill

Starting 1 October 2002, Carl Zeiss Meditec AG adopted Statement of Financial Accounting (SFAS) No. 142,
"Goodwill and Intangible Assets”. Under SFAS No. 142 goodwill is no longer amortised. Scheduled amortisation
of goodwill is no longer reflected in the consolidated income statement beginning with the financial year
2002/2003.

Prior to the application of SFAS No. 142, goodwill was amortised over its anticipated useful life. Such goodwill
only represented the excess of purchase cost over the acquired net assels of Humphray Instruments, Inc.
("Humphrey"), a subsidiary of Allergan Inc., in 1991. This goodwill was originally amortised by the straight-line
method over its anticipated useful life of 15 years.

In 2002 the foimer Carl Zeiss Ophthalmic Systems AG purchased Asclepion Meditec AG in a transaction
accounted for as a revese acquisition. The acquisition resulted in goodwill valued at € 15.216 million.

With respect to the transfer of the ophthalmic distribution activities of Asclepion-Meditec S.R.L., Milan, ltaly
to Carl Zeiss S.p.A., Arese, Italy with effect from 1 February 2003, at book value within the scope of an asset
deal, goodwill as éhown in the consolidated balance-sheet decreases by € 1.099 million, which is the
amount aliocated 10 Asclepion-Meditec S.R.L. (see Note 3). Moreover, in the financial year 2002/2003 the
deferred tax liabilities assumed for the purchase price aflocation carried out in the previous year, which
appeared 10 be too conservative, were adjusted by € 3.744 million. The adjustment was set off against goodwill
with no effect on income,

Goodwill of € 5.049 million resulted from the acquisition of hiko medical communication GmbH in Pirmasens
{now Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH) on 17 December 2003 (see Note 3).
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The book value of goodwill was aliocated to the following segments (For explanalion of segments see
Note 23):

€000 Financial yeat 2003/2004 Financial year 2002/2003

30.09.2004 Currency Additions 30.09.2003 Currency  Additions  Disposals
an;ustmr-n.s adjustments
Segment

Germany 15, 422 5.049 10,373 - - 4,843
USA 704 3% 743 (139) -

Gotdwilt 16,126 (39} 5,049 11,116 (139) . 4,343

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, Carl Zeiss Meditec assessed whether previously recognised intangible
assets and goodwill conform to the witeria of the new standard on the day of first application. The
Company examined the classification, estimated useful lives and residual book values of all intangible
assets and determined that no adjustments were necessary, both in relation to the carrying amount of such
assets as well as their estimated remaining useful lives.

Carl Zeiss Meditec also examined whether goodwill would be impaired as of 1 October 2002 under the new
provisions of SFAS No. 142. For this purpose, Carl Zeiss Meditec determined (1) the Company’s reporting
units, (2) the respective net assets of each reporting unit after the assignment of Company's assets and liabilities
including existing goodwill and intangible assets to these reporting units and (3) the fair value of the
reporting units. The Company concluded that there was na indication of a loss in value of goodwill in any
of the Group's reporting units as of 1 October 2002.

Carl Zeiss Meditec completed the annual impairment test of goodwill in the last quarter of the
financial year 2003/2004. The results of this test did not indicate any impairment of goodwill as at
30 September 2004.

With regard to the change in goodwill in the financial year 2003/2004 please refer to the consolidated
fixed-asset movement schedule and Note 3.




(i) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are valued at acquisition cost minus accumulated depreciation and written off over
an average term of 5 years (see Note 3).

Software development costs

The Company accounts for its software development costs in accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting
for Costs of Compu'er Software to be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed”. Capitalisation of
software development <osts begins upon establishment of technological feasibility and ends upon general
release of the software for sale. Costs incurred after technological feasibility is established are not material
and, accordingly, are expensed when incurred,

(j) Non-current assets

The Company reviews its non-current assets, including intangible assets and property, plant and equipment,
whenever events or chanijed circumstances indicate that the book value of an asset may be impaired. To determine
whether an asset is impzired, its carrying value is compared with the {uture non-discounted cash flow expected
to be generated by the asset. i the carrying value of the asset or assets exceeds the future expected
non-discounted cash flows, the asset is deemed to be impaired. Fair value is generally based on either an
appraised value or measured by alternative techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis.

(k) Leasing

The Company has leased certain assets under long-term contracts. All property under arrangements that qualify
as capital lease are carried as long-term assets pursuant to SFAS No. 13 "Accounting for Leases”. The
corresponding leasing obligations are carried as long-term liabilities according to their time to maturity. Other
leasing transactions are treated as so-called operating lease; the respective lease payments are recorded on
a straight-line basis as expenses.



IR ATy AR |

Gax |

(1) Financial instruments and risk provisioning

Fair value of financial instruments ~ The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale
or liquidation. The financial instruments of the Company primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable from group cash management of Carl Zeiss Financial Services GmbH, Oberkochen
(Treasury), trade accounts receivable, trade accounts payable, short-term debt and other current liabilities.
Because of the short-term nature of these financial instruments, the fair value of all financial instruments
approximate their carrying values as of 30 September 2004 and 2003. {Refer 1o Note 16 for further information)

Derivative financial instruments — As a company with global operations, Carl Zeiss Meditec is exposed to
the risk of currency rate fluctuations and has entered into currency forward contracts and options to hedge
against its exchange risks on the basis of planned transactions in foreign currencies. These contracts generally
cover a period of less than one year.

The nominal value of these contracis is not reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Instead, the
contracts are measured at their fair value as at 30 September 2004 and 2003 and are disclosed as current
assets or liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recognised each reporting period in the consolidated income statement as a currency gain
or loss. The management is regularly involved in such decisions on risk provisioning. The Company does not
own any derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, nor does it issue such contracts.

Profit or loss from the revaluation of derivative financial instruments not yet due in the amount of
€ -493,000 (previous year € -304,000) are recorded under “Foreign currency gains f (lasses}” in the income
statement.

The market values of derivatives and other financial instruments are outlined in Note 16.

(m) Pension obligations

Defined contribution pension plans

The US subsidiary offers a savings scheme 1o the majority of its employees. This savings scheme is a so-called
defined contribution plan pursuant to Section 407 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan enables
the participating employees to save a proportion of their income in accordance with the specified guidelines.
The Company is currently matching a percentage of employee contributions up to a certain limit. The
“matching contributions” of the Company for the "401¢k) plan” amounted to € 1.221 million in the finandial
year 2003/2004 and to € 1.267 million in the financial year 2002/2003.

[os
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Defined benefit pension plans

The Company offers def ned benefit pension plans 1o certain employees. Such benefits are determined primarily
by the employee’s remuneration and length of service. Pension obligations and related costs are calculated
by the prescribed projected unit credit method in accordance with SFAS No. 87 “Employers’ Accounting
fer Pensions”. The projected unit credit method reflects economic assumptions based on long-term
expectations, as well as the performance of assets legally set aside to fund future benefit payments.

With effect from 1'January 2000 a company pension scheme based on the so-called “Benefit Regulations
2000" was established. Future benefits are calculated from the total pension units purchased during the
period of employment starting T January 2000, calculated as the product of an annual total contribution
and an age-related pension factor. The annual total contribution for individual employees is calculated as
the sum of a basic¢ contribution (1%) and a profit-related contribution based on the company's success
{between 0% and 3%), calculated as a percentage of the individual benefit-related income. The Company
has committed itself to raising ongoing benefit payments by 1% each year. This quaranteed adjustment is
taken into account.in the valuation.

In addition, accruals of £ 111,000 and € 72,000 for 30 September 2004 and 30 September 2003 respectively
reflect deferred compensation of Company employees.

Actuarial profits or losses that may arise from changes in the valuation premises or from a deviation in actual
versus expected performance are only reflected in income if the balance of the accumulated actuarial profits
or losses amounts to more than 10% of the projected benefit obligation or the market related value of plan
assets under the defined pension plans. Any amount that lies outside the 10% corridor is recorded to income
over the average residual term of service of employees eligible for pensions, which at 30 September 2004
is estimated 1o be 15 years.
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(n) Taxes on income and earnings

Taxes on income and earnings are computed annually by the asset and liability method pursuant to SFAS
No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes”. All liabilities or claims relating to taxes on income, earnings,
capital and property arising during the financial year are reflected in the consolidated financial statements
pursuant to the relevant tax faws. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated each year for differences
between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities,
based on enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to
affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established for deferred tax assets as necessary 1o reflect
the net amount that is more likely than not to be realised. Income tax expense comprises the tax payable
or refundable for the reporting period, plus or minus the change in deferred tax. The effects of a change in
tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in income for the period in which the change
was enacted.

(o) Recording of revenues

The Company generates sales from selling products and services on the basis of contracts. A sale is effected
when all the parts of the product have been delivered or the service has been provided, the risks have passed,
the payment is agreed or can be determined, no substantial obligations towards the customers are outstanding,
and collectibility of the receivable is deemed reasonably assured. Sales are reflected net of dealer commissions,
trade discounts, customer allowances and rebates.

Dealer commissions amounted to € 3.598 million and € 3.061 million respectively in the financial years
2003/2004 and 2002/2003.

Maintenance revenue from service contracts is realised as services are rendered throughout the contractual
period of performance.

(p) Advertising

Advertising costs are treated as expenses. In the 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 financial years advertising

costs amounted to € 2.680 million and € 2.630 million, respectively and were recorded as a component of

selling and marketing expense.



{g) Product-related costs

Research and development costs and marketing and selling expenses are charged to expenses as incurred.
Research and development subsidies are set off against the related expenses at the time the entitlement
arises.

The Company furnishes the buyer with a warranty for the perfect functioning of sold products for the
contractually agreed peiiod of 15 months. For this purpose, provisions are formed on the basis of the average
values of warranty claims made in the past. These provisions are regularly adjusted to reflect actual experience.
Such provisions are recarded as cost of goods sold in the same period that the initial sale is recorded.

The Company discloses freight costs charged to customers as a component of sales and reflects the
corresponding freight costs in the cost of goods sold. in the financial year 2003/2004 the shipping and
handling costs not billed to customers amount te € 3.344 million (previous year: € 2.604 million) and are
shown in the selling and marketing expenses.

{r) Other comprehensive income/loss

SFAS No. 130 “Reporting Comprehensive Income” requires the disclosure of "Other comprehensive
income”. Other comprehensive income comprises net income/loss for the period as well as all other equity
changes or “Other comprehensive income/loss” that have no effect on the aperating result but that are not
related 1o transactions with shareholders. Refer to Note 20 for further information.

(s) Earnings/loss per share

Basic earnings/loss per share was calculated by dividing the net incomefloss for the year by the weighted
average number of common shares issued in the relevant accounting period. Earnings/ioss per share allowing
for the effects of dilution was calculated in compliance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share”, such
that the effect of poten-ially dilutive securities is reflected.

Sl
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The following table shows the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Financial year. 2003/2004 Financial year 2002/2003

Consolidated net income (in € '000} 6,558

Weighted average of issued shares, basic 25,918,166
Dilution effect of stock options
Weighted average of issued shares, 25,918,166
alfowing for the ditution effect
Earnings per shae {in €) 0.2%

The dilution effect would be calculated using the treasury stock method. However, because the average
market values of the Company’s common stock during the period were less than the exercise price of
all stock options outstanding, stock options result in no dilutive effect on earningsfloss per share at
30 September 2004 and 2003. As of 30 September 2004 the Company had issued 105,500 stock options
that would result in a dilution effect.

(t) Stock option plan

The Company posts its stock option plan in accordance with the “intrinsic value method” prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and
respective interpretations. Pursuant to APB No. 25, remuneration expenses for stock options are calculated on
the basis of the intrinsic value at the measurement date. Intrinsic value is calculated from the difference between
the market value of the shares on the measurement date and the exercise price. The measurement dale is
the point in time at which the number of shares o which the beneficiary is entitled and the purchase price are
known. SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” mandates disclosure of the compensation
expenses for stock-based remuneration that would have been recorded under the “fair value method”. Under this
method, compensation expense is calculated based on the fair value of the award at the time the stock options
are granted. This compensation expense is recognised over the period through to the earliest point in time at
which they may be exercised. SFAS 148 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, Transition and
Disclosure” also requires the disclosure of the pro forma effect of using the fair value method of accounting for
stock-based employee compensation.



The Company has elecied 1o apply the provisions of APB No. 25 and to follow the disclosure stipulations
of SFAS No. 123 and Mo. 148 (see Note 18).

Had the fair value method defined in SFAS No. 123 been employed in the calculation of the remuneration

expenses, net income for the year and the earnings per share would have been as follows:

€°000 ' Financial year 200372004 Financial year 2002/2003

o
.44

Consolidated net incorne, as posted

Stock options expanses (afte: tax) according to SFAS 123

Pro forma consolidated ret income
Earnings per share (€):

54 posied 0.25
ar0 forma 0.44 0.25
Earnings per share allowing “or

the dilution effect (€): -

& pusied a4 0.25
o ferma ) 0.44 025

(u) Public subsidies

Subsidies for invesiments such as investment grants and tax-free investment premiums are disclosed as
income (as a reduction in depreciation) over the useful life of the subsidised fixed assets. Unrecognised
investment premiums aie reported as deferred income on the balance sheet, whereas investment grants are
subtracted from the acquisition or production costs of the related fixed assets.

Other subsidies which ere taxable are disclosed under research and development expenses.

Public subsidies received in the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 are listed in Note 15.

B3
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{(v) Recent pronouncements on accounting principles

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities — and Interpretation of ARB No, 517, ("FIN 46"). FIN 46 was subsequently amended in
December 2003.

FIN 46 changes the current practice of solely determining whether consolidation is appropriate based only
on control, which is generally demonstrated through the ownership of a majority of voting interests in an
entity. Under the new Interpretation a reporting company has 1o assess if the entities with which it has business
relationships are Variable Interests Entities ("VIE") or Voting Interest Entities. VIEs are entities in
which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient
equity at the risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support
from other parties.

If an entity is a VIE, the reporting company is required to assess if it has a variable interest {"V1"} in the VIE.
Vis in a VIE are contractual, ownership, or other pecuniary interests in an entity that change with changes
in the entity's net asset value. Equity interests with or without voting rights are considered variable interests
if the entity is a VIE.

FIN 46 explains how to identify VIES and how an enterprise should assess its interest in a VIE.

If the reporting company has a VI in the VIE, it must assess whether it, or another VI holder, is the primary
beneficiary of the VIE. FIN 46 requires existing unconsolidated VIEs to be consolidated by their primary
beneficiaries. The primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity is the party that absorbs a majority of the
VIE's expected losses, receives a majority of its expected residual returns, or both.

This Interpretation applies immediately to VIEs created after 31 January 2003, and to VIEs in which an
enterprise obtains an interest after that date. Otherwise FIN 46 is applicable on the last day of the first
interim or annual period ending after 15 December 2003 - that is, 31 December 2003 for Carl Zeiss Meditec.
The amendments to FIN 46 became effective during the quarter ended 31 March 2004. The application of
FIN 46 had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.



In December 2003 the FASB issued Statement SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003} "Employers’ Disclosures
about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits”. This statement requires that companies provide
a detailed annual account of their trust funds, projected unit credits, cash flows, net expenses from pension
and health care commitments for retirees and other relevant items. In addition, companies must submit 2
quarterly report on the individual net expense items for pension and health care commitments for retirees.
SFAS No. 132 {revised) was applicable as of 31 December 2003, Accordingly, the standard was taken into
account for the first time in the 1st quarter of 2003/2004 and the detailed notes published as required.

(3) Business acquisitions and sales
Transactions in the financial year 2003/2004

Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH, Pirmasens

On 17 December 2003 Carl Zeiss Meditec AG acquired a 100% interest in the former hiko medical
communication GmbH of Pirmasens. The company now operates under the name Carl Zeiss Meditec
Systems GmbH. Carl Zuiss Meditec Systems GmbH specialises in the development of medical software
solutions and under the name VISUPAC™™ it markets a successiul product (including related services) that
enables filing and management of diagnostic and treatment data by eye specialists and clinics.
Furthermore, Carl Zeiss Veditec Systems GmbH has an efficient team of development, marketing and service
specialists at its disposal. With the acquisition of this company, Carl Zeiss Meditec has taken a {urther major
step in the impleméntation of its strategy. Carl Zeiss Meditec will secure the necessary resources and know
how to enable it to offer customers cross-platform software solutions for ophthalmic applications.

Activities of the acquired company are reflected in the consolidated financial statements from 17 December 2003,
the day of acquisition,

The acqguisition price armounted to € 6.094 million, which was funded entirely in cash. Direct acquisition
costs amounted to € 6€,000.
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The following table shows a breakdown of the purchase price (including direct acquisition costs) at the time
of acquisition (Purchase Price Allocation / PPA) in conformance with SFAS No, 141.

€000

Current assets purchased 2,833
Property, plant and equipment purchased
Other intangible assets purchased
Purchase Price Ailocation:

Computer software 1,318

Goodwill 5,049
Purchased assets and Purchase Price Allggation, tots! 3,465
2,675
Assumed other non-current liabilities 635
6,160

Assumed current liabilites

fotal scguisiticn Costs

Intangible assets (computer software) identified within the scope of purchase price allocation are written off
over an average term of five calendar years.

The acquisition resulted in a non-tax deductible goodwill vaiued at € 5.049 million, In accordance with
SFAS No. 141, amortisation was not recorded on this amount. Instead, the acquired goodwill is subject to
impairment testing provisions of SFAS No. 142.

On a pro forma basis, the effects of the acquisition on previously reported results would be immaterial, assuming
that the business combination hypothetically been consummated as of 1 October 2003. it should be noted that
Carl Zeiss Meditec Systems GmbH (formerly hiko medical communication GmbH) generates the majority of its
revenue through business with Carl Zeiss Meditec. This means the consolidation will have virtually no impact
on the consolidated sales.

For the reasons given above, no pro forma values were given.

Transactions in the financial year 2002/2003

Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Ltd., Tokyo, Japan

On 1 November 2002 Cari Zeiss Meditec acquired at book value a 51% holding in the Japanese Carl Zeiss
Meditec Co., Ltd., from Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd. This acquisition was accounted for as a transaction under
common control, as the controlling shareholder of Carl Zeiss Meditec was also the majority shareholder in
Japanese Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Ltd. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities acquired were carried over at

book values.



The following i< a summary of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the course of the acquisition.

Book valuz of the acquired assets
Assumed liabilities
533
Payment for acquisition of hlding {51%)
Minority interest

The balance sheet includes a caption entitled "Minority interests”. This caption represents the equity
holdings in the subsid ary Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Ltd. that are attributable to third parties (Carl Zeiss
Japan Co., Utd.).

As the transaction was accounted for at historical cost, no goodwill arose.

Asclepion-Meditec S.R.L.,, Milan, Italy

On 1 February 2003 the ophthalmic distribution activities (Vision) of Asclepion-Meditec S.R.L., Milan, Italy,
a subsidiary of Cail Zeiss Meditec, was transferred to an affiliate, Carl Zeiss S.p.A. Arese, Italy, at book
value as an asset deal. As 3 distributor for the ltalian market, Carl Zeiss 5.p.A., Arese, Italy, will continue
to process and fulfil the orders for the Company’s Vision product line. The transaction resulted in a
€ 200,000 increase in the net working capital position of Carl Zeiss Meditec.

In conjunction with the transfer, the goodwill shown in the consolidated balance sheet was reduced by the
amount of € 1.099 million attributable to Asclepion-Meditec S.R.L.

Carl Zeiss Meditec Ltd. (previously Asclepion-Meditec Ltd.), Edinburgh, Scotland

The Group company Carl Zeiss Meditec Ltd., Edinburgh, Scotland, has likewise been restructured. With effect
from 1 February 2003, ihe Vision Business Unit was transferred to the affiliated company Carl Zeiss Ltd. at
Welwyn Garden City, UK. As a distributor for the UK market, Carl Zeiss Ltd. will continue to process and fulfil
orders for the Vision division throughout UK. In addition, the Dental Business Unit of Carl Zeiss Meditec Ltd.
was sold to Denfotex Ltd., Wynham, UK. This transaction resulted in a minor nel loss on sale of € 16,000 as

disclosed in the income statement under “General and administrative costs”.
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Asclepion-Meditec inc., Coto de Caza, USA

The wholly-owned subsidiaries Asclepion-Meditec USA, and Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc., Dublin, USA,
were merged with effect from 1 January 2003. The meiger process had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Discontinued Aesthetic and Dental operations

in the previous year as of 1 May 2003 Carl Zeiss Meditec sold the dermatological and dental laser divisions
that were not part of its core business to the ltalian companies EL.EN S.PA., Florence, and Quanta System
S.PA., Milan.

In accordance with the accounting rules set forth in SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” this disposal was identified as “Discontinued operations”. The
consolidated income statement was adjusted to take account of these operations. The revenue from the
sale of business units is shown in the income statement under “Net income from discontinued operations”.
The balance sheet and corresponding notes in the previous year were retroactively restated for the purposes
of comparison and in accordance with SFAS No. 144. The share of sales and pre-tax profits of discontinued
dermatological and dental operations were as follows:

€°000 Financial year 200372004 Financial year 200212003

Revenues 4,705

(5,938

Result before taxes on income

The discontinued operations were mainly part of the geographic segment "Germany”.
As of 30 September 2003 the balance sheet already contained no assets or debts from discontinued activities.
The total proceeds from the disposal of the discontinued operations were € 2.5 million. Of this figure, € 1.0 million

was immediately recorded as revenue. The remaining € 1.5 million had been secured by a bank guarantee
in favour of Carl Zeiss Meditec and was paid in January 2004.




(4) Business relationships to affiliated companies

The Company separately reports liabilities to and receivable from affiliated companies. The designation
"affiliated companies” comprises Carl Zeiss AG and its subsidiaries.

For the purposes of furnishing the Company with short-term funds and investing surplus liquidity, Car! Zeiss
Meditec has been integrated into the group cash management system of Carl Zeiss Financial Services
GmbH, Oberkochen (Treasury). Loans paid or funds invested within the scope of this business relationship
are shown as liabilities due to or receivables due from affiliated companies (Treasury). Loans and receivables
carry interest at a fate based on the 1-month EURIBOR and conform to normal market conditions.

in addition to cash management the Company utilises various services from the Carl Zeiss Group, in particular
from Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH. Contractual arrangements exist by which Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH provides, for
example, research and development services, personnel and administrative functions as well as logistics,

marketing and computing activities.

The Company has a nurmber of agreements with the companies of the Carl Zeiss AG resulting in the following

accounts payable and receivable, sales and expenses:

€'000 m 30.09.2003

Accounts receivable _

Treasury 12,089
Carl Zeiss AG 531
Carl Zeiss Co., Ld., lapan [ o ] 403
Carl Zeiss Ltd., United Kingdom

Carl Zeiss S.p.A.. ltaly 2,779
Carl Zeiss S.AS., France 878
Carl Zeiss S.A., Spain 700
Other 3,071
Total 70,651
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€000 30.09.2003
Accounts payable _
Treasury N 37
Carl Zeiss AG 53
Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH 1,825
Carl Zeiss de Mexico S.A.de (M, Mexico 384
Carl zeiss Co., Ltd., Japan 2,489
Carl Zeiss Holding Co, Inc,, USA 3
Terat 5,672 5,919
€000 Financial year 2002/003
Sales
Carl Zeiss AG 1,31
Carl Zeiss Ltd., United Kingdom 5,049
Carl Zeiss S.p.A., Italy 7112
Carl Zeiss S.A., Spain 5,954
Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd., Japan 1,021
Carl Zeiss Far tast Co. Ltd., Kowloon 3,863
Carl Zeiss S.AS., France 4,690
Carl Zeiss Co. Ltd., South Korea 2,155
Carl Zeiss de Mexico S.A.de V., Mexico 2,155
Carl Zeiss Canada Ltd., Canada 3,200
Carl Zeiss GmbH, Austria 2315
Carl Zeiss Pty. Ltd., Australia 1,694
Carl Ziess NV.-S.A., Belgium
Other 8,760
Totat 49,279
The Company purchased the following goods (inventories):
€000 Finankial year 200342004 financial year 2002/003
Cost of goods delivered
Carl Zeiss AG 1,157
Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH 10,646
Carl Zeiss Co., Lid., Japan
Other 643
Totat 12,446




The Company also purchased the following services:

€'000

Services

Carl Zeiss AG

Cart Zeiss Jena GmbH

Carl Zeiss Co., lid., Japan

Cal Zaiss Financial Sen‘}ices GmbH
Carl Zeiss Holding Co., fnc., USA
Other ;

Toil

Finandial year 2003/2004 .- Financial year 2002/003

2,638 1557
6,630 7,699
6,312 13,955
607
230 352
202 976
16,679 24,538

Purchased services include € 1.990 miliion in research and development costs commissioned with Carl Zeiss

Group for the financial year 2003/2004 (previous year: € 2.276 million).

(5) Trade accounts receivable

€000

Current accounts receivable
Long-term accounts receivable
Provisions for bad debts

Trade scoounts recewvatie

38,275 40,822
26,836 1,062

Long-term accounts receivable are recorded on a discounted basis and accredited to face value over
the term of each receivable. The discount was € 12,000 as of 30 September 2004 and € 12,000 as of

30 September 2003.
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(6) Other current assets

Other current assets are comprised as follows:

£°000

30.09.2003

Accounts receivable from R&D subsidies 495
Derivative finandial instruments 436
Accounts receivable from tax authorities
Accounts receivable from the sale of discontinued operations 1,811
Other accounts receivable 1,730
Ciber cuszent assels 1,208 4,472
(7) Inventories
The inventories (net) comprise:
€000 30.09.2004 30.09.2003
Raw materials and supplies 17,106
Work in progress 7.623 7325
Fnshed goods 233
toal inventonies, oroce 42,313 45,882
Provisions for bad debts 8,187 7191
Toisl mventaries, net 34176 38671
(8) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment comprise:
Land, buitdings and teasehold improvements 27,223
Plant and machinery 8,269
Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment 11,665
Advances made and tangible assets in course of construction 512
47 664
Minus: accumulated depreciation 21,669
Bropenty, plant and equipment, net 26,000




Depredciation amounted to € 3.756 million and € 4.317 million respectively for the financial years 2003/2004
and 2002/2003.

The posted property, plant, and equipment include leased assets with a net book value of approximately
€ 13.265 million. These assets have 2 gross balance of € 20.899 million, accumulated depreciation at
30 September 2003 is € 7.634 million. Depreciation on leased assets is included in the depreciation expense.

(9) Other intangible assets

The item "Other intangible assets” comprises exclusively the following assets subject to amortisation:

€000 : 30.09.2004 30.09.2003

Costs of purchase! Cumulatve Costs of purchase/ Cumulative Book
canversion depreciation conversion  depreciation value

Cusiomer base - 2270 567 1,703
Patents 2,105 526 1,579
Technalogy 1,586 714 872 1,586 397 1,189
Trademarks / Tradenames 485 121 364
Licenses : : :
Sotware 444 200 244

i

P
=
o
w
P
@

Less discontinued
operations

Depreciation and amortisation amounted to € 1.649 million and € 1.458 million respectively for the financial
years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003.
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Estimated depreciation on other intangible assets for the next five years is as follows:

Year (€ 000)

200442005
2005/2006
2006/2007
2007/2008
2008/2009

Besides the goodwill shown in the consolidated financial statements, Carl Zeiss Meditec has no intangible

assets that are not subject to scheduled depreciation.

(10) Financial assets

The following table shows the change in financial assets from 1 October 2003 to 30 September 2004:

€'000 Financial year 2003:2004

Value as of 01.10. 2,818
Addition 1,645
Disposal {1,500

Other 92}
ot an o 2871

The balance sheel item “Loans” was increased by the granting of a loan of € 1.625 million (US$ 2.0 million)
to alliance partner Notal Vision, Inc. Carl Zeiss Meditec is cooperating with Notal Vision in the field of early
diagnosis of age-related macular degeneration (AMD). The loan bears 4% interest p.a. and is due to be
repaid by December 2006.

in the event of failure to repay the amount owed, Carl Zeiss Meditec has retained the right to demand 30%
of the sales proceeds accrued by Notal Vision, Inc. on the basis of a purchase contract between the two
companies. In addition, at the Company's discretion the cutstanding loan amount may be converted at any
time into preferred shares in Notal Vision, Inc. o the term for repayment extended.



In connection with a suit for damages against I-Spire s.p.r.l,, Brussels/Belgium and its sole proprietor, an

out-of-court settlement was reached in the second quarter of the financial year 2003/2004. This settlement

provides for the payment of the total amount shown in the balance sheet item "Loans” by I-Spire s.p.rl. in

accordance with a payment plan. The first instalment of € 1.5 mitlion was paid at the end of April 2004.

(11) Provisions

The provisions comprise the following:

€000

Pravisions for personnéi expenses

Providions for outstandfng invoices and services
Warranty provisions

Provisions for taxation

Provisions for licenses

Provisions for commissions

Othet

Torst provisions

30.09.2003

9.446
4,985
3,856

As of 30 September 2004 and 2003 provisions for personnel expenses comprised provisions for pension

as well as provisions in connection with the "401 (k) Plan” to the amount of € 1.511 million and

€ 0.839 million respectively.

Provisions for warranty payments

The following table shows the change in warranty provisions from 1 October 2003 to 30 September 2004:

€000

Value as of 01.10.
Addition

Reversal
Utilisation
Currency effects
velve as of 20.09

Financial year 2003/2004 Financial year 2002/2003

3537
3190
a4y
2526
o)

4642 3,856
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(12) Other current liabilities

Other current liabilities are comprised as follows:

€000

30.09.2003

Liabilities from taxation 32
Liabitities from sodiat security — 388
Liabilities from value-added tax claims —
Other liabilties 520
Other currers ligbilties 1,847 1,140
(13) Pension obligations
The rollforward of the projected benefit obligations are shown in the following table:
€000 Financial year 2003/2004 Financial year 2002/2003
Pension banefit obligation at the beginning of the financial year 550
Senice cost %
terestcost 3
Actuarial gainfloss 206
Asset transfer a0
Benefits paid
Persicn beneht of a1 ihe end of the finance: year 1,486 473

The funded status - the difference between the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan

assets — is reconcited with the provisions shown on the balance sheet as shown below:

€000

Funded status
Unrecognised net {gain) or loss
Unrecognised prior service cost

Unfunded scaued be

Additional minimum liability

Provicions for pensions (Accumuiareg benefit obiic

1,486
679)

3C7
463
1,270

30.09.2003

923
(279




The additional minimurn liability amounted to € 463,000 at 30 September 2004 and is recognised as a
component of Other comprehensive loss without affecting net income.

€000 Financial year 200312004 Financial year 2002/2003

Increase in minimem ligbility included in Other 463
comprehensive Joss

Pension expenditure is as foliows:

€'000 Financial year 2003/2004 Financial year 2002/2003

Hoges and s o
Interest expenses for projected benefit obligations 33
Amortisation fo aciuaridl gains/losses 11 1

Pas

Epongiing

228
S
=
o

The Company does not “und its pension obligations.

The following assumpticns were used to determine benefit obligations:

in% N RIOIOBEI RN, Financial year 2002/2003

Discount rate . 55 6.0
Rate of fong-term compensation increase 3.0 25
1.0

Rate of long-term pension inciease

The annual pension increase was 1.75% in the financial year 2003/2004 and 1.5% in the previous year.
The pension calculation considers employee turnover. 65 was taken as the basic pensionable age.

147
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Estimated future pension benefit payments

Pension benefits pertaining to the Group’s plan were € 1,000 respectively during 2003/2004 and € 0
respectively during 2002/2003. The total estimated future pension benefits to be paid by the Group’s pension
plans for the next 10 years approximate € 74,000 and are expected to be paid as follows:

Financial year as of 30.09. (€ '000) Pension benefit payments

2005
006
2007
2008
2009
2010-2014

(14) Long-term debt

The long-term debt is comprised as follows:

Annuity loan, repayable in quarterly instalments

of € 123,719 including interest, 5,028
term 18 years, interest rate of 6.24% fixed for 10 years
Tor siytern debit 5028
Less current portion of long-term debt 187
Lang-teims debt, et of (unenl portion 4,541

As of 30 September 2004 the Company's long-term liabilities have the following contractual maturities:

Financial year 2s of 30.09. (€ '000)

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
Thereafter

Total long-rein dabiliies

Borrowings have been secured to the full amount by mertgages.

I]

- .



(15) Public subsidies

The Company received subsidies from various public bodies within the framework of state economic development
programmes. These subsidies related to the construction of manufacturing facilities, research and development
activities, advanced training programmes and inferest subsidies. The grants disclosed in the conselidated
financial statements in tiand for the years ending 30 September 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

€000 ) [REWWERTE Ik IpIUeR,  Financial year 2002/2003

Research and development subsidies 977 1,790

Taral 1,281 2,692

N
e
o
o0

Investment grants set off from acquisition costs
1
for property, plant and equipnient

(16) Financial instruments and risk provisioning

The market value of a financial instrument is estimated as the amount that could be obtained under current

market conditions between an independent buyer and seller.
The Company is of the cpinion that the credit risk for these types of transaction is negligible.

The market values were calculated on the basis of market conditions on the balance sheet date - interest
rates, currency tates, commodity prices — by the evaluation methods described below, The market values of
derivative instruments are calculated independently of and do not consider movements in the fair value

of underlying transactions that are economically hedged by these instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities whose book values approximate market value include cash and cash equivalents,

short-term financial assets, trade accounts receivable and payable and other short-term liabilities.

The market value of deb: or similar long-term liabilities is the present value of cash flows anticipated in the
future. The discount rate is based on applicable interest rates (for comparable loans to borrowers with simitar
credit standing) as of th2 balance sheet date.
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The market value of forward currency contracts is calculated on the basis of the average spot exchange rate
as of the balance sheet date, adjusted for forward premiums and discounts for the respective residual term
of the contract, as compared to the contracted forward exchange rate.

in the case of currency options, acknowledged models were used to determine the option price. In addition
to the residual term, the market value of an option is also influenced by other factors, e.g. the current level

and volatility of the underlying base lending or exchange rate.

As of 30 September 2004 the Company had currency forward contracts with 2 total nominal value of
€ 2.294 million (previous year: € 1.150 million).

The following table shows the book values and estimated market values of the financing instruments as of
30 September 2004 and 30 September 2003.

€000 30.09.2003 30.09.2003

Bool value Market value Book value Market value
Originated financial instruments _
s I
Trade accouns receivable [ %43 6243 | 30,344 30,344
Accounts receivable affiliated companies _ 20,451 20,451
toans ETTEETR 2818 2818
Cash and cash equivalents 45,015 45,015
Liabilities
Trade accouns payable 10,636 10,636
Accounts payable affiliated companies 5919 5919
Loans 5.028 5,028
Leasing commitments 25,105 26,107
Derivative financial instruments _
bt I
Currency hedging contracts 436 436
Currency hedging contracts _

(17) Contingent liabilities and other financial obligations

Leases and rental agreements

The Company leases office space, land and equipment under leasing and rental agreements which may not
be cancelled during the basic term. Lease and rental expenses for the financial years 2003/2004 and
2002/2003 amounted to € 1.923 million and € 2.355 million respectively.



The future minimum rental and leasing payments on the basis of non-cancellable lease and rental

agreements are:

Financizl year (€ '000)

2004/2005
2005/2006 !
2006/2007
2007/2008
200872009 i

Joral mnimum payments

Sale-and-lease-back

On 28 September 1999 the Campany sold land, building and feasehald impravements in Dublin for approx.
€ 34.081 million and simultaneously entered into a long-term leasing agreement for this same property.
This sale-and-lease-back arrangement is a financial lease in accordance with SFAS No. 98 “Accounting
for Leases” whereby the land, buildings and leasehold improvements continue to be carried and depre-
ciated on the lessee’s books. The leasing agreement has a term of 20 years.

The following table shows the minimum fease payments to be made each year for the land, building and
leasehold improvements. In the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 € 2.118 milfion (USS 2.613 million)
and € 2.418 million-(US5 2.613 million) were paid respectively.

€000

teasing liabilities
2004/2005

2005/2006

2006/2007

2007/2008

20082009

From 2009/2010

st teasing babiliues :

Minus interes:

Ne: feasirg Lisbdines

tess current portion

Long teem net leasing ihiftes
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Guarantees

There are guarantees towards third parties amounting to € 223,000.

Generally, these guarantees represent standby letters of credit to banks related to services provided to
customers and from suppliers.

No provision in compliance with FIN 45 was formed for these guarantees, since a payment obligation is
not likely to occur,

Purchase commitments
Carl Zeiss Meditec has purchase commitments towards suppliers amounting to € 30.461 million. These are
distributed over several years.

Litigation

The Group has reached an out-of-court settlement in the action for damages against |-Spire s.p.rl,
Brussels/Belgium and its sole proprietor in the financial year 2003/2004. |-Spire s.p.r.l. had acquired some of the
assets and liahilities of the former Asclepion-Meditec marketing partner lcon Laser Eye Centers, Inc., of Toronto,
Canada within the scope of an asset deal. The action, which was initiated by Carl Zeiss Meditec, involved claims
for damages for breach of contract, outstanding debts and the repayment of loans. The lawsuit relaled to the
overall balance sheet item "Other loans” totalling € 2.818 million, although the sum involved was in excess of
this amount. The appropriate adjustments had already been made on “Other loans” in the financial year
2001/2002. This settlement provides for the payment of the total amount shown in the balance sheet item
“Loans” by I-Spire s.p.r.l. in accordance with a payment plan. The fist instalment of € 1.500 million was paid
at the end of April 2004 and a further payment of € 0.250 million was made subsequent to the balance sheet
date in October 2004 Inasmuch, any possible risks may be considered as having been eliminated to the grea-
test-possible degree.

Current litigation risks arise from the lawsuit and claim for lost earnings filed by a distributor of the former
Asclepion for dermatological lasers, and the pending cost reimbursement lawsuit and claim filed by the insolvency
administrator of the former Asclepion distribution partner U.S. Medical, Inc., also in the field of dermatological

lasers. The Company has taken adequate precautionary measures for both law suits.




(18) Stock option plan

With the resolution adopted by Asclepion’s extracrdinary general meeting on 10 March 2000 the
Management Board was authorised, subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, to issue 400,000
option rights. The folloviing conditions were applicable to the issue and exercising of the rights:

- The Management Board and the employees of the Company are eligible to subscribe.
- The recipients must be employed by a member company of the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group at the time
the rights are‘issued.

Of the 400,000 options authorised approximately 300,000 were issued to existing employees (those
employed on 5 june 2000). The remaining 100,000 optians were issued to persons wha entered into the
employment of the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group through to 1 October 2003. The purchase price for the existing
employees is the issue grice of € 29 of Asclepion-Meditec AG; in the case of options issued thereafter the
purchase price will be the average of the Xetra closing prices on the five stack exchange trading days before
and after the options are granted minus a discount of 30%. The initial options granted were exercisable in
three tranches: up to orie third of the options received may be exercised following the publication of the
half-year report 2001/2002, up to two thirds following the publication of the half-year report 2002/2003,
and all the options: after the publication of the half-year report 2004/2005. Analogous regulations are
applicable to the new employees. However, options may only be exercised if the reference price for Carl Zeiss
Meditec shares for the first tranche has increased by at least 30% over the issue price {for new employees:
the granting price). A 45% increase is required for the second tranche and a 60% increase for the third
tranche. The reference price is the average of the Xetra closing prices on the five stock exchange trading
days before and after tha publication of the respective half-year report.

The following shows the Company’s stock options as of 30 September 2004 and 2003.

Financial year 2003/2004 Financial year 2002/2003

Number of Average exercise Nymber of Average exercise

options pricain € aptions price in €

Outslanding options at the beyinning 168,700 3 241,360 26.91
of the financial year

Granted (Total}
Existing employees
New employeas

Terminated (Total) 29.00 {132,660)
Existing employees 3. 25.00 {105,160} 29.00
New employeas — (27,500} 1331
Qutstanding option: e brance! v 105,500 18.3% 108,700 223




The status of the stock options as of 30 September 2004 is as follows;

Issued

Average fair value of the options granted in the course of the year (per aption} in €
Exercisable

Number of oplions

Average exercise price in €

The Company has not posted any remuneration expenses pursuant to APB No. 25 since during all periods

presented, the intrinsic value of the awards was zero. This was due to the fact that the exercise hurdle on

none of the options was exceeded.

The average fair value of the options granted during the year (per option) is divided among the employees

as follows: (Figures for existing employees, new employees | and If relate to the options issued in the financial

year 2000. New employees lII-VI relate to the quarters of the financial year 2001):

in€

Existing employees
New employees |
New employees ||
New employees Il
New employees IV

Fair value per option

16 26
25.00
21.35
16 26

9.79

The entire fair value of options granted in the financial year was € 54,000, using a Black/Scholes option

price model with the following assumptions:

Expected volatility for stock options issued in FY 2000
Expected volatility for stock options issued in FY 2001
Expected dividend return

Risk-free interest rate for stock options issued in FY 2000
Risk-free interest rate for stock options issued in FY 2001
Expected term

63.70%
99.20%
%
4.83%

3.90%

4 yrars



The fair value of the options granted in the financial year ending on 30 September 2004 was calculated on the
assumption that approx. 30% of the granted options would lapse before the necessary vesting conditions
would be achieved.

The risk-free interest rate was set in accordance with the current yield for German treasury bonds
{Bundesanleihen) with a term of 3-5 years.

The volatility assumption was based upon a study of a peer group. This peer group comprises various companies
on the US market. The companies concerned belong to the same industry as Carl Zeiss Meditec, The volatilities
of the peer group in the past 4 years, which corresponds to the expected term of the options, and the volatility
of the Company’s own shares, have been included in the above volatility calculation at a weighting of 50 %
each. The Company believes that the result approximates the expected future volatility over the assumed lives
of the options.

(19) Employee participation program

In the financial year 2003/2004 it was resolved to issue 25 {ree shares to each employee of Carl Zeiss
Meditec AG and its wholly-owned subsidiaries with the exception of the Management Board of Carl Zeiss
Meditec AG, the President of Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc,, Dublin, USA, as well as the managing directors of the
wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company's purchased own shares shall be used to service the compensatory
stock plan (see note 20).

This resulted in persbnmzl expenses valued at € 323,000 in the financial year 2003/2004.

(20) Equity

Treasury stock

With resolution of the annual meeting of shareholders on 12 March 2003, Carl Zeiss Meditec was authorised
to acquire own shares up to a value corresponding to 10% of the share capital of € 25.833 miltion until
11 September 2004.

As of 30 September 2003 a total of 14,252 shares had been purchased at an average price of € 7.58 per
share and reported as “Treasury stock” under shareholders’ equity.

With resolution of the annual meeting of shareholders on 19 March 2004, Carl Zeiss Meditec was authorised

to acquire own shares up to a value corresponding to 10% of the share capital of € 28.417 million until
18 September 2005.

Based on this new resolution, in the financial year 2003/2004 an additional 6,923 shares have been purchased
at an average price of € 10.19 per share and reported as described above.

—
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Cash capital increase in the financial year 2002/2003

On 18 September 2003 Carl Zeiss Meditec effected a capital increase. A total of 2,583,329 new no-par
value bearer shares were tendered by public offering in Germany and international private placement at a
subscription price of € 9.70 per share. After issue expenses of € 430,000 had been subtracted from the
gross proceeds of € 25.058 million, the net cash inflow to Carl Zeiss Meditec from the capital increase
amounted to € 24.628 million.

The cash capital increase was recorded in the commercial register at the domicile of Carl Zeiss Meditec
on 25 September 2003.

The share capital of Carl Zeiss Meditec had thus increased by € 2.584 miilion from € 25.833 million to
€ 28.417 million. The capital reserve increased accordingly by € 22.044 million to € 89.433 million.

By resolution of the listing committee of the Frankfurt securities exchange dated 25 September 2003, the
new shares were admitted to the regulated market and to a subsection of the requlated market subject to
additional admission criteria (Prime Standard). Such shares were included in stock exchange dealings on
the regulated market on 29 September 2003.

Other comprehensive loss not affecting net income
The following table shows the movement of the components of other comprehensive loss:

€000 Financial year 200312004 Financial year 2002/2003

Difference arising fiom currency conversion

Change in unrealised translation gains/{losses) {5,007)

Increase in minimum liabifity

15,607

-TF--------




Under the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz), the amount of dividends available for distribution
to the shareholders is desendent upon the equity of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG reported in its financial statements
in accordance with the German Commercial Code. Dividends may only be declared and paid from possible
retained earnings (after transfer to statutory reserves) as posted in the Company’s annual German statutory
financial statemants. Suzh amounts differ from the total retained earnings as shown in the accompanying
financial statements prepared in accordance with US GAAP. As of 30 September 2004, the German statutory
financial statements of arl Zeiss Meditec AG posted accumulated earnings of € 13.073 million.

(21) Shares of outside shareholders

The shares of outside shareholders relate to the investment in Carl Zeiss Meditec Co,, Ltd., Japan. The Company
purchased 51% of the shares of Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Ltd., Japan in the financial year 2002/2003 and
controls this entity. Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd., Japan, is the remaining minority shareholder and owns both common
and preferred shares in Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Lid., Japan. Due to Carl Zeiss Ca., Ltd.'s ownership of
preferred shares, Carl Z2iss Co., Ltd. will receive 66 % of the future dividend payments from Carl Zeiss
Meditec Co., Ltd., Japan for at least three financial years following the acquisition date. The preferred shares
were conveyed for advance services performed by Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd. in the field of marketing, establishment
of a service structure and support for the approval procedures of Carl Zeiss Meditec products.

(22) Taxes on income and earnings

income (loss) before income taxes is attributable to the following geographic regions:

€000 Financial year 260372004 Financial year 2002/2003

Germany 8123
Abroad 19.837

25091 16,754
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Taxes on income and earnings are as follows:

€000

Current taxes:
Germany
Abroad

Deferred taxes:
Germany
Abroad

Finandial year 200312004

630
1,713

£343

1.674
{205
1,468

8812

Financial year 2002/2003

284
9,401
9.685

(1.209)
{1,202
2,509

7.276

-F“:---------'

Since 1 January 2001 a uniform tax rate has been applied for taxing the income of joint stock corporations
under German corporate tax law (Kérperschaftsteuergesetz). In accordance with the tax law applicable
in the financial year 2003/2004, the Company's income was subject to a corporate tax rate of 25% plus a
solidarity surcharge of 5.5% on corporate tax. The total tax rate including solidarity surcharge amounts to
26.4%. The law stipulating a one-time increase in corporation tax to 26.5% for the calendar year 2003 was
announced in September 2002. The majority of German companies are subject to two types of income tax, a)
trade earnings tax and b) corporation tax. The trade earnings tax of the Company in Jena amounted to
15.97 % for each of the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003. Trade taxes are deductible for the pur-
pose of computing corporate income taxes. Together with trade tax of 15.97% the Company’s tax burden
in the financial year 2003/2004 totalled 38.13%, in the financial year 2002/2003 39.46%.

The expected incame tax benefit (expense), based on incame (loss) bafore income taxes of € 25.093 million

and € 16.714 million and statutory rates of 38.13% in the financial year 2003/2004 and 39.46% in the
financial year 2002/2003 to actual income tax expense is as follows:

€000  Finandial year 2003£2004 Financial year 2002/2003

Expected tax expense at statutory rate 9,568 6,595
Increase in deferred tax assets valuation adjustment 566
Non-deductible expenses 559 69
Tax-exempt earnings (938)
Effect of change in statutory tax rate 759
Ta 7,376
Thereof from continuing operations — 9,014
Thereof from discontinued operations — (1.738)
Effective taxation ratio 43.53%




Deferred tax assets and liabilities are made up of the following:

€000

Loss carryforward

Property, plant and eguipmen:
Accounts receivable
Provisions

Inventeries i
Defeired revenue !
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
toans ;
Accounts payable ‘
Leferred tax assets

Valuation adjustment
Deferred fax assets net
Property, plant and eguipmeni
Intangible assels

Dther assets

Accounts payable

Deferred tax fiabilities

Deferred tax assets (nei)

330 220
"
26,91 23,917

~
1%
<o
E==3

13,058 71328
2%
IR 1937
10

71
2.234
16,616

Deferred tax assets and liabilities were disclosed in the consolidated balance sheet as of 30 September 2004

and 2003 as follows:

€'000

Deterred tax assets, current
Deferred tax assets, non:curreat
Deferred tax liabilities, current
Deferred tax lizbilities, npn-current

30.09.2003

Deferred tax liabilities on the retained earnings of foreign subsidiaries to the sum of € 1.133 million and
non-deductible expenses for retained earnings of foreign subsidiaries to the sum of € 14.114 million were

not carried as a liability because these earnings are to remain permanently invested.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Company in the financial year 2003/2004 carried a valuation
discount of € 1.861 million for deferred taxes. This valuation allowance reduced the delerred tax asset to
2 net amount which the Company believes more likely than not that it would realise, based on the
Company's estimate of future earnings and the expected timing of temporary difference reversals. As of 30
September 2004 the Company had 2 tax credit of € 7.513 million from loss carryforwards, of which about
€ 867,000 can be carried forward to 2020, € 421,000 to 2021 and € 6.225 million treated as unlimited
carryforwards. These carryforwards relate to activities in the USA and Germany.

(23) Segment information

According to SFAS 131 "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related information”, segment
reporting follows the internal organisational and reporting structure of the Group.

Therefore, the segment reporting is based on the geographical regions Germany, USA, Japan and other corresponding
with the locations. Each segment offers the same type of products and services.

€000 . Finangial year 2003/2004

G Wy Japan Others  Eliminations
Sales revenues 119,721 136,326 35,302 - (48,071} 234378

Cost of goods sold {73.487) {80,608} {19,125} - 47,343 (125377

Seling ang matketng expenses
General and administrative expenses {6,825} (3,835} (1,004 [GEY] 113 {11,699
Research and development expenses
Other expenses
Dnerating 211955 3,240 15,686 7131 145) 344 26,326

Capital expenditure

Goodwitl 15422 704 16,1

Balance sheet totat 239,611 §0.838 S 14672 12 {119,900 33




€000 Financial year 2003/2004

Germany USA Japan Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
Sales 96,686 148,456 31,851 717 {41,996) 235,714
Cosi of goods sold (60,602) (85,131 (16,114) (ron 39,370 {133,184)
Selling and marketing expensss {15,573) (22,009 {5,644) {609) 272 (43,563)
General and adminstialive expenses (5,235) (3,260) (2,531} (116) 30 (11,112)
Research and development expenses 9,917) (13,443) - (4) 466 (22,898)
Other expenses ’ 253 630 - 735 (1,159) 519
Foreign currency gains/ibsses (601) 43) 113 0] (221 (753)
Operating incomesings | 5,01t 15,260 7.675 75 (3,238 24,723
Long-term assets : 14,071 18,063 222 - (3,538) 28,818
Depreciation : 2,673 2,927 55 19 24) 5,650
Interest expenses 507 2,051 47 84 (127) 2,562
Capital expenditure 899 1,744 277 - (130) 2,790
Goodwilt 10,373 743 - - - 1,116
Balance sheet total 232,678 84,145 14,346 532 (125,856) 205,845

Sales revenue is allocated according to the gecgraphic region of the subsidiary that generates the revenue.
Long-term assets comprise long-term tangible assets and loans, but not goodwill, intangible assets, long-term
accounts receivable or deferred tax assets.

Inter-segmental sales and revenue are largely calculated at the same prices as negotiated with outsiders to
the Group.

Capital expenditure relatis to the purchase of property, plant and equipment.

B




Geographical information
Revenues from external customers are attributed to geographical regions based on the {ocation of the customer.

€000 m Financial year 2002/2003
Germany 16,393
Abioad I

Europe, not including Germany 41,860 40,051
Americas 123,450

Asia, Pacific region® 55,780

234,878 235,714

*including Africa

Sales by business segment

234,878 235,714

Laser

€000 Financial ye 2004 Financial year 2002/2003

Service

Information on major customers
In the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 no single customer accounted for more than 10% of
total sales.

(24) Transactions subject to reporting requirements during the period
The following is a summary of securities transactions carried out by members of the Management and

Supervisory Boards in the financial year 2003/2004 that were subject to reporting requirements pursuant
to Art. 153 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
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Name Function Date Purchaselsale - Number of shares Price

 ooiseos

Alexander von Witzleben Deputy Chairman of 10.09.2004 Sale 1,000 €10.20
the Supenvsory Board -

Alexandzr von Witzlebeh Deputy Chairman of 15.04.2004 Sale 1,000 £11.70
: the Supenvisory Board -

Dr Michael Kaschke Chairman of the 03.05.2004 Purchase 750 €10.60
! Supervisory Board -

Dr Michael Kaschke . Chairman of the 03.05.2004 Purchase 250 €10.70

Supervisory Beard

(25) Events after the balance sheet date

Carl Zeiss Meditec, Inc. and the US company Laser Diagnostic Technologies, Inc. (LDT), based in San Diego,
Calif., announced that on 20 October 2004 they signed a definitive agreement for the acquisition of LDT
by Carl Zeiss Meditec. LOT developed and commercialised a new standard for glaucoma detection with its
proprietary ocular nerve fiber measurement instrument. Worldwide sales of approximately US-$ 20 million

with a break-even operzting result are expected for the current financial year

The transaction is expected to close at the end of 2004, pending the requisite company and shareholder
approvals,

On 1 November 2004 the Company also announced that its Japanese subsidiary, Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Ltd.,
domiciled in Tokya, Japan, was taking over the surgery business of Carl Zeiss Co., Ltd., which is alse domiciled
in Tokyo, fapan. This area deals with the sale of surgical microscopes for ophthalmology, neurosurgery and
for ear, nose and throat surgery, and achieves annual sales of ¢a. € 25 million.

This is a transaction under common control, as all companies are controlled by Carl Zeiss AG. Goodwill is
not created by this transaction. US GAAP requires that the residual amount of € 1.258 million paid in excess
of the respective book values of the acquired assets and liabilities be offset against equity.
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Specific comments and compulsory disclosures

in conformance with Art. 292a HGB
Divergent accounting, valuation and consolidation methods

The consolidated financial statements of Carl Zeiss Meditec were prepared in accordance with Art. 2923
HGB and considering the exemption for HGB consolidated financial statements in compliance with the
valid American accounting principles, US GAAP, as of the balance-sheet date.

In conformity with the interpretation of the German Accounting Standards Committee (DRSC) in DRS 1 the
consolidated reporting of the parent company complies with Directive 83/349/EEC.

The applied accounting, valuation and consolidation methods in accordance with US GAAP essentially differ
in the following respects:

Balance sheet layout

The balance sheet and the income statement for the German annual financiat statements was laid out in
accordance with Art. 266, 275 HGB. SEC/ US GAAP prescribes a different layout: The balance sheet items
are ordered in accordance with their realisability — beginning with the most liquid items, Furthermore,
short-term components of the long-term assets and liabilities are posted separately. Treasury stock was not
shown as an asset, but openly deducted on the liabilities side under Shareholders’ equity.

Self-constructed software
According to HGB self-constructed software must not be posted on the balance sheet, but the resulting
costs are 1o be disclosed immediately as expenses.

Under US GAAP expenses for software developments may be capitalised in accordance with SFAS No. 86
"Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed”
and depreciated over the probable useful life. Once feasibility has been proven, the development costs for
software (attributable material and labour costs and overheads) for sale to third parties from the time of
technical feasibility to market maturity are to be capitalised.




Business combinatioris

According to German accounting rules, business combinations must be taken into consideration as of their
effective date. A choice may be made between the book value method and the fair value (Art. 301 HGB).
By the book valus method capital is carried at an amount equal to the book value of the assets to be included
in the consolidated financial statements. Hidden reserves may only be disclosed to the amount of the
differential between the hook value of participations and the calculated equity capital. 8y the revaluation
method hidden reserves are disclosed independently of the proportional holding.

According to US GAAP the date the merger was recarded in the commercial register is the date on which
the acquisition is recorded. The fair value of the assets and liabilities associated with the legal transferee
at the time of acquisitio1 must be recorded.

Goodwill

Starting 1 October 2002 the Company has adjusted its financial records to conform to SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets” which prohibits the recognition of scheduled depreciation on goodwill.
According to this regulation the current value of goodwill is periodically assessed and it is written off at a
lower value as necessary. HGB stipulates that goodwill be amortised over the anticipated usefut life.

Uncompleted development projects at acquisitions

In conformity with #GB. expenses for uncompleted development projects at acquired subsidiaries are not
recognised separately, bLt as a constituent part of goodwill. According to US GAAP these costs are identified
separately at the date of acquisition and disclosed as expenses.
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Leasing

According to US accounting standards there is a fundamental difference between "capital lease” and "operating
lease”. In the case of a capital lease, the lessee is the economic owner and capitalises the leased property. In
the case of an operating lease, the leased property is attributed to the lessor and the lessee makes periodic rental
payments to use the property.

There are special regulations for posting sale-and-lease-back agreements. The profit from the sale of the equipment
is deferred and amortised to income pro rata over the term of the agreement.

Unrealised profit/loss within the framework of valuation on the effective date

Under HGB only unrealised losses are reported in the income statement (imparity principle). US GAAP on
the other hand, also takes into account any unrealised profit, particularly related to the measurement of
derivative financial instruments,

Accounts receivable and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and which are not hedged are valued
under German accounting legislation at cost price or the lower exchange rate on the balance sheet date.
Under American accounting standards (SFAS No. 52) ail foreign currency accounts receivable and liabilities
are translated at the exchange rate on the reporting date and unrealised exchange rate gains and losses
reflected in the operating resuits.

The valuation of derivative financial instruments pursuant to HGB8 takes into account the principles of cost
price, realisation and imparity,

Under US GAAP financial instruments are stated at their market value. Any resulting unrealised profit or
loss is reflected in the resulis,

Deferred taxes

Pursuant to HGB, deferred taxes are calculated for all different timing differences between the recognition
of income for tax purposes and for the consolidated income statement (timing concept). No deferred taxes
are shown for losses carried forward. However, DRS 10, Deferred taxes in consolidated financial statements,
requires that losses carried forward for financial years beginning after 31 December 2002 be disclosed if
the tax advantage can be realised with a reasonable degree of certainty.




Pursuant to SFAS No. 109, however, deferred taxes must be calculated for all temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and the respective amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet
(temporary concept). Deferred taxes on loss carryforwards are to be recognised. [n this respect, the future rate
of taxation is also applied if the rate has been enacted.

Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets when realisation of such assets is not more likely
than not.

Provisions for pensions

Pursuant to both HGB and US GAAP provisions must be made for pension obligations. The value to be
recorded under US GAAP is to be based on anticipated discounted future payments. Pursuant to HGB,
various insurance mathematical methods may be used. According to US GAAP the projected unit credit
method must be applied (SFAS No. 87). Pursuant to SFAS No. 87, in the case of schemes financed by means
of funds, certain qualified assets must be offset against the total obligation or capitalised.

Employee participation program

In accordance with US GAAP there are two afternatives for the valuation of option awards granted to
employees. Under APB No. 25 the intrinsic value of the award, as determined on the measurement date, is
recorded as an expense over the vesting period of the option award. Alternatively, SFAS 123 may be applied.
Under this method; the fair value of the options is determined with the aid of a valuation method
(e.q. Black/Scholes option price model} and expensed over the period through to when the options are
vested. The Company applies APB 25 to the consolidated finandial statements. The pro forma resuit, had
SFAS 123 been applied, is disclosed in the notes.

According to HGB there are no expenses for stock option plans from contingent capital.

Outside interests in shareholders' equity

Pursuant to HGB, shares held by outside investors are disclosed according to the entity theory of consolidation
as a component part-of shareholders’ equity and the net result for the year. In accordance with US accounting
rules, shares held by outside investors are according to the parent company theory not shown as a component
part of shareholders’ equity, but as a separate balance sheet item after shareholders’ equity and the share
of profits apportioned to the minorities disclosed as an expense or, in the case of a deficit, as income in
the income statement,

67N
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Other mandatory disclosures pursuant to Art. 292a Commercial

Code (HGB)
Details on executive bodies of the parent company

Management Board
The following persons were appointed to the Management Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in the finandial
year 2003/2004 and their names recorded in the commercial register:

- Ulrich Krauss, Dipl.-Kaufmann (MBA), Weimar
President and CEQ, responsible for Sales, Marketing, Service, KR,
Refractive Surgery and Business Development,
as of 1 October 2004 also responsible for Quality and Product Management,
Research and Development. '
Other mandates:
Member of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc., Dublin, USA
Member of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec, Co. td., Tokyo, Japan

- Bernd Hirsch, Dipl.-Kaufmann (MBA), Weimar
Member of the Management Board, responsible for Finances,
Investor Relations, IT and Legal Affairs,
since 1 October 2004 also responsible for Logistics and Production,
Research and Development.
Other mandates:
Managing Director of AM Asset Management GmbH, Jena
Member of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec, Co. Ltd., Tokyo, Japan

- Dr. Walter-Gerhard Wrobel, Physicist, Jena (until 30 September 2004)
Member of the Management Board, responsible for Logistics and Production,
Research and Development, Quality and Product Management.

The active members of the Management Board received a total remuneration of € 668,000 for the financiat
year 2003/2004,




Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board o Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in the financial year 2003/2004 consisted of the following members:

- Dr. Michael Kaschke, Oberkochen

Member of the Management Board of the Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkachen
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Other rnandates:

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Meditec Inc., Dublin, USA,

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Optical, inc,, Chester, USA,

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Australia Pty. Ltd., Camperdown, Australia,
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Co. Ltd., Tokyo, Japan,

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Surgical, Inc, Thornwood, USA,

Chairman ofi the Board of Carl Zeiss Pte. Ltd., Singapore,

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss India Pte. Ltd., Singapore,

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Co. Ltd., Seoul, South Korea,

Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss Far East Co., Lid., Kowloon, Hongkong,
Chairman of the Board of Carl Zeiss {Pty.) Ltd., Randburg, South Alrica,
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Financial Services GmbH, Oberkochen,
Member of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Semiconductor Manufacturing
Technologies AG, Oberkochen,

Member of the Supervisory Board of Hensoldt AG, Wetzlar,

Member of the Supervisory Board of Siltronic AG, Munich,

Chairman of SPECTARIS, the German Industrial Association for Optical,
Medical and Mechatronical Technologies, Berlin.

- Alexander von Witzleben, Weimar

Chairman of the Management Board of Jenoptik AG, Jena,

Deputy Chairmar of the Supervisory Board

Other mandates:

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Analytik Jena AG, Jena,

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Meissner+Wurst Zander Holding AG, Stuttgart,
Chairman of:the Supervisory Board of PVA Tepla AG, Asslar,

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of DEWB AG, Jena,

Member of the Supervisory Board of Krone GmbH, Berlin,

Member of the Administrative Board of Feintool International Holding AG, Lyss.
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- Dr. Franz-Ferdinand von Falkenhausen, Jena
Managing Director of Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH, Jena
Member of the Supervisory Board. (until 30 September 2004)
Other mandates:
Member of the Supervisory Board of Cart Zeiss Semiconductor Manufacturing
Technologies AG, Oberkochen,
Member of the Supervisory Board of FC Carl Zeiss fena, lena,
President of the IHK (Chamber of Commerce) East Thuringia, Gera,
Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Fraunhofer Institute (IOF), Jena,
Member of the Board of Trustees of Innovent Jena eV, Jena,
Chairman of the Advisory Board of the Thiringer Aufbaubank, Erfurt,
Member of the Advisory Board of ZSP Geoddtische System GmbH, Jena (Trimble Group),
Member of the Advisory Board of A)Z Engineering GmbH, Jena,
Member of the Advisory Board “East” of Dresdner Bank AG,
Member of the Advisory Board “East” of Deutsche Bank AG,
Member of the Advisary Board of Ernst-Abbe-Stiftung,
Member of the State Board of Trustees Saxony-AnhaltiThuringia
of the Founders” Association for German Science,
Member of the Board of Trustees of the Jena Polytechnic College.

- Dr. Manfred Fritsch, Kleinpiirschiitz bei Jena
Member of the Supervisory Board
Other mandates:
Member of the Supervisory Board of Messe AG, Erfurt,
Member of the Board of the Kompetenznetz Optische Technologie OptoNet eV, Jena,
Chairman of the Advisory Board Verkehrslandebahn Schéngleina GmbH, Schéngleina.

- Dr. Markus Guthoff, Krefeld
Member of the Board of the IKB Deutsche Industriebank AG, Dusseldorf
Member of the Supervisory Board (since 1 October 2004)
Other mandates:
Chairman of the Advisory Board of IKT Private Equity GmbH, Dusseldorf,
Chairman of the Advisory Board of IKB Data GmbH, Disseldorf,
Member of the Supervisory Board of MetaDesign AG, Berlin,
Member of the Supervisory Board of Argantis GmbH, Cologne,
Member of the Advisory Board of Poppe & Potthoff, Werther,
Member of the Board of IKB Capital Corporation, New York, USA.

- Wilhelm Burmeister, Jena
Group Manager Manufacturing Control and Chairman of the Works Councit of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena
Member of the Supervisory Board on behalf of the employees (since 1 October 2004)

no other mandates.
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- Jirgen Domel, Jena
Chairman of the Group Works Council at Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkochen
Chairman of the Works Council at Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH, Jena,
Member of the Supervisory Board on behalf of the employees (until 30 September 2004)
Other mandates:
Member of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss Jena GmbH, Jena
Member of the Supervisory Board of Carl Zeiss AG, Oberkochen

- Franz-§6rg Stiindel, Jena
Service Technician at Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena,
member of the works council of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena
Member of the Supervisory Board on behalf of the employees
no other mandates.

The active members of the Supervisory Board received a total remuneration of € 130,000 for the financial
year 2003/2004. The amount of fixed and variable remuneration of individual members of the Supervisory

Board is calculated in compliance with the Company’s articles of assodiation,

Advances/loans and contingent liabilities in favour of members of executive bodies
No advances or loans have been granted to members of the executive bodies. The Company has not entered
into any contingent liabilities in favour of members of the Management Board/Supervisory Board.

Personnel expenses
Personnel expenses for the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 were as follows:

€000 [P RTEOIIE U AN  Financial year 2002/2003

Wages and salaries 54,569 55,586

Social security expenses 5,909
64,424 61445

The expenses for employee pensions amounted to € 1.388 million and € 1.395 million in the financial
years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 respectively

As of the cut-off date 30 September 2004 the number of staff was 796 (previous year: 752} plus 23 trainees
{previous year: 24).. The annual average of Company employees was 801 (previous year: 798).
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Cost of materials
The cost of materials for the financial years 2003/2004 and 2002/2003 comprised the following:

€000 Financial vear 260372004 Financiat year 2002/2003

Raw materials and supplies 82615 90,026
Purchased services 13,524 16,772
96,139 106,798

Details on shareholdings {fully consolidated companies)

Name and domicile of the company

Currency Share of Shareholders’ equity thereof profifloss
voting as of 30.09.2004 for financial year
capital % transiated at the 260372004 at
market rate on the average annual sate
Carl Zesss Medizeg, Inc., Us$ '600 100
Dublin, USA €000
Asclepion-Meditec, SRLIEL, €'000 100
Milan, italy *
AM Asset Management €000 100
Verwaltungsgesellschaft muH, jena, Germany
Carl Zess Meditec Systems GmbH, Pirmasens €'000 100
Carl Zeiss Meditec Co., Utd. ¥°'000 51
Tokyo, Japan €000

*The fiqures retote tc the liquidation balonce sheet gs of 31 March 2004

German Corporate Governance Code / Declaration according to Art. 161 (Stock Corporation Act)
The declaration mandated under Art. 161 German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) was made available to the
Management and Supervisory Boards and the shareholders.

Jena, 22 November 2004
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG

//, - v / Vi K »—/-,
N AN /ZM/ He .

&\
/
Ulrich Krauss Bernd Hirsch
President and CEQO Member of the Management Board




Audit opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements, comprising the balance sheet, income statement and the statement of
changes in shateholders’ equity and cash flows as well as the notes to the financial statements, prepared by Carl Zeiss Meditec AG,
for the financial year from 1 October 2003 to 30 September 2004. The preparation and the content of the consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's Management Board. Our responsibility is to express an opinion whether the
consolidated financial statements are in accordance with United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP).

We conducted our aud't of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with German auditing regulations and generally
accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer (IDW, German Institute of
Auditors). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that it can be assessed with reasonable assurance
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatements. Knowledge of the business activities and the
economic and legal environment of the Group and evaluations of possible misstatements are taken into account in the determi-
nation of audit procedures. The evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements are
examined on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements provide a suitable understanding of the net assets, financial position and
results of operations as well as cash flows of the Group for the financial year in compliance with United States Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.

Our audit, which also extends to the consolidated management report prepared by the Management Board for the financial year
from 1 October 2003 to 30 September 2004, did not lead to any reservations. The consolidated management report provides a
suitable understanding of the Company's position and suitably presents the risks of future development.

In addition, we confirm that the consolidated financial statements and the consolidated management report for the financial year
from 1 October 2003 o 30 September 2004 satisfy the conditions required for Company’s exemption from its obligation to prepare
consolidated financial statements and the group management report in accordance with German faw.

Stuttgart, 24 November 2004

Prof. Dr. Binder, Dr. Dr. Hillebrecht & Partner GmbH
Wirtschaftspritfungsgesellschaft
Steuerberatungsgesellschalit

wa C/Qz/[/% -

Schupeck Barth
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftsprifer




Glossary of medical and technical terms

Ablation

Biometry

Cataract

Cornea

Diabetic retinopathy
Excimer {aser
Femtosecond

(abbr. fs)

Field Analyzer

Field of vision
measurement

(also perimetry)

Fundus camera

Glaucoma

Removal of tissue by laser treatment in » refractive surgery; here: removal of
tissue of the » cornea

Measurement of the eye prior to cataract surgery in order to determine the
refractive power of the » intraocular lens (10L)

Deterioration of vision through opacity of the lens; typical disease among
older people; most common cause of blindness world-wide. back

Transparent tissue forming the outer part of the eyeball back

Disease that affects the » retina and is caused by vascular changes due
to diabetes

Type of laser, today’s standard in » refractive surgery for » ablation of
corneal tissue

Miniscule time unit:

1fs = 10" seconds

Device for » field of vision measurements in » glaucoma treatment
Measurement to determine the areas at the back of the eye which are still
functioning; used in the diagnosis of » glaucoma

Special camera making a photograph or digital image of the back of the
eye (fundus)

Eye disease which leads to restriction of the field of vision; often caused by

increased ocular pressure; in industrialised countries second most common
cause of blindness back




Hyperopia
(or farsightednass)

Intraocular lens (o)

Laser
Acronym created from

light amplification by

stimulated emission
of radiation

LASIK

Acronym for Laser in
situ Keratomileusis
{latin)

Macular degeneration,
age-rélated (AMD)

Myopia
(or nearsightedness)
Optical Ccherence

Tomography (OCT)

Optometrist

Vision defect in which the focal point of the eye is behind the visual plane
(i.e. the » retina), causing close objects to be out of focus

Synthetic lens to replace the natural lens of the eye, used in » cataract surgery

Device in which coherent light beams are generated through light amplification

by means of induced emission

Method of treatment in » refractive surgery, where a thin flap is cut and fol-
ded back; then the » excimer laser reshapes the underlying corneal tissue
and afterwards, the flap is folded back over the treated tissue; benefits of

this method: more rapid wound healing and less pain

Retinal disease of the area of maximum visual acuity {(macula} which teads
to the loss of central vision; most common cause of age-related blindness in
industrialised countries back

Vision defect in which the focal point of the eye is in front of the visual

plane; causing distant objects to be out of focus

Optical procedure which uses partially coherent light to generate virtual
cross-sectional images (tomograms) of the underlying tissue structure using

2 contact-free technigue.

An eyecare practitioner who has a specialised education for prescribing
corrective lenses and often limited authority to diagnose and treat eye

disease; this profession is more common to Anglo-Saxon countries
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Patient-specific treat-
ment of vision defects
(or Customized Ablation)

Perimetry
(or field of vision

measurement)

Presbyopia

(also age-related farsigh-

tedness or presbytia)

Retina

Refraction,
refractive defect

Refractive surgery

Individual correction of » refractive defects of the eye in » refractive surgery

» Field of vision measurement

inability to focus on close objects, especially when reading, due to decreasing
ability to accommodate; the cause is age-related decreased elasticity of the
lens of the eye

Light-sensitive membrane lining the inner wall of the back of the eye back

Optical performance of the eye’s overall system; refractive defects lead to
impairment of vision » myopia, » hyperopia back

improvement of eyesight by surgical correction of » refractive defects, e.q.
» ablation with the aid of » excimer lasers




Financial calendar and contact

Date ‘ Financial year 200412005 B Key lnvestor Relation fvents
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12.08.2005
12.08.2005
15.12.2005

11.02.2005 " 3-konth Pepart
11.02.2005 ;
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Built on an unparalleled 150-year heritage of optical innovation,
Carl Zeiss Meditec AG is one of the world's leading complere

ophthalmic system providers. Our activities focus on maintaining
and improving people's eyesight. Our systems facilitate diagnosis

and treatment of refraction, cataract, glaucoma and retinal disorders.

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG  Tel.. +49(0) 36 4172 20-0
Goeschwitzer Str. 51-52 Fax. +49(0) 36 41 /2 20-112
07745 Jena, Germany www.meditec.zeiss.com
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Carl Zéiss Meditec acquires majority holding in IOLTECH
(ad hoc) '

Expanded position in market for ophthalmic surgery - Combination of systems and
implants opens up further growth potential

Jena, Gerniany / La Rochelle, France, 17 December 2004) The medical solutions provider,
listed in the Prime Standard at the Deutsche Borse, will take over about 63 percent of the
shares in the ophthalmic surgery specialist IOLTECH. This company, listed on the Second
Marché at the Paris Stock Exchange, specialises in the production and distribution of intra-
ocular lenses (IOL). IOLTECH sales for the last financial year amounted to € 44.7 million.
The price offered to the majority shareholder values 100 percent of IOLTECH’s shares at

€ 110 million, which represents € 91.80 per [OLTECH share and corresponds to a premium of
15.6 percent on the IOLTECH average weighted share price of the last three months. Carl
Zeiss Meditec will pay for 80 percent of the bloc shares in cash and for 20 percent by issuing
new Carl Zeiss Meditec AG shares.

These terms are the subject of an agreement signed by the majority shareholder of IOLTECH
and Carl Zeiss Meditec AG on in the night between 16 and 17 December 2004. The
transaction is still among other things subject to the approval of the German anti-trust
authority. Subsequent to getting all these approvals the bloc acquisition should be finalised by
mid of February 2005.

After acquiring the majority of the shares, Carl Zeiss Meditec AG is aiming at a complete
takeover of IOLTECH. Accordingly, in a second step Carl Zeiss Meditec will submit a take-
over bid at the same amount of € 91.80 per share in cash to the remaining shareholders of
IOLTECH.

Contact Carl Zeiss Meditec AG:

Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jens Brajer/Director Investor Relations, Goeschwitzer Str. 51-52,
07745 Jena, Phone: +49 (0)3641-220-105, Fax: +49 (0)3641-220-117, E-mail:
investors@meditec.zeiss.com

Contact IOLTECH SA
Annabelle Bretaudeau, Phone: +33-546 44 85 50
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Carl Zeiss Meditec acquires majority holding in
IOLTECH

Expianded position in market for ophthalmic surgery - Combination of
systems and implants opens up further growth potential

(Jena, Germany / La Rochelle, France, 17 December 2004) The medical
solutions provider, listed in the Prime Standard at the Deutsche Borse, will
take over about 63 percent of the shares in the ophthalmic surgery
specialist IOLTECH. This company, listed on the Second Marché at the
Paris Stock Exchange, specialises in the production and distribution of
intra-ocular lenses (IOL). IOLTECH sales for the last financial year
amounted to € 44.7 million. The price offered to the majority shareholder
values 100 percent of IOLTECH's shares at € 110 million, which represents
€ 91.80 per IOLTECH share and corresponds to a premium of 15.6 percent
on the IOLTECH average weighted share price of the last three months.
Carl Zeiss Meditec will pay for 80 percent of the bloc shares in cash and for
20 percent by issuing new Carl Zeiss Meditec AG shares.

These terms are the subject of an agreement signed by the majority
sharsholder of IOLTECH and Carl Zeiss Meditec AG in the night between
16 and 17 December 2004. The transaction is still among other things
subjact of the approval of the German anti-trust authority. Subsequent to
getting all these approvals the bloc acquisition is expected to be finalised by
February 2005.

After acquiring the majority of the shares, Carl Zeiss Meditec AG is aiming
at a complete takeover of IOLTECH. Accordingly, in a second step Carl
Zeiss Meditec will submit a take-over bid at the same amount of € 91.80 per
share in cash to the remaining shareholders of IOLTECH.

Expanded position in the attractive ophthalmo-surgery market.

This acquisition will put Carl Zeiss Meditec in a position to combine its
globally recognised competence in the field of diagnostics and post-
treatment of eye diseases with the implants (IOL) used in the surgical
treaiment of cataracts. Doctors and patients alike will profit in the long term
from the development of innovative products and solutions. Cataract is the
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most widespread vision defect worldwide and its treatment represents the
most common surgery performed on human.

In thez field of intraocular lenses and related products IOLTECH has a

comprehensive and competitive product portfolio and holds a strong market
position in Europe.

Acquisition offers significant economic and strategic advantages

The merger of Carl Zeiss Meditec and IOLTECH will enable considerable
advantages to be exploited by both parties:

- Due to the expansion of the product portfolio, all clinical areas from
diagnosis to treatment and follow-up treatment are now covered.

- The combination of the existing pools of expertise of the two
‘ companies will enable potential to be exploited for the development
of innovative products.

- Both companies have an efficient sales organisation which will profit
from integration in future. In this way the presence of the products,
particularly in Europe, can be selectively expanded.

“This step is one of the most important milestones in our company's history
to deite,” says Ulrich Krauss, President and CEO of Carl Zeiss Meditec AG.
“In IOLTECH we have found a partner who, like ourselves, stands for
innovative strength and sustainable earning power. The expertises of the
two companies in the field of diagnosis and treatment of cataracts are a
perfect complement for another.”

“We are looking forward to this cooperation and are convinced that the
trans:action will open up very positive perspectives for the company’s
continued growth and for our employees,” said Philippe Tourrette, majority
sharzholder and Chief Executive of IOLTECH.

Additional information on the transaction

The new shares necessary for payment of the acquisition price to the
IOLTECH majority shareholder will be issued in compliance with the
existing authorisation approved by the Carl Zeiss Meditec General Meeting
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in March 2004 and within the scope of about 4.5 percent capital increase
(approx. 1.3 million shares) with the exclusion of shareholders' subscription
rights.
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About Carl Zeiss Meditec

Bﬁilt on an unparalleled 150-year heritage of optical innovation, Carl Zeiss Meditec
(International Securities Identification Number DE000531370) is one of the world's leading
gye care solutions providers.

Its product line includes systems for the diagnosis and treatment of the four main diseases of
the eye: refraction, cataract, glaucoma and retinal disorders. The company has incorporated
its technologically-superior optics into a stream of product innovations throughout the years,
from slit lamps and fundus cameras; to the Humphrey® Field Analyzer, recognized as the
global standard for glaucoma detection and management; to its newest applications of lasers
as embodied in its leading-edge MEL-80™ refractive laser and innovative STRATUSocT™
for glaucoma diagnosis.

Carl Z'eiss Meditec AG is based in Jena, Germany, with key subsidiaries in the U.S. (Carl
Zeiss Meditec, Inc.) and Japan (Carl Zeiss Meditec Ltd.). The rapidly aging global population
and other trends are expected to grow the ophthalmic market in the long term. The company
is focused on applying innovative optical technologies to protect and enhance vision now
and into the future.

28 percent of the Carl Zeiss Meditec shares are in scattered holdings. The remaining 72
percent are held by Carl Zeiss, one of the leading international optic and opto-electronic
industry groups of companies in the world.

Contact:

Invesitor Relations

Jens Brajer/Director Investor Relations
Goeschwitzer Str. 51-52

07745 Jena, Germany

Phone: +49 (0) 36 41- 220 - 105
Fax: +49(0)3641-220-117

E-mail: investors@meditec.zeiss.com
Web: hitp://www.meditec.zeiss.com/ir
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About IOLTECH SA
Created in 1990, the laboratory IOLTECH SA became year after year a key player in

ophthalmology thanks to its innovations and its diversification.

IOLTE:CH designs, manufactures and distributes a very large range of intraocular lenses,
products, materials and instruments for eye surgery but also ophthalmic pharmaceuticals.

IQLTECH has a unique positioning in ophthalmology as it is present in surgery and
pharmacy areas. The group has a comprehensive offer for all main eye disorders : cataract,
refractive, glaucoma, retina, orbit, dry eye.

IQLTECH is a group of 320 people, based in La Rochelle (France) with subsidiaries in
United States, Germany, Italy, Belgium, Scotland, Mauritius that realizes a consolidated
turnover of 44.75 Mé for the last fiscal year.

IOLTE:CH intervenes on a growth market as its main activity is cataract surgery (more than
70% of sales), a pathology which concerns the seniors, a fast growing population.

IOLTECH is listed on the Second Marché at the Paris Stock Exchange (ISIN code FR
00000166938-10LT), floating and nominative shares represent 37.20%, the other remaining
62.80% are held by Philippe Tourrette, President and founder of the company and its family.

Contact:

Annabelle Bretaudeau

Phone: +33 - 546 44 85 50
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| Carl Zeiss Meditec doubles net income

Sales defy exchange rate effects caused by weak dollar-
- publication of annual financial statements 2003/2004

Jena, 15 December 2004 - In the financial year 2003/2004 Carl Zeiss
' Meditec AG (ISIN: DEO00531370) almost doubled its netincome for the
- year to€ 12.6 million from € 6.6 million in the previous year. This was
disclosed in the annual financial statements for the year ending
30 September 2004, published today by the Prime Standardisted medical
~ technology company.

' Earnings before interest and tax increased to € 26.3 million (prev. year:

- € 24.7 million) and the EBIT margin rose to 11.2% (prev. year: 10.5%).
Sales remained almost constant at € 234.9 million (€ 235.7 million).Thus,
the company managed to compensate for the slump in the dollar price of

. atout 11% by organic growth. “This is a very good result, considering that
we: realize about three-quarters of our sales in the USA and Asia,” said

- Ulrich Krauss, President and CEO.

Operative cash flow reached € 31.6 million and was thus 12.6% above the

. pravious year's level of € 28.1 mitllion. Net cash and cash equivalents

“increased by 35.1% to € 77.1 million (prev. year: € 57.1 million). Ulrich

. Krauss: “On this basis we will be able to continue our organic growth also
by acquisitions. This could boost our efforts to expand our market position
and become a solution provider for the ophthalmic sector.” Today Carl
Zeiss Meditec already offers a broad product portfolio of innovative systems
and devices for the ophthalmic market. These range from early detection
and diagnosis to the treatment of eye diseases. The most important of
these diseases are cataracts, vision defects, glaucoma and retinal
disorders.

The largest share of overall sales were generated by the Diagnostic
business unit at € 169.8 million (72%). Carl Zeiss Meditec achieved sales of
- € 44.1 million with therapeutic systems (lasers), equal to almost 20% of its
- total turnover. The remaining € 21 million are attributable to service

CARL ZEISS MEDITEC
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business. Carl Zeiss Meditec recorded the strongest growth in laser

business with an increase of approx. 28%.

- Abreakdown by region illustrates the dominance of the American continent

with € 109.8 million, or 46.8% of total sales. € 65.5 million or 27.9% were
atiributable to the Asian/Pacific region, where the strongest rate of growth
(+17.4%) was recorded. Sales in Europe excluding Germany amounted to
€ 41.9 million, corresponding to a share of 17.8%. In Germany, Carl Zeiss
Meditec generated 7.6% of its sales (€ 17.7 million). Compared to the
previous year this represents an increase of 8.2%. The first signs of an
easing off in the reluctance to invest in replacements are recognisable here.

As of 30 September 2004 the Carl Zeiss Meditec Group employed a

workforce of 796 (previous year: 752).

President and CEOQ Ulrich Krauss announced that besides the growth in
terms of sales, the company would also increase its profitability. The target
is a doubling of last year's sales (€ 235.7 million) by the financial year

- 2(07/2008. By then Carl Zeiss Meditec aims to generate an EBIT margin of

atout 15%. In the current financial year 2004/2005 total sales are to
increase by about 20%.
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Brief Profile

" Built on an unparalleled 150-year heritage of optical innovation, Carl Zeiss Meditec
- (International Securities Identification Number DE000531370) is one of the world's leading
ey care solutions providers.

Its product line includes systems for the diagnosis and treatment of the four main diseases of
the: eye: refraction, cataract, glaucoma and retinal disorders. The company has incorporated
its technologically-superior optics into a stream of product innovations throughout the years,
from slitlamps and fundus cameras; to the Humphrey® Field Analyzer, recognized as the
glcbal standard for glaucoma detection and management; to its newest applications of lasers
. as embodied in its leading-edge MEL-80™ refractive laser and innovative STRATUSocT ™

. for glaucoma diagnosis.

Cerl Zeiss Meditec AG is based in Jena, Germany, with key subsidiaries in the U.S. {Carl
Zeiss Meditec, Inc.) and Japan (Carl Zeiss Meditec Ltd.). The rapidly aging global population
and other trends are expected to grow the ophthalmic market in the long term. The company
is focused on applying innovative optical technologies to protect and enhance vision now
and info the future.

28 percent of the Carl Zeiss Meditec shares are in scattered holdings. The remaining 72
- percent are held by Carl Zeiss, one of the leading international optic and opto-electronic
inclustry groups of companies in the world.

Centact:

Investor Relations

Jens Brajer/Director Investor Relations
" Geeschwitzer Str. 51-52

07745 Jena, Germany

Phone: +49 (0} 36 41 -220-1 05
P Fax: +49(0)3641-220-117

E-mail: jnvestors@meditec.zeiss.com
Web:  hitp://www.meditec.zeiss.com/ir
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